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CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT
TRHE

| am pleased to present the annual results of DreamEast
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2017 (the "Year").

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the Year, the Group recorded revenue from continuing
operations of approximately HK$1,278.3 million, representing
an increase of 41.3 times from approximately HK$30.2 million
in 2016. The increase in revenue mainly resulted from the
increase in revenue from property development in Fangshan,
Beijing, the PRC. The Group recorded net profit of HK$126.9
million for the Year, representing an increase of 155.8% from
approximately HK$49.6 million in 2016. The increase mainly
resulted from the above property development business in
Fangshan, Beijing, the PRC.

As at 31 December 2017 the Group recorded equity
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$3,037.0 million, representing an increase of approximately
HK$290.2 million as compared to HK$2,746.8 million as at 31
December 2016.

Basic earnings per share attributable to the owners of
the Company for the Year amounted to HK$0.4394 (2016:
HK$0.1524).

In the course of business transformation and rapid
development, the Company shall reserve sufficient capital for
development of existing and new projects, hence the Board of
the Company has resolved not to propose a final dividend for
the Year (2016: Nil).

APPRECIATION

| would like to express my greatest appreciation to the
entire staff of the Group for their hard work and efforts in
the Year. | would also like to extend my gratitude to the
investors, business partners, suppliers, local governments and
shareholders of the Company for their support and confidence
in the Group over the vyears, in particular their advice and
help offered to the Company in the critical time of business
transformation. | am highly confident that, with the existing
strategic planning, the Group is well-positioned to overcome
challenges and create value for customers, thereby generating
significant shareholder value. | look forward to sharing with
you our rapid developments in years to come.

Zhou Zheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EXRE ARSI

BUSINESS REVIEW

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME TO DREAMEAST TO EXPAND
THE CULTURAL ENTERTAINMENT BUSINESS

The year 2017 was a milestone for the Group. Following the
successful biddings of lands for the development of Phase 1
of DreamEast Suzhou and Phase 1 of DreamEast Jiashan in
late 2016, the Group further won the biddings of lands for the
development of Hengyang DreamEast Resort and Phase 2 of
DreamEast Jiashan in 2017 acquired the DreamEast Future
World Aerospace Theme Park and disposed of the “COMB+"
Innovation and Entrepreneurship Incubation Platform. As a
result, the Group completed the strategic transformation
and upgraded the cultural entertainment business as its core
business. In order to better reflect future business plans
and development strategy, the Company officially changed
its name to “DreamEast Group Limited” (“DreamEast”) in
August 2017

£ EI) -
RAERERT HBRCRHER

07FHAEEMS TEREMN —F -4
2016 F FERIRISAAERERT SO —
HMZ2RNBIRE R Lk 20179F
REEF N BRI EEH2RTIKEER
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[HBAREE | BIFTRIRI T & BT B
SR IR R TT A AR E R
EX - ANRAR2017F8ANEAERF 2
RAKBEARRAR] ([2R75])  LEEW
[ RN ER R SR S 75t 8 e o P BB

The DreamEast LOGO represents the splendid Chinese culture,
bringing dreams, love and joy to the world.

ERTEEAKREE
DREAM EAST
BHT5

Established in 2013, the “DreamEast” brand embodies the
Group's achievements in exploration and research of the
cultural entertainment industry in over a decade. Currently,
the brand has garnered world recognition in the culture,
entertainment, tourism and IP creation industries. The
management is of the view that, the change of name to
DreamEast not only reflects and highlights the corporate
image more accurately, but also allows the Group to promote
its cultural entertainment projects in the international capital
market and attract tourists from all over the world.

On 30 November 2017, DreamEast was included in the
Morgan Stanley Capital International (MSCI) Hong Kong Micro
Cap Index. This reflected investors’ confidence in the Group's
prospects and enhanced corporate image, which further
strengthened the position of the Group in the Hong Kong and
international capital market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

NEW PROJECTS IN THE PROMISING TOURISM INDUSTRY

The report of the 19th National Congress of the Communist
Party of China stated that, in the new era of socialism with
Chinese characteristics, people’'s increasing needs for a
better life along with uneven and inadequate development
have become the major conflicts in Chinese society. Thus,
travelling represents one of the important focuses of people's
better lives. According to the “China Economic Life Survey
(2016-2017)" published by the Financial Channel of CCTV in
April 2017, “travelling” remained the top option of spending
for three consecutive years, accounting for 45.5% of
interviewees. Of which, respondents in second and third-tier
cities were more interested in travelling than those in first-tier
cities in general.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRRDN

The domestic tourism market flourished in recent years,
mainly due to the combined effect of favourable factors
including rising disposal income per capita over the years and
changing spending pattern which led to strong demand for
travelling; lower travelling cost as a result of convenient and
well-established transport and railway network that boosted
demand for suburban trips; the implementation of holiday
system which ensured vacation days; and the continuous
releasing of favourable policies. Hence, the tourism industry
has entered a stage of exponential development. According
to the “2017 Annual Tourism Market and Overall Contribution
Information Report”( (2017F 2 FR#EMH k5 & B B
ZERIE) ) of the China Tourism Academy, the growth
in the number of visitors and revenue from the domestic
tourism market in 2017 exceeded the expectations at the
beginning of the Year. The total number of domestic visitors
amounted to 5.0 billion for the year, representing an increase
of 12.8% from 2016 and an average trips per capita of
3.6 times. Revenue from domestic tourism increased by
15.9% from 2016 to RMB4.57 trillion and the spending per
capita was approximately RMB913.8. This showed that the
demand for domestic tourism was huge and was driving
economic growth. Based on the “Report on China’s Tourism
Development 2016" ( <7 B jik % 2% & ¥k 5 (2016)) ) of the
National Tourism Administration, the number of domestic
visitors will reach 6.8 billion by 2020, representing an average
trips per capita of 5 times. Total spending on domestic
tourism will amount to RMB10.5 trillion and the spending per
capita will be approximately RMB1,700.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In the fast-growing tourism industry, short trip for leisure
and vacation has become the most popular purpose of
travel. According to the “Annual Report on Development
of China's Domestic Tourism 2017" issued by the China
Tourism Academy, regional tourism development continued to
follow the “robust East and weak West" pattern in terms of
domestic tourism. Interregional tourism primarily composed
of trips in the three major economic zones (Beijing, Shanghai,
Shenzhen) in Eastern China while intraregional tourism mainly
concentrated in the Yangtze River Delta. Family trips, self-
drive short trips and festive travel with themes have emerged
as new travel trends.

In view of the favourable macro-environment, the Company
seized opportunities and made plans for a variety of cultural
and entertainment projects in the 3 major metropolitan areas
of Greater Beijing, Greater Shanghai and Greater Shenzhen,
which will be opened for visits between 2018 and 2019.

Strategic Layout of
Three Core City Clusters
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRRDN

CULTURAL ENTERTAINMENT AND PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT
BUSINESS

DreamEast has been committed to the vision of “Share the
Beauty of China with the World (Z2HKEZFHRHFZE) " in
crafting all of the unique projects. Based on local culture and
environment, it will develop all projects into distinguishable
and non-replicable masterpieces with the highest design
standard and construction quality.

During the Year, the principal activities of the Group
included development and operation of cultural tourist
resorts and theme parks under the brand of “DreamEast”,
property development and leasing and other businesses.
The management believes that the Group's experience in
developing large-scale property projects in over a decade
provides strong and extensive manpower, resources,
experience and financial support to tourist resorts and
other cultural and entertainment projects. The Group
currently adopts the development model of “enhancing the
value of saleable auxiliary properties through cultural and
entertainment elements and complementarily nurturing of
the cultural and entertainment sector with saleable auxiliary
properties”.

Hengyang DreamEast Resort

The Hengyang DreamEast Resort is situated in Hengyang
City, Hunan Province, China. It is at the south of Mount
Heng and is surrounded by time-honoured cultural heritage
and magnificent natural landscape, where the Huxiang
Culture originated. The project is conveniently located and
approximately 20 minutes of drive from the city center. By
taking High-Speed Rail, it takes around 40 minutes to travel to
Changsha, the capital city of Hunan Province, and nearly 2.5
hours to Shenzhen.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Hengyang DreamEast Resort is to be developed into
“Four Towns and Five Parks”. Comprising the cultural town,
the science and technology town, the forest town and the
agricultural town as the Four Towns, the resort will specially
construct five theme parks, namely the DreamEast Adventure
Park, Fantasy Waterpark, Valt the Wonder Deer Animal
Kingdom, Agricultural Park and Modern Sports Park. The
project will facilitate the new tourism landscape dominated
by “Mount Heng in the north and DreamEast in the south”.
It will become a national example of the coordinated
development of the three industry sectors and industry-
city integration, presenting the world a city of Hunan's rich
culture.

The Hengyang DreamEast Resort will be developed in phases.
Phase 1 will embrace Hunan's academic culture, water
transport culture and religious culture in the construction
of “the cluster of the all-season academies, a splendid
waterfront cultural street and the culture zone integrating
Confucianism, Buddhism and Taoism”. There will also
be three themed museums, namely the Hunan Cuisine
Museum, Celebrity Museum and Intangible Cultural Heritage
Museum. With culture at its core, the project will serve as
an integrated cultural, leisure and entertainment destination
offering dining, entertainment, academy, theatre and unique
accommodations.

In July 2017 the Group succeeded in the bid of the land
with a site area of approximately 330,000 square metres
at a consideration of RMB131 million, for the development
of Phase 1 of the Hengyang DreamEast Resort. The grand
ground-breaking ceremony of the project was held on 10
August 2017 In December, the structure of the experience
centre was topped out and it is expected to be opened to
the public in mid-2018. At the same time, the construction
of the professional trap shooting range with a total site area
of approximately 58,000 square meters is in progress. The
shooting range will be the official venue for trap shooting
match of the 13th Hunan Games in 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRRDN

Hengyang DreamEast Resort has been included in the “Key
Construction Projects in Hunan Province” as an "all-forone
tourism” project.

DreamEast Jiashan

DreamEast Jiashan is located in Jiashan County, Jiaxing City,
Zhejiang Province in Greater Shanghai, the PRC. In terms
of comprehensive strength, Jiashan County is one of the
top 100 counties in the PRC. Situated at the intersection
of Jiangsu, Zhejiang and Shanghai, Jiashan is the core
district of the Yangtze River Delta city cluster and the first
connection between Zhejiang Province and Shanghai. The
DreamEast Jiashan Project is approximately 60 km southwest
of Shanghai and in proximity to Jiashan South Station of the
High-Speed Rail and Dayun Exit of the Shanghai-Hangzhou
Express. It is also within the one-hour living circle covering
Shanghai, Hangzhou and Suzhou, benefitting from its superior
location and profound cultural heritage.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Combining highest good with the beauty of Jiangnan,
DreamEast Jiashan integrates science and technology,
culture, leisure, tourism, vacation and entertainment and is
established as a water village that exhibits good and love.

In December 2016, the Group succeeded in the bid of the
land with a site area of approximately 70,000 square metres
at a consideration of approximately RMB65 million for the
development of Phase 1 of the DreamkEast Jiashan. The
grand ground-breaking ceremony of the project was held on
9 August 2017 On 21 September, the project entered into
the management agreement with Hyatt Hotels Corporation
for the joint development of Jiashan DreamEast Hyatt Place
Hotel with 190 guest rooms. In November, the structure of
the experience centre was topped out. Phase 1 of the project
is designed to be a “city guesthouse” and is expected to be
completed in 2019. It will focus on the diversified business
model comprising the experience centre of DreamEast
Jiashan, Valt the Wonder Deer Exploration Park, Dream
Theatre, the Wuyue Culture Experience Centre, Valt the
Wonder Deer Family Hotel and themed commercial streets,
so as to cater the diverse demands of visitors for high-quality
vacation lifestyle.

On 2 November 2017, the Group succeeded in the bid of the
land with a site area of approximately 240,000 square metres
at a consideration of approximately RMB226 million, for the
development of Phase 2 of the DreamEast Jiashan. Phase 2
of the project will build a water village that incorporates the
millennia-old Wuyue culture. The history of Jiangnan water
village will be the main theme in connecting different periods
and showcasing Wuyue history in a small town setting.

Jiashan Dayun Chocolate Sweet Town, at which DreamEast
Jiashan is located, was among the first batch of provincial
special small towns in Zhejiang Province and was elected as
the national special small town demonstrative project at the
2018 China Special Small Town Exhibition.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRRDN

DreamEast Suzhou

DreamEast Suzhou is located in the East Lake Taihu
Ecotourism Resort, Wujiang, Suzhou City, Jiangsu Province in
Greater Shanghai, the PRC. Founded more than 4,000 years
ago, Suzhou is famous for its historical and cultural legacies.
It has been praised and compared to the heaven since
ancient times. The DreamEast Suzhou Project is set along
the picturesque Lake Taihu. Relying on the superb ecological
resources of Lake Taihu, the project positions itself as the
country’s most stylish urban resort offering joy, energetic and
informative experience in leisure, entertainment, sports and
education.

In December 2016, the Group succeeded in the bid of the
land with a site area of approximately 26,000 square metres
at a consideration of approximately RMB135 million, for the
development of Phase 1 of the DreamEast Suzhou Project.
The grand ground-breaking ceremony of the project was held
on 20 October 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DreamEast Future World Aerospace Theme Park

The DreamEast Future World Aerospace Theme Park is located
at Yanjiao National High-Tech Industrial Development Area in
East Beijing, within tens of minutes of drive from Beijing's
central business district. Being China’s first and the world’'s
second indoor park with an “aerospace” theme, the park was
selected as one of the major cultural industry projects by the
Ministry of Culture of the PRC in 2015 and included in the
2017 National List of Preferred Tourism Projects by the National
Tourism Administration of the PRC. It was also recognised as
an AAA Tourist Attraction of China in December 2017. There are
more than 30 interactive science education and entertainment
attractions in the DreamEast Future World Aerospace Theme
Park, which enable visitors to learn and understand aerospace
technology through exciting interactions. Combining aerospace
technology exhibition, science education and interactive
entertainment, the project spreads knowledge in a fun way.

On 9 October 2017 the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in DreamEast Future World (Sanhe) Entertainment
Co., Ltd. (“Future World Operating Company”) at a
consideration of RMB6.0 million. Future World Operating
Company is the operator of the DreamEast Future World
Aerospace Theme Park. Upon entering into the acquisition
agreement, Future World Operating Company entered into
the tenancy agreement with Sanhe SkyOcean Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (“Sanhe SkyOcean”) to rent the
properties for the operation of DreamEast Future World
Aerospace Theme Park from Sanhe SkyOcean.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRRDN

The DreamEast Future World Aerospace Theme Park was
opened in October 2015. Since it commenced operation, it
has become a local landmark with wide recognition, managed
by an experienced team. The management is of the view that,
the acquisition of its operation rights enhances the Group's
operating capabilities in cultural and entertainment projects,
while helping the Group secure more promising cultural and
entertainment projects in the future, which is in the interest
of the shareholders as a whole.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Beijing Fangshan “COMB+" Project (“Fangshan Project”)

The Beijing Fangshan “"COMB+" Project is located between
the Southwest 5th and 6th Ring Roads in Beijing, the PRC,
only 2 minutes’ walk from Suzhuang Station on Fangshan Line
of the Beijing Subway. In July 2014, the Group acquired 3 land
parcels for the North, Central and South Zones of Phase 1 of
the project at a total consideration of approximately HK$3.3
billion. Phase 1 of the project occupies a total site area of
approximately 113,000 square metres, with a gross floor
area of approximately 410,000 square metres and a planned
gross floor area of approximately 325,000 square metres.
The project is the first large-scaled integrated community
in the region. Owing to the high quality, excellent design,
well-established auxiliary facilities and supreme service, the
property projects of the Group enjoy a sound reputation. For
instance, the show flats and clubhouse of this project were
designed by a renowned interior designer firm in Hong Kong.
As a result, the project garnered strong support from the local
government and continuous attention of residents in the local
and surrounding cities since its inception.

Phase 1 of the Fangshan Project is divided into North Zone,
Central Zone and South Zone. Of which, the construction
of the North Zone was completed during the Year while
the Central Zone and the South Zone are expected to be
completed in 2018 and 2019 respectively. In 2016 and the first
quarter of 2017 given the favourable market conditions and
strong demand in the local area, the Group launched a number
of apartment buildings in the North Zone, which were highly
sought after by the market. Some of the apartment units
were delivered to buyers and the revenue was recognised
during the Year. Since the second quarter of 2017, the Beijing
government implemented adjustment measures to cool down
the property market. In view of this, the Group accordingly
suspended the construction and sales of the project. During
the Year, the Fangshan Project contributed HK$1,253.4 million
to the revenue of the Group.

The management will keep abreast of the market trend and
make timely adjustments to the marketing strategy, with the
aim of maximising profitability and shareholders’ returns.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRRDN

OTHER BUSINESSES

“4th Generation SkyOcean City” Urban Complex (the
“Qian’an Project”)

The “4th Generation SkyOcean City” urban complex project
is located in Qian'an City, Hebei Province, the PRC. It will
be developed into a multifunctional urban complex for
commercial, office, apartment, tourism, cultural, dining,
entertainment and shopping purposes, with a shopping
centre, a commercial zone, offices, restaurants and apartment
units. Phase 1 of the Qian'an Project has a total site area of
approximately 106,000 square metres and a planned gross
floor area of approximately 163,000 square metres with 6
commercial buildings. Phase 2 and 3 of the project have a
total site area of approximately 119,000 square metres and
a planned gross floor area of approximately 389,000 square
metres.

Property Project in Irvine, California, U.S.A. (the “Irvine
Project”)

In April 2016, the Group established a subsidiary in order to
develop the project located in Irvine, California, U.S.A.. The
Group invested US$22.5 million and owned 90% interests of
the subsidiary.

The Irvine Project has a planned gross floor area of 380,000
square feet, and will be used to construct 371 apartment
units. During the Year, the Irvine Project has not commenced
construction yet.

“COMB+" Incubation Platform (Disposed)

On 9 October 2017 the Group disposed of its entire
equity interest in the “COMB+" Incubation Platform at a
total consideration of approximately RMB31.1 million. The
“COMB+" Incubation Platform mainly provided training
and peripheral services to startup companies at the early
development stage. As it takes time before such companies
bring about substantial revenue and profit to the Group, the
disposal of the “COMB+" Incubation Platform streamlined
the business operations of the Group and enabled it to focus
on the cultural and entertainment business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS

Following the actions of the change of name to “DreamEast”,
the construction of various cultural and tourism projects,
the disposal of business that is not in line with the future
development strategy and the acquisition of business that
enhances the operation in the cultural and entertainment
industry, the Group has made its position clear with the vision
of “share the beauty of China with the world”, it will focus
on areas including tourist resorts, films and animations, and
commit to establishing its own |IP ecosystem. DreamEast
aims to adopt the development approach of “innovation
and globalisation” to create unique lifestyle experience for
customers with oriential ingenuity and spirit.

The Group sets the long-term goal to promote the
development of the cultural and entertainment business.
It has also formulated detailed plans to this end. At the
same time of acquiring lands for project construction, it has
also commenced the creation of entertainment content.
For instance, it joined hand with Shede Spirits Co., Ltd.
for the co-publishing of the massive musical show “Great
Spirit”. First staged on 7 December 2017 the performance
is debuting at the Jincheng Art Palace, Chengdu, Sichuan
Province and will be on tour in the theatres of the cultural
and entertainment projects of the Group. In addition, the
Group launched the “Dream Maker” program for the first
time, where it recruited high-calibre graduates across the
country as management trainees, with the aims of nurturing
professionals for the future cultural and entertainment
industry, and operating the Group’s cultural and entertainment
projects with an innovative mindset. Moreover, DreamEast
has entered into the strategic cooperation agreement
with Communication University of China for the all-round,
multidisciplinary and in-depth cooperation in 12 areas,
including joint development of training base, China Student
Television Festival, Animation and Comic (Animation) Festival,
web series and artistic performance, and cross-sector
integration.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRRDN

In the long run, DreamEast will develop into a cultural and
entertainment conglomerate, so as to create stable and
sustainable returns for shareholders. Thus, the Group will rely
on self-investment, and revenue from operation, leasing and
sales of the saleable auxiliary properties within the tourism
projects to develop the cultural and entertainment business
in the short term. Along with the progress to be made in
such projects, the management is confident that the cultural
and entertainment business will enter into a stage of steady
growth in rental, operating and ticket income, which will
facilitate the building of an ecosystem centring on cultural
entertainment. In the meantime, the Group will develop its
own Intellectual Property (“IP") and adopt an IP-based unique
operating model to expand and strengthen the cultural and
entertainment business.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the equity attributable to the owners
of the Company amounted to HK$3,037.0 million, representing
an increase of HK$290.2 million from that of 31 December
2016.

On 12 November 2015, the Company issued a two-year
term RMB8.5% secured convertible bonds due 2017 in
an aggregate principal amount of RMB29,520,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds |") to an independent third party. In
addition to which, on the same date, the Company also issued
a two-year term HK$8.5% secured guaranteed bonds due
2017 in an aggregate principal amount of HK$270,000,000
(the “Bonds |”) to the same holder of the Convertible Bonds |.

On 24 December 2015, the Company issued a five-year term
RMB zero coupon convertible bonds due 2020 in an aggregate
principal amount of RMB1,500,000,000 (the “Convertible
Bonds I1”) to SkyOcean Investment Holdings Limited,
the immediate holding company of the Company which is
beneficially owned as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng.

On 28 June 2016, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with the same holder of the Convertible Bonds |
and the Bonds |, for the purpose of issuing three-year term
8% secured guaranteed bond due in 2019 in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$470,000,000 (the “Bonds Il”). The
Company issued the first tranche of the Bonds Il amounting to
HK$70,000,000 on 30 June 2016. The second tranche of the
Bonds Il amounting to HK$400,000,000 was issued on 5 July
2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 28 June 2016, SkyOcean Investment Holdings Limited,
the holder of the Convertible Bonds Il entered into a deed
of charge with the holder of the Bonds Il, and charged
over certain part of Convertible Bonds Il amounting to
RMB450,000,000 in favour of the holder of the Bonds II.

On 28 June 2016, the Company reached an agreement with
the holder of the Convertible Bonds | and the Bonds | to
extend the maturity date of Convertible Bonds | and the
Bonds | from 12 November 2017 to 30 June 2019.

In March 2017, the holder of Convertible Bonds | converted
part of the Convertible Bonds | with principal amount
of RMB9,840,000 into 1,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at the specific conversion exchange rate and
conversion price.

The Group normally provides its business with the operating
fund that comes from internal cash flow and the credit
provided by principal correspondent banks in Hong Kong and
the PRC. As at 31 December 2017, the Group's cash and
bank balances amounted to approximately HK$1,403.1 million
(2016: approximately HK$1,045.5 million), the majority of
which were held in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and Renminbi
("RMB"). As at 31 December 2017 the Group's bank and
other borrowings amounted to approximately HK$4,477.8
million (2016: approximately HK$3,986.8 million) and were
principally settled in RMB carrying interest at fixed and
floating lending rates.

As at 31 December 2017 the Group's liability component
of Bonds and Convertible Bonds with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$2,136.3 million comprised of four portions,
including bonds in the amounts of HK$270,000,000 and
HK$470,000,000 respectively and convertible bonds in
the amounts of RMB1,500,000,000 and RMB19,680,000
respectively. In 2017 the interest expenses incurred were
approximately HK$189.7 million.

As at 31 December 2017 the Group's current ratio was 2.6
times (2016: 2.1 times), based on the current assets of
approximately HK$5.21 billion (2016: HK$5.01 billion) and
current liabilities of approximately HK$2.01 billion (2016:
HK$2.34 billion). As at 31 December 2017, the Group's gearing
ratio was approximately 2.7 times (2016: 2.6 times) based on
total liabilities of approximately HK$8.16 billion (2016: HK$7.40
billion) and total equity of approximately HK$3.06 billion (2016:
HK$2.81 billion).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRRDN

CURRENCY AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

With the majority of the Group's businesses transacted in
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar, the aforesaid currencies are
defined as the functional currency of the Company and some
subsidiaries respectively. Apart from certain bank balances
and cash and bonds denominated in foreign currencies, the
Group is not subject to any significant risk from fluctuations
in exchange rates. No currency hedging arrangement had
been made by the Group during 2017 The Group will closely
monitor and manage its exposure to fluctuation in foreign
exchange rates.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, deposits of RMB542,000,000
(equivalent to HK$648,395,000) (2016: HK$963,656,000) and
bank deposits of HK$1,793,000 (2016: HK$3,589,000) were
pledged to secure the loans granted to the Group.

As at 31 December 2017 properties under development for
sale with carrying amount of approximately HK$469,427,000,
investment properties with carrying amount of approximately
HK$5,369,478,000 and completed property held for sale
with carrying amount of approximately HK$877317000 were
pledged to certain bank and other financial institutions to
secure borrowings obtained from the aforesaid bank and
other financial institutions.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

During the year ended 31 December 2017 the Group did not
hold any significant investment in equity interest in any other
company.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND ASSOCIATES

For the year ended 31 December 2017, there were no material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and associates by
the Group except for: (1) the acquisition of the 100% equity
interest in DreamEast Future World for consideration of
HK$7360,000; (2) the acquisition of certain assets through
the acquisition of 100% equity interest in DreamEast
Tianjin for considerations of HK$6,171,000; and (3) the
disposal of operation of “"COMB+" global innovation and
entrepreneurship incubation platform in October 2017 for cash
consideration of HK$37,795,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

At 31 December 2017, the total number of employees
(including both full time and part time) was approximately
458. Total staff costs amounted to approximately HK$66.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$70.2
million) for both continuing and discounted operations. The
Group offers competitive remuneration packages, together
with discretionary bonuses to its staff, based on industry
practices, and individual and Group performances. The
Group also offers training courses and continuous education
sessions as part of the Group’s emphasis on staff training and
development.

DIVIDEND

The Board resolved not to recommend any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are certain risks and uncertainties that the Group face
during its operation. Among which, there are certain risks
that the Group cannot control. Such risks and uncertainties
including factors such as economy conditions of both inside
and outside China, credit policy and foreign exchange policies,
and changes related to laws and regulations and enforcement
policies.

With the growth and expansion of the Group's operations,
the potential risks to the Group’'s business increase as well.
In order to identify, assess and control the risks that may
create impediments to the Group's success, the Group
have implemented a risk management system that covers
each material aspect of its operations, including financial
security and compliance. The Group's Audit Committee is
responsible for overseeing and assessing the Group's risk
management policy and they supervise the performance of
risk management system.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRRDN

IN COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Company is established in Bermuda, most of the
Group's operations are performed in domestic China, while
the Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The operations of the
Group have to be in compliance with laws and regulations
of China and Hong Kong. For the year ended 31 December
2017 and until the date of the annual report, the Group has
in compliance with all the laws and regulations in China and
Hong Kong in all material respects.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of
its businesses and the communities with which it engages.
The Group pursues this business approach by managing its
business prudently and executing management decisions
with due care and attention. Over the years, the Group
has been fully committed to environmental protection.
Periodic seminars are held to update environmental laws
and regulations and to make valuable suggestions and
recommendations for improvement.

RELATIONS WITH CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Relationship is the fundamentals of business. The Group fully
understand this principal and thus maintain good relationship
with the customers to fulfil their immediate and longterm
need.

The Group strives to maintain fair and co-operating
relationship with the suppliers.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS
ZHOU ZHENG

Mr. Zhou, aged 47 was appointed as an Executive Director, Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since January 2014.
He is the sole director and beneficial owner of 80% equity interest
in SkyOcean Investment, the immediate holding company of the
Company. He is also the sole director of four subsidiaries of the
Company, including Skyleaf Holdings Limited, SkyOcean International
United Limited, Sophie AUS Holdings Limited and Sophie USA
Holdings Limited. Mr. Zhou has over 13 years of working experience
in the property development and commercial retail industries and
over 10 years of experience in the financial investment industry. He
is currently a shareholder, chairman of the Board and president of
SkyOcean Holdings Group Co., Ltd. (KFIEREEBRAF]), a
company established in the PRC and principally engaged in cultural,
technological, financial investments and property development and
consumer goods industries. Mr. Zhou is also a director of China
Minerals Mining Corporation, the shares of which are listed on the
Toronto Stock Exchange.

LAM YU YEE, BENJAMIN

Mr. Lam, aged 57 was appointed as an Executive Director and Vice
Chairman of the Company since January 2017 Mr. Lam was the
executive director and deputy chief executive officer of Pacific Century
Premium Developments Limited (“PCPD"), a property developer
listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Lam served the company between 2004 to
2015. Prior to joining PCPD in 2004, Mr. Lam was chief financial officer
of Asia Pacific Resources International Limited in Singapore in 2003
and was appointed as president of China operations in April 2004.
Between 1999 to 2003, Mr. Lam was executive director and group
chief financial officer of Sino Land Company Limited, a major property
developer in Hong Kong. Prior to joining Sino Land Company Limited,
he had worked in various investment banks and financial institutions for
over 13 years and has substantial experience in corporate finance and
investment banking. Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Industrial Engineering from the University of Hong Kong and a Master
of Business Administration degree from the Manchester Business
School.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERERITHAR-E

YANG LEI

Mr. Yang, aged 50, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company since June 2017. He has more than 20 years of
experience in property development in relation to culture and
tourism. He had been the deputy general manager of Tourist
Administration of Qinhuangdao City, Hebei Province, PRC. Mr.
Yang is currently the chairman of DreamEast Pictures — US
Branch which majority equity interest is beneficially owned by
Mr. Zhou Zheng.

Mr. Yang holds a bachelor degree in education from Beijing
Normal University and a master degree in education from
Beijing Sport University.

CHAN TAK KWONG

Mr. Chan, aged 47 was appointed as an Executive Director and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company since January 2014 and March 2016
respectively. Mr. Chan also serves as a director of several subsidiaries
of the Company. He has over 20 years experience in financial
management, financial audit, group reorganisation, and merger &
acquisition. He joined SkyOcean Group Holdings Co., Ltd. (K J##%
xS EABR /AR ) in July 2013 and is currently the financial controller
of the finance center. Prior to that, Mr. Chan mainly worked in Ernst
& Young and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from 1994 to 2013. Mr. Chan
holds a Bachelor's Degree in Accountancy from the City University of
Hong Kong and is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales.

LI CHAK HUNG

Mr. Li, aged 53, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in October 2004. He graduated from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and holds a Bachelor's Degree
of Business Administration and is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a Fellow of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He has over
26 years experience in accounting, auditing, taxation and financial
management. Mr. Li is currently an independent non-executive director
of Sandmartin International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 482) and
Dan Form Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 271), whereas all
companies are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

MENG XIAOSU

Dr. Meng, aged 69, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in March 2014. Dr. Meng holds a Ph.D.
degree in economics from Peking University and was employed as a
visiting professor at various colleges and universities, including Peking
University, Renmin University of China and China University of Political
Science and Law. Dr. Meng received a special subsidy in recognition
of his academic achievement in business administration aspect as “An
Outstanding Expert” by the State Council of China in 2005.

Dr. Meng is currently a consultant of China National Real Estate
Development Group Corporation (“CRED") (FR [ 5= ih &= F % &
E/A7]), a company established in the PRC, the chairman of Huili
Investment Fund Management Company Limited ([E JIREESLE
BARRE]), an investment fund management firm established in
the PRC, and the chairman of the supervisory board of Shanghai Life
Insurance Co., Ltd. ( £/8 ASRBRMDBRAF]), an insurance
company established in the PRC. Dr. Meng worked in CRED from
1992 to 2006, where he has served as general manager, chairman,
and etc..

YANG BUTING

Mr. Yang, aged 72, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in June 2014. He graduated from Changchun
College of Geology ( K& #1E 2kt ) (now known as College of Earth
Science of Jilin University (MK 21 IREIEZERT) ) in 1969, and
has been engaged in the film industry since 1972. He is currently
a member of the China Film Association and the National Board of
Film Censorship (BREFBEZLZE L) . He is a visiting professor
of Beijing Film Academy, University of International Business and
Economics, and the Communication University of China. Mr. Yang

SSE=/ VAN

was a manager of Hebei Film Company CAldEEER2AR]), a vice
general manager of China Film Company (FREl &% /A A1) , a director
of China Research Institute of Film Science and Technology, the deputy
head of the Bureau of Film under the State Administration of Radio,
Film and Television of the PRC, and chairman of China Film Group
Corporation. He has been awarded the State Science and Technology
Awards and Huabiao Awards and is entitled to government allowance
by the State Council of the PRC. He has extensive experience in film
investment, production, promotion and distribution, establishment of
cinema network and application of digital film technology. With over
30 years of experience in the film industry, Mr. Yang has led a number
of influential film projects, such as the development of the national
e-ticket administration system and IMAX movie camera, application
and research of digital film technology, and the establishment of a
national digital film production base (namely, the State Production Base
of China Film Group (Huairou)), making substantial contribution to film
development in China.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERERITHAR-E

ZHAO DAXIN

Mr. Zhao, aged 63, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in December 2014. He graduated from the
Chinese Faculty of Northwest University in 1977 After graduation, he
served as the secretary of Youth League committee and the deputy
Party secretary in the Direct Subordinate Organization of Shaanxi
Provincial Government. In 1989, he became the deputy chief of Yanta
District, Xi‘an City, Shaanxi Province. Mr. Zhao then served as the
general manager and chief editor of China Record Corporation from
May 2001 to February 2008, and the Party secretary and vice chairman
of China Record Corporation from February 2008 to October 2014.

COMPANY SECRETARY
SZE WING KIN, PIERRE

Mr. Sze, aged 41, was appointed as the Corporate Finance and
Investor Relations Director and Company Secretary of the Company
since September 2015 and January 2016 respectively. He also serves
as company secretary of several subsidiaries of the Company. He
graduated from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
with Bachelor of Business Administration (Hons) in Professional
Accounting in 1998. Prior to that, Mr. Sze has been the Chief Financial
Officer, Board Secretary and Company Secretary of a leading pure
play integrated gold company in terms of gold resources in the
PRC focusing on exploration, mining, processing and smelting of
gold from September 2011 to August 2015. Mr. Sze served as Chief
Financial Officer, Qualified Accountant and Company Secretary
of Lijun International Pharmaceutical (Holding) Co., Ltd. (currently
known as SSY Group Limited, Stock Code: 2005) from June 2008
to August 2011. Mr. Sze worked for several international and local
audit firms including KPMG, PricewaterhouseCoopers and Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu from September 1998 to June 2008. Mr. Sze has
extensive experience in corporate finance, investor relations, company
secretarial, financial management, auditing, accounting, taxation,
internal control, treasury and business advisory in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Mr. Sze is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS REPORT

The Company attached great importance to communications
with investors, financial institutions, the media and
other stakeholders in order to establish a more efficient
communication channel between the Company and the capital
market. The investor relations department has maintained
effective mutual communication and close relationships
with investors, financial institutions and media through
various channels such as the publication of annual report
and interim report, press release, corporate newsletter and
announcement, as well as the website of the Company.
We believe that effective investor relations will help reduce
financial costs and improve the liquidity of the shares of
the Company, leading to a more solid shareholder base. The
Company therefore undertakes to maintain high transparency
and to release the financial and operation conditions and
the latest news to the market promptly and accurately in
compliance with the principle of "accurate, timely, and
transparent” information disclosure. The Company strives to
make the market have a deep understanding of the Company
and maintain high corporate transparency in order to create
maximum value for shareholders and other stakeholders.

SHARE PERFORMANCE
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SHARE PERFORMANCE IN 2017 (3 JANUARY 2017 TO 29
DECEMBER 2017)

As at 29 December 2017, the Company had a total of
263,211,739 Shares and the market price per Share was
HK$12.04. Based on the closing price as at 29 December
2017, the market capitalisation of the Company amounted to
HK$3,169 million.

The investor relations department will continue to enhance
the quality of communication with investors and maintain
corporate transparency. To ensure easy access to the
Company's updated information, all of our published
information including announcements, interim and annual
reports and press releases, are posted on the Company's
website www.dreameast.com in a timely manner. Interested
parties can also make enquiries by contacting the investor
relations department (email: investor. inquiry@dreameast.com).
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

DreamEast Group Limited (the “Group” or “"We")
presents the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (the "ESG Report”) which covers environmental
and social performance of the Group and its
major subsidiaries to demonstrate our continuous
commitment to sustainability during the period
1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017 Additional
information in relation to the Group's corporate
governance and financial performance can be found
in other sections of this Annual Report. The ESG
Report highlights our sustainability activities during the
reporting period.

The current scope of the ESG report covers
the principal operating activities of the Group's
headquarters and subsidiaries in Hong Kong and in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), which
include tourist resorts and theme parks development
and operation, property development and leasing.
We pledge to extend our corporate culture with the
slogan of “limitless as the sky, embracing like the
ocean, and sincere as our love for others” to our social
responsibility. As being a responsible corporate, we
fully integrate sustainable concepts with our business
operation.

This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide"” (the "ESG Reporting Guide"”) under Appendix
27 of the Main Listing Rules Chapter 13.91 of The Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited. With reference
to the definition stated in the ESG Reporting Guide,
the presentation of our ESG Report will divide those
aspects and key performance indicators (“KPI"), which
are considered to be relevant and material to the
Group's businesses and operations, into four subject
areas: Environmental Protection, Employment and
Labour Practices, Operating Practices and Community
Investment. A complete list of index in compliance with
the ESG Reporting Guide is also available at the end of
this Report for reference.

DreamEast Group Limited 2R 7S£ B AR Q7]

ENUIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOUERNANCE REPORT
RRE-HEB8KREBHS

BARAHRE
2RFEEBERAR ([REE] K
[P MAREERE e kER
wWweEs - ABE 201791 A1 8 22017
F12A3N A AEAREE R A 2N
BRARZIRERMERIE BRAE
B A SERR CISEAE X
SECEEANMBRACZELE
B 2R FEREMEE IR
g REAREBIER MR EHA
R FERRELH -

RIE H@MEAREZRBHER
EAKEUREERPEARLM
B ([REDMEBERENBAR
TERERD ERRIREERE &
TREEMENSE MERENE
E-BMNKBEZRR - BZR
HBEZRAINEECIEHESR
Mt eEE-tFRA—HEEEDE
¥ BB AISERRESZERA
BRI ERES -

RE g RERMENRBEEBR
PREEFERATFR ETHRAE
13.915&MIER27 [IR3R - v 8 REAW
H185| ] R - BIBRIE e NER
WEESITTEE ARE - HER
EVRIRE B ICE AN E 2 A S
M BERFE FEREZER
EESMNESEBZ H5lA RE
RE BEREIER CEEBHR
fLEER - BERE g REARS
f&3IBA v TR R S| FIRINE AR
ER UHEEE-



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT - continued

In order to define what are relevant and material to
our business with respect to sustainability, the key
is to understand what issues our stakeholders are
most concerned with. We define our stakeholders as
people who affect our business or who are affected by
our business. Our stakeholders include shareholders,
employees, clients, suppliers, customers, environment
and community. In our daily operation, we actively
exchange information with our stakeholders through
our transparent platform while we are devoted to
continuous improvement of our communication
system. We are committed to maintaining a long-
term partnership with our stakeholders and are
actively engaged in addressing their concerns
with timely follow-up actions. If you, as one of our
stakeholders, have any questions about the content
of the ESG Report or comment on the Group's
sustainability issues, please contact us via investor.
inquiry@dreameast.com.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
21 CORPORATE ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group constantly considers that a healthy
environment is indispensable to the well-being
of human beings and every member of the
society, through providing the foundation of a
sustainable economy. Because of this, we, as
part of the planet Earth, believe that our planet
deserves our best thinking and investment.

In line with our environmental vision, the Group
is committed to upholding high environmental
standards to fulfil relevant requirements under
applicable laws and regulations throughout the
operation. In addition, we continue to work with
our partners together to, in different aspects,
reduce our environmental impact throughout
our operation because we believe we are all
accountable to protect the earth and to build a
sustainable future for our generations and their
generations.

22 ENERGY EFFICIENCY MANAGEMENT

The Group actively maintains a steady focus on
reducing our energy consumption to manage
our impact on the environment. Our major
contribution to the greenhouse gas emission
and energy footprints lies on the electricity
consumption by our corporate offices.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERRSE

2. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

2.2 ENERGY EFFICIENCY MANAGEMENT
— continued

The Group is committed to observing the
“Indoor Temperature Energy Saving Charter”
and the “No Incandescent Light Bulbs (“ILB")
Energy Saving Charter” introduced by the
Environment Bureau of the Hong Kong SAR
Government. During the reporting period, the
Group developed a number of specific energy-
saving initiatives and efficiency practices to
reduce our greenhouse gas emission and to
conserve energy usage, including:

° LED lighting systems are widely set up in
workplaces;
° indoor temperature is maintained at an

optimal level for comfort;

° equipment, machines and electronic
devices shall be turned off after office
hours;

o signages are put on at appropriate areas

to raise the awareness of energy saving;

o encouraging employees to make the best
use of the video conference facilities
so as to avoid unnecessary travel
arrangement.

DreamEast Group Limited 2R FEEHR AT

2.

AREBBETHBFRIITHIE
RERHETH [ERRE R
HE]M [T RIS B BETRE
WE|-RBEHA NEE
EERT L AT HIEERE
B SIE R E R - AR EAM
HR ERAEHEIR - B KIBEIR A
ERRECE

. TS AER LR
LEDARBA & 4%

. MR RIESTEER

. RBAEMEREE
PR MERET
e

. Ria 8 R E BIREE
R e R

. BB IZRBRES
R AR R N B
ZERZ e



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

2. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

2.3

24

B HERERES

2. BRERE-&

NON-HAZARDOUS WASTE MANAGEMENT 2.3 BEREYER

We are as committed as ever to conserving BM—ERIRNREREE
precious resources, believing that every IR AEEEENEBI TR
small step will make a difference. Besides M RN A E BT
implementation of energy saving initiatives in MESN - AR E TMETTH IR IR
the office, the Group also promotes other eco- B REBEEREPRD
friendly measures to reduce disposal of non- BEEREEEY - AEETE
hazardous waste throughout our operation. We EEFERAEmEN AR DA
encourage our employees to reduce paper usage RIEA - WEMEEZ A
by using double-sided copying and by a more T (Bl raE#b &
frequent use of electronic information systems KT ELZREFEERGS
for material sharing or internal administrative LAE BB IR B RE S S
documents (such as the Office Automation B — &0 o PR BRI - B
system) as part of our environmental protection A HEEX29. O mEREE
campaigns. During the reporting period, we b

produced approximately 29.9 tons of non-

hazardous waste in total.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE 2.4 RIERR

In accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide BIERBH R TR T AIRE -
set out by the HKEX, our environmental g kERmEES AEH
performance of “Energy Use and Emissions” RS EAAR [5ERe A KBk
and “Resource Use"” during the reporting period Bl RIERFER]IRIERE
are tabulated as below. HIRIAT o

Table 1 - Energy Use and Emissions R1-EREARER
Energy Use and Emissions Unit 2017
15 FA B8R B BE I B 2017
Electricity kWh 42,249
£ RSN

Unleaded Petrol [ 15,463
89 H

Diesel [ 2,510
geom H

Greenhouse gas emissions CO2e¢ (kg) 96,249
BAERBHERE —afkixEE (A7)

Nitrogen Oxides g 118,256
RELY =

Sulphur Oxides g 268
=Rt =

Particulate Matter g 11,331
BIZN T =
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RE HERERRSE

2. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

2.4

2. RIERE-E

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE - continued 24 RIERE-E

Table 2 - Use of Resources *®2-ERMER

Use of Resources Unit 2017
EREA B 20175
Paper Piece (kg) 254,345
i & (F7) (1,271.7)
Water m? 3,267
K MK

As part of the Group's long-term strategy,
the Group will continue our commitment in
environmental protection and to strive to
build a green and healthy environment for the
community we all live in, as a responsible
corporate citizen.

3. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

3.1

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR

The Group understands that much of our
success is attributed to a team of dedicated
and talented workforce essentially forming
the foundation on which we fulfil goals and
continuously drive our business to new levels
of milestone. As such, we are determined
to provide a desirable workplace, continuous
training and prospective career opportunities to
our staff-members, focusing on getting the very
best from the staff-members and helping them
achieve their goals throughout their career path.

During the reporting period, we continue to
strictly follow the relevant laws and regulations
and our employment policies to select employee
candidates based on skillsets, experience
and expertise. Equality and diversity is highly
respected in our corporate philosophy during
the process of employment, remuneration,
promotion and termination.

DreamEast Group Limited 2R 5 & EHR AT
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

3. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
— continued

3.1

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR - continued

Our employees are mainly located in Hong Kong
and the PRC. The Group safeguards the rights
of our employees by strictly complying with the
requirements of the Labour Law of Hong Kong
and the Labour Law of the PRC. In the PRC, we
have participated in welfare schemes concerning
pension insurance, unemployment insurance,
maternity insurance, occupational injury
insurance and medical insurance in accordance
with the local regulations including the
Regulations on the Administration of Housing
Provident Funds and the Social Insurance Law
of the PRC. In Hong Kong, we provide medical
insurance, disability and invalidity coverage,
maternity leave, incentive and bonus etc. to all
full-time employees. We have also participated
in the Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) Scheme,
prescribed by the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).

B HERERES

3. ERRFIER-&

3.1
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B TERTBREEENRE -
VARER (B B RORER] - e B -
BAIERERE (EFEAES
EIRIGH) K (EERBUE)
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RE HERERRSE

3. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
— continued

3.1

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR - continued

In accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide set
out by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, details
of the Group’'s workforce during the reporting
period are tabulated as well as presented in
graphs below.

Table 3 - Our Workforce

BREREIER-&

3 EEREI-E
RIEE BB TR ERIRE
e kERHEED  AEH
NBEMAWE THIBET
RAMEIR -

®RI-HKMNET

2016 2017

20164 20174
Total Number of Full-Time Employees 259 458
BIBY
Turnover rate by gender (%)
BB MK ERERE 5 (%)
Female 19.7 6.7
egid
Male 19.7 15.0
S
Turnover rate by age group (%)
BERKEEIRFRAERE D (%)
Under 30 years old 23.6 12.4
30 BT
30 - 50 years old 15.8 9.7
30 - 50 5%
Over 50 years old 0 0
50 BRLA E
Turnover rate by region (%)
18 B 5Kk e 4= 3 [ 2 5 (%)
Hong Kong 0.8 0
EB
PRC 38.6 19.9
R A
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

— continued

31 EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR - continued

Workforce by Age Group
ETARIZRFRARSE S

1%
Above |
50 years old
5058 A

46%
Under
30 years old
308 T
53%

Between

30 and 50

years old

30-50%%

Workforce by Geographic Region
ETHAYZMES S

— 2%
' Hong Kong
BB

98%
PRC
FEAt

The Group aims to uphold a fair and equitable
human resource policy, in which quality and
merit of the candidates are the most important
elements to be assessed during the recruitment
and promotion processes. The Group offers
equal employment opportunities to different
genders, age groups and nationalities such that

Junior level

B HERERES

3. ERRFIER-&

3 EREREI-E&

Workforce by Gender
ETHRAEMRE D

34% 66%

Female Male

Workforce by Ranking
ETHAYRERERE S
4% ——— 15%

Senior level . I\/Iidemlevel
mEET FEET

81%

E@ET

AEBEERERTRFFE
MANERBER  ERANE
TR IREANERRE
ZRMENREERER A K
B ARIMER] - FE M B2
ATHRERFERES 1%
MESEEZTMANER

a sound of diversify of human resources can be

achieved.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERRSE

3.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
— continued

3.2

HEALTH AND WORK SAFETY

Given that the operational efficiency of an
enterprise is closely related to the working
environment of employees, the Group has been
attaching great importance to establish a healthy
and safe working environment which can protect
our employees from any potential occupational
hazards.

The Group continues, as in the past, to organize
available resources and effort to address the
health and safety needs of our employees,
including:

o We have developed occupation safety
guidelines for employee reference.

° Proper working postures and posters
of proper lifting method were made
accessible on the intranet and were put
up at appropriate locations in offices
respectively to raise the safety awareness
among employees.

o We have developed health and safety
policies including prohibition of smoking
in workplace, abuse of alcohol and
drugs, identification and prevention of
risks and hazards in the working area,
and emergency actions for accidents or
personal injuries.

° We offer adjustable chairs and monitor
screens for eye protection for individual
workstations.

° We ensure ample space between
workstations and clean and tidy common
space such as corridors and pantry.

o Sufficient ventilation and lighting system
are supplied in the offices.

DreamEast Group Limited 2R 7S£ B AR Q7]
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

3. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
— continued

3.2

3.3

HEALTH AND WORK SAFETY — continued

We at all time require our employees to strictly
adhere to and comply with such policies, which
are set out in our employee handbook.

During the reporting period, the Group has
achieved zero work-related fatalities and lost
days due to work injury.

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group anticipates that every position has
its unique professional and technical needs
and therefore, we ensure that our professional
training and development programs continuously
evolve and create a listening culture through
support and coaching.

We provide every new joiner with proper
orientation training and mentoring in order to
help them swiftly adapt to the new working
environment. Continuous training programs are
offered by the Group in different ways including
internal training courses, comprehensive training
for specific skill development, and professional
training for relevant employees. Through
continuous development program, the Group can
nurture the employees to elevate their personal
qualities, reinforce their skill-sets and keep up
with the most advanced professional knowledge
that their position may require.

B HERERES

3. ERRFIER-&

3.2

3.3

RERIEZZ-&
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERRSE

3. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES 3. BERSIER &
— continued
3.3 TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT - continued 3.3 Bl RkER—-&
In accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide set RIEE B R FTIRERIRIE -
out by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, details e RERREES AEE
of the of training and development programs RERE AR H A R %
provided by the Group during the reporting RIEBEFBR TERMER -

period are tabulated as well as presented in the
graphs below.

Table 4 - Training and Development w4 -EIRBRE

Employee Training Unit 2016 2017

& T By 20164 20174

Average hours of training received hours 0.79 75
per employees N

SHETFHEIBHE

Average hours of training per
employee by gender

WIERIB D W E R REEB TR IR

Female hours 0.79 75
pegia s
Male hours 0.79 75
S AN:=

Average hours of training per
employee by ranking

BBAEDNERREER TR

Senior level hours 0.58 100
mEETL N
Middle level hours 1.36 81
FEET N
Entry level hours 0.60 73
ETWMET N

Average hours of training per
employee by geographic region

iR DM E R REER IR

Hong Kong hours 1.25 3
5 AN
PRC hours 0.76 75
B A N
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

3. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
— continued

3.3

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT - continued

Sense of belonging and morale of the
employees drives the healthy growth of the
Group. The Group constantly encourages open
and direct communication between employees
and management. The Group issues internal
staff magazines on a bi-monthly basis in which
the employees get involved in sharing their ideas
and receive latest company news. Various of
gatherings such as, Group anniversaries, sport
competitions, team building activities, Christmas
and Chinese New Year dinners are organised to
enhance the harmonious sprit throughout the
Group.

4. OPERATING PRACTICES

4.1

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

As a responsible corporate citizen, one of our
missions is to to disseminate the pursuit of
sustainability into the operation of our core
business. During our selection process for
suppliers and contractors, we not only consider
economical and commercial factors in the
tendering processes but we also assess their
track records in relation to compliance with
legal, ethical and social aspects such as use
of child and forced labour, workplace health
and safety, hours of work, compensation,
benefits and wages, mitigation of environmental
impacts, protocols against sexual and gender
discrimination, protocols against harassment and
abuse.
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RE HERERRSE

4.

OPERATING PRACTICES - continued

41

4.2

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT - continued

During the reporting period, the Group has in
total 174 suppliers and contractors which are
all located in the PRC. We require our suppliers
to comply with all the applicable laws and
regulations to follow the principles of proper
social, environmental and ethical conduct.
We perform internal assessment annually
to review the track records of those regular
suppliers. In addition, the Group encourages
all business partners to develop energy-saving
and consumption-reducing policies in order
to work together in our pursuit of sustainable
development.

To maintain a good corporate control and
governance, the Group has also formulated a
series of management systems and procedures
to be aligned with the Corporate Governance
required by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

The Group safeguards the confidentiality of
all customers and entrepreneurs and warrants
that the customer’s information is properly
protected throughout our operation. We require
our employees to strictly follow full procedures
of handling company confidential information
set out in our confidentiality management policy
handbook.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

4. OPERATING PRACTICES - continued

4.3

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group is committed to upholding a high
standard of business ethics and to prohibition
of bribery and corruption. The Group has
developed a series of company policies on anti-
fraud, anti-bribery, anti-extortion and anti-money
laundering with reference to the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance (Cap 201 of the laws of Hong
Kong). These policies apply to all members of
the Group, and we also encourage all of our
business partners to abide by the principles of
the policies.

The Group conducts periodic and systematic
fraud risk assessments and will effectively
communicate its anti-fraud policy and
procedures to all levels of employees. The
Group continues to identify and monitor the
effectiveness and deficiencies of its risk control
in collaboration with external parties. During the
reporting period, we comply with the corporate
policy of anti-corruption and no cases of
corruption have been concluded.

With principles of “Commitment, Assurance
of High Quality, Fair Deals and Faithfulness”,
all employees perform their duties with
utmost level of good faith, determination and
professionalism, and ensure that the reputation
of the Group will not be tarnished because of
misconduct and corruption behavior.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to contributing to the society
through community involvement. As a part of the
community that we cherish, the Group have put our
best effort in helping the local communities and people
in needs in the society and contributing to the well-
being of a community beyond financial support. We
encourage our employees to participate in charity
activities and hope to apply the concept of social
responsibility and practice throughout our routine
operation.

The Group supports the local communities through
variable channels including sharing talks, free or in-kind
scholarships, and employee volunteering. This year,
the Group continuously supports talent development
through various programs. In 2017, we launched
the 2018 campus recruitment program “Project
DreamMaker” ("#52 35 E]") in nine universities in
five cities in China, namely Beijing, Tianjin, Changchun,
Harbin and Xi'an to offer job opportunities to the fresh
graduates. This was the first recruitment program of
the Group to target at the 2018 graduates.

In addition, the Group focuses on cultivation
of innovative talents and entrepreneurship. The
Group established the “DreamEast Innovation and
Entrepreneurship Scholarship” ("2 X 5 #") at the
Communication University of China this year, with
an aim to inspire innovation, and support students
to further their education in the field of media at
home and abroad. Moreover, the Group hosted the
DreamEast Festival of Creativity this year. With a
vision of “Share the Beauty of China with the World",
the Group planned to assemble the most creative
proposals while seeking to recruit the world’s most
creative talents, with a goal of jointly developing
tourism resorts characterized by the Chinese elements.

In July 2017, the Group and the Communication
University of China established a strategic cooperation
agreement to jointly launch all-round, multi-field and in-
depth collaborative projects such as co-building training
sites and collaboration at the China Student Television
Festival, animation festival and online TV episodes.

In the coming future, the Group will continue to attach
great importance to the community development
and will encourage our staff members to join hands
together to promote the spirits of Chinese culture, and
share the beauty of Chinese culture with the world.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX

Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPls

BE —-REER
BREBER

Description

i

B HERERES

BT (BRIR -HERE
AWERES) ABRG

Relevant Section

in ESG Report

REBE -HEREHR Remarks
BREAWEBES HF

Aspect A1: Emissions

[EMAT: HEH

General Disclosure

—RRE

KPIAT
FRENERAL

KPI A1.2
MRENEEAL2

KPIA13
FRENERAS

KPI A4
BRENERA4

KPI A15
MRENIEZALS

KPIAL6
FRENERALE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste

BRERLAZEREHN MKRTOHT BER

EEEENNELEN:
la) HE: R
b BFEETABEAZENEWEERRNNER

Types of emissions and respective
emissions data

BEhBEEREREE

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where
appropriate, intensity
BERBEENER (MER)BE

Total hazardous waste produced and, where
appropriate, intensity
MELEERENEER (WER)EE

Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where
appropriate, intensity
MELXEZREMEER (NER)EE

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and
results achieved

WR B EN B RAEMAR

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and
results achieved

HREEEEREERENNE HEELENER
REERE

Environmental
Protection
RIFRE

Environmental
Protection
RIERE

Environmental
Protection
BHRE

- The Group has not identified

any hazardous wastes that
were produced by our core

business
AEBWRBRIFEMIZOERE
ENBEREY
Environmental
Protection
BRRE

Environmental
Protection
RERE

Environmental
Protection
BHRE
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6. HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX
— continued

Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPls

BH —-REER Description
BRENES it

BRI (RE HERE
BmEES) ABFRE

==

— i

Relevant Section

in ESG Report

RBE HERER Remarks
BEANERES fH

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EmA2 : BREM

General Disclosure
—REE energy, water and other raw materials

BRERER (REER KREMRTH) MEE

KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
HREIUIEEA2T type in total and intensity
RENADMERR/JHEEREEEREE
KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity
BRERIEEA2.2 BREKEREE
KPI' A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and
BREBUREA23 results achieved
B RE A NE T EI A ERR
KPI' A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
HRENIERA24 water, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved
$ 3SR BV KR - ] 7 A o] PR - A R PR K B
HEIRRBRR
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products,
BREBUREA2S and if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced
AR mABeEMHNEER (NER)
BHEEBMGE

DreamEast Group Limited 2R FEEHR AT

Policies on efficient use of resources including

Environmental
Protection
RIERE

Environmental
Protection
RIERE

Environmental
Protection
RIERE

Environmental
Protection
RIERE

- The Group believes that our

water consumption is mainly
used for domestic use
purpose and is considered to
be non-material to the Group's
operation

AEERR BANKEREER
RABEE HAEENEEM
EUTEX

- Use of packaging material is

not applicable to our core

business
BENHERTERREMNNZL
%%



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX
— continued

Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPlIs

EH —-REER Description
BREREE it

B HERERES

BT (BRIR -HERE
AWERES) ABFRE

==

- lI|§

Relevant Section

in ESG Report

REBE -HEREHR Remarks
BREAWEBES HF

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
EEA3 : BERAARER

General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer's significant impact

—REE on the environment and natural resources
RERTAERERARERERNEAL ENHR
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on

MR EIIEIEAST the environment and natural resources and actions
taken to manage them

BLEBETDERELARERNEAYEREHFN
EREBYENTE

Aspect B1: Employment
[EEB1 : [EfE

General Disclosure Information on:
—BBE (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare
BBREHKERE BELEA TERE RS T2
#e 2t RE\UREMSERBH:
@ BE: K
b) BFHEOTAGEAZEOEBEZEZRAONNER

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type,

MR EIIEIZR1 age group and geographical region
RIUEREEER FRARNRERESHIESLH

KPI'B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and

MSEIEIER12 geographical region

R FRANREDHEERKILE

Environmental
Protection
RIFRE

Environmental
Protection
RARE

Employment and
Labour Practices

BERREIER

Employment and
Labour Practices

BERBTIER

Employment and
Labour Practices

BERBTIER
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B dE8REARE

6. HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX

— continued

Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs

BE —-REER
BRENER

Description
it

6. MEXFT (BRI HERE
BmEES) ABERE

==

— i

Relevant Section

in ESG Report

RBRE HERER Remarks
BEANERES fHE

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

EEB2:EREL2E

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI B2.1
BREMIERB2

KPI B2.2
BRI RUEIRB2.2

KPI B2.3
BRENEREB23

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational

hazards
BBREZ2THERELREREHEBELEEMN:
(a) HE: R

(b) EFHETAGEATENBRERRANNEH

Number and rate of work-related fatalities

BIEBEMRTHABRILE

Lost days due to work injury

RATBEXTIEEE

Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, how they are implemented and
monitored

PR ANBERREZ 2R URIEBRITR
BN

DreamEast Group Limited 2R FEEHR AT

Employment and
Labour Practices

EREBTIER

No work-related fatalities were
occurred during the reporting

Employment and
Labour Practices

EEREIER period
IR AT A A B TEREN
A

Employment and
Labour Practices

ERRETIER

No lost days due to work injury
were recorded during the
reporting period

REEHATREERIGES
IR

Employment and
Labour Practices

ERRBETIER
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BR HEREREE

HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX 6. BMXA (RE -HERE

— continued BHERES) AR ZES
- lIIE

Aspects, General Relevant Section

Disclosures and KPlIs in ESG Report

BEH —-REER Description REH HERER Remarks

HEEVER b BREANERED B

Aspect B3: Development and Training
EEB3 : FERF

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and Employment and
—REE skills for discharging duties at work. Description of Labour Practices
training activities EERETIER
BEBRTHE B BT TIERE M AN E SRR AL B TR o fi
BEINEE
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and ~ Employment and
B ENIEEBR3 employee category Labour Practices
RUFIREEEANEASNZIEER AL BERRAIER
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee ~ Employment and
BiRENIEIEBS.2 by gender and employee category Labour Practices

RURIRERERNES SRERRKZINTIRE EERSTER

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
B4 : 4 T8

General Disclosure Information on: Employment and
—REE (a) the policies; and Labour Practices

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations ~ EEREITER
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour

BERMIEETI SRS TH:

(o) HE: R

b) BFHEOTABEATENBBEZEZRANNER

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment Employment and
MR EMIEIERLT practices to avoid child and forced labour Labour Practices

iR RREINERLRRETRENST BRRATER

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate practices - No such incidents were reported
MSEWIEIER42 when discovered during the reporting period
W EERERBRSERAEBRLRRN SR REEBATREREBR
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RE HERERRSE

6. HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX
— continued

Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPls

EBH —-REER Description
BRENES bag

6. B (BR HERE

BmEES) ABERE

==

— i

Relevant Section

in ESG Report

RBRE HERER Remarks
BEANERES fHE

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
BEBS: HEEER

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks
—REE of the supply chain

ERMERNORE R §RBEE

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region

R B MUIEER5.1 RHERE SN HEERHA

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging

MR B NIEIERD.2 suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices

are being implemented, how they are implemented
and monitored

HOEEEREEBOES mANTEEENS
HEBHE ARBBENNRTREERE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
EEB6 : EmE

General Disclosure Information on:
—REE (a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of redress

BHMRHEERNREHERELRE BS BER

REEEARERTEN:
(a) &R
b) BTHETAGEAYENEBEZRRANNER
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject
BiRERIEEB6.1 to recalls for safety and health reasons
EENCEXERBETARZ 2 BREFZMMER Y
B
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints
R EBUEEBR6.2 received and how they are dealt with

REWRNERRRBNRFHE ARELTE

DreamEast Group Limited 2R FEEHR AT

Operating Practices
ZEEH

Operating Practices
ZEEH

Operating Practices
=EEN

- Not identified as material aspect

TREZBEXER

- Not identified as material aspect

TREZBEXER

- Not identified as material aspect

TREZRBEXER
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HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX

— continued

Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPlIs

B HERERES

BT (BRIR -HERE
AWERES) ABFRG

==

lI|E

Relevant Section
in ESG Report

BEH —-REER Description REH HERER Remarks
HEEVER b BREANERED B
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and - Not identified as material aspect
M2 1E7512B6.3 protecting intellectual property rights THEERENGE
Wil EEERRENEEREBOED
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall - Not identified as material aspect
MB35 1ER6.4 procedures THEERENGE
HUEERTRENEREYWREF
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy - Not identified as material aspect
M55 IE12B6.5 policies, how they are implemented and monitored THEEREAHRE

Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption
EMEB7 : R&)S

General Disclosure
—BRE

KPI B71
BB IS RBT

KPI B72
B ENERBT2

WA EEARRERALBER ARERERTRER
&

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering
BBEMLBES 97 BFRsREe:
(o) HE: R

(b) ETHETAREAFENREZRRADINER

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases

RERANEETASEEEREYEBEENETHA
RUER BB RFDRER

Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored

W BERLERER UEBRTRERN A

Operating Practices
2EEN

- No concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices
were brought against the
issuer or its employees during
the reporting period

REEHATEHETAIE
EEREUEELENETFD
EqE)

Operating Practices
2EEN

Annual Report 2017 £

53



54

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B dE8REARE

6. HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX

— continued

Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPls
BEH —-REER
MRENER

Description
b

BRI (RE HERE
BmEES) ABERE

==

— i

Relevant Section

in ESG Report
RBE - HLERER Remarks
BEANERES fH

Aspect B8: Community Investment

EmBS LR ER

General Disclosure

—RBEE

KPI B8.1
MBS RUEIRB8

KPI B8.2
BB ERB8.2

Policies on community engagement to understand
the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities takes into
consideration communities” interests

BROHR2ERTREEMEHERENBREER

RHEE R BHSEMEE

Focus areas of contribution
ErEREE

Resources contributed to the focus areas

EEIRRMIAER

DreamEast Group Limited 2R FEEHR AT

Community
Investment

HEEE

Community
Investment

HRER

Community
Investment

HRER
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance within a sensible framework with
an emphasis on the principles of transparency, accountability
and independence. The board of directors of the Company
(“Board”) believes that good corporate governance is
essential to the success of the Company and to the
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT

In the light of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (“"CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”),
the Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices
of the Company with the adoption of the various enhanced
procedures which are detailed in this report. The Company has
applied the principles of, and complied with, the applicable
code provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31
December 2017 except for certain deviations as specified
with considered reasons for such deviations as explained
below. The Board will review the current practices at least
annually, and make appropriate changes if considered
necessary.

DreamEast Group Limited 2R FEEHR AT

SREARE
ARRIBORYIEER 2 BERGRSKTF
ZERER URARERAE BEELS
VHERRA-ARFESRE ([EFE])MEE
BRZ DEERHARFZKI RIBF R
BEEZRER-

TREATARERELSRS

REBEH SR ZMARARES LR
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SR RAREERES) ([REERT
) EXGCEHNARRAZEEERT
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BER-BRTXEEZETEHRREZR
BETT RSN RELE2017812A31H IEF & -
ARABEEABEEE AT RN —8E
STERAZ TG EFEBHELTFRT
BIOZER - YEER BB RRIELE
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THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises 8 directors (“Directors”) in
total, with 4 Executive Directors (“EDs"”) and 4 Independent
Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”). The composition of the
Board during the year and up to the date of this report is set
out as follows:
EDs: Zhou Zheng (Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)
Lam Yu Yee, Benjamin (Vice Chairman,
appointed on 18 January 2017)
Yang Lei
(appointed on 13 June 2017)
Chan Tak Kwong
Zhu Ling
(resigned on 18 January 2017)
Yang Hongguang
(resigned on 13 June 2017)
Lin Guoxiong
(resigned on 13 June 2017)
Yuan Zhihai
(appointed on 13 June 2017 and
resigned on 13 July 2017)
INEDs: Li Chak Hung
Meng Xiaosu
Yang Buting
Zhao Daxin

The Directors have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other, except
those as set out in the “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” section on pages 27 to 30 of this report.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring Directors
to disclose the number and nature of offices held in
public companies or organisations and other significant
commitments as well as their identity and the time involved
to the issuer, Directors have agreed to disclose their
commitments to the Company in a timely manner.

BOARD PROCESS

During the year, the INEDs provided the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) with a wide range
of expertise and experience. Their active participation in
the Board and committee meetings brought independent
judgment on issues relating to the Group's strategy,
performance and management process, taking into
account the interests of all shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRSE

Exg

ExeHAAkmeRES ([EX=)MAEMK
B RATES (WTEF]) R4BRBIL
IFTES ([BIFTES]) -RFAR
BEARSAHL - EFTEXEHFINWT:

HITEE: AR (FEETBAER)
WA (5L
20171 F18HEZ )
(R2017F6 13 EZT)
BRiEx
y
(R201741 7 18A5HF)
BEY
(R2017F6 5136 BHT)
ME
(R2017F6 5136 BHT)
s
(R2017F6 F13HEZ 1T
TR201747 51385 1F)
BUFHITES: T2k
Faar
BE
BAH

IR IS BN AREF227TEEE0ELZ
[EENERITHRABE—BIS EEZHYL
BUH B REREMEE FEENE
e

EREEERATRGREEZTAHTA
KEEN AR A SABEERLORE
RS REMEREE UREETEH
B K g R e REEC R BER
A A8 2 B 3 B8 1R S ) AR AR o

EEEREF

RER BIFRITEZRAR R LENE
~E) (ehE [AKE D REEZ 2 X ME
R RERB2EEZTGRLEER
& BAEE KR KRR RERREFZEE
RRAUEHIE - YRR AR REAR ([IR
R1)zHz -
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TEERRS

Throughout the year and up to the date of this report, the
Company has had 4 INEDs representing not less than one-
third of the Board. At least one of the INEDs have the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has received from each INED an annual
confirmation of his independence and considers that all of
the INEDs met the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and all the INEDs are independent in
accordance with terms of the guidelines.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as
well as the operation and financial performance of the Group,
and to review and approve the Group’s annual and interim
results and other ad hoc matters which need to be dealt
with. During the year, Board meetings were held and the
individual attendance records of each Director at the meetings
of the Board, Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and general meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2017 are set out below:

REFARBEARE AR/ AAFHE
BARBUFRTES HEFTEAHTD
REDZ— EL—RBIIFNTEEAMH
LERANFEII0EMRE 2 EBEBXER
SETAEEMBEEERNB -EFECEK
EELB I TESRRABY M FE

RE - YRARAEBLIFNTESTHNA
LR RIE3 AR B 1R 5 IR
BRATESI 2T BB IFITESRA S
BIANTLe

EZeFrHRTEE IR ASECBEX
R LA I 18 R A BUER3R - W B R AR S
BN HEEUARENTEEEIERE
EB-RNFAN EEQLRTESELE-M
BREEREE2017F12A31H ILFERITH
FEg FWEES BREZET BREE
g eH MR RNSHE B L E RS
T

Number of meetings attended/held

HE/ BTEELNE
Remuneration Audit Nomination General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Name of Directors EEK? EZg FMZEES EREER REZEE RRAE
EDs: HTES:
Zhou Zheng BB 15/17 - - 2/2 212
Lam Yu Yee, Benjamin MR (R2017F1818H
(appointed on EZ{T)
18 January 2017) 15/16 - - - 2/2
Yang Lei (appointed BE (R2017%6 A13E
on 13 June 2017) BZE) 7110 - - - -
Chan Tak Kwong Bt 1717 - - - 22
Zhu Ling (resigned AE (R2017F1F188
on 18 January 2017) FE) 11 - - - -
Yang Hongguang BEE (R201746 8138
(resigned on ET)
13 June 2017) 417 n - - 0/2
Lin Guoxiong (resigned MBI (7201796 A13R
on 13 June 2017) BE) 47 - - - 0/2
Yuan Zhihai (appointed 58 (1201756 A13H
on 13 June 2017 and BERE UR2017F
resigned on 13 July 2017)  7A13B&T) 12 - - - -
INEDs: BUFHTES:
Li Chak Hung TEE 12017 2/2 313 2/2 2/2
Meng Xiaosu R Ny 212 213 2/2 2/2
Yang Buting BEE 12117 2/2 33 2/2 2/2
Zhao Daxin A 12017 2/2 33 2/2 2/2

DreamEast Group Limited 2R 7S£ B AR Q7]



The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering mainly the Group's overall strategy, annual
operating budget, annual and interim results, approval of
Directors’ appointment or re-appointment (based on the
recommendations made by the Nomination Committee),
material contracts and transactions, corporate governance
as well as other significant policy and financial matters. The
Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the
executive management. The respective functions of the Board
and management of the Company have been formalised and
set out in writing and will be reviewed by the Board from time
to time to ensure that they are consistent with the existing
rules and regulations.

Regular Board meetings each year are scheduled in advance
to facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. At least 14
days’ notice of a Board meeting is normally given to all
Directors who are given an opportunity to include matters
for discussion in the agenda. The company secretary of
the Company (“Company Secretary”) assists the Chairman
in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all
applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The
agenda and the accompanying Board papers are normally
sent to all Directors at least 3 days before the intended date
of a regular Board meeting (and so far as practicable for such
other Board or Board committee meeting). Draft minutes of
each Board meeting are circulated to all Directors for their
comment before being tabled at the following Board meeting
for approval. All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary
and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

According to current Board practice, if a substantial
Shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by
the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The Bye-laws
of the Company (“Bye-Laws"”) also stipulate that save for
the exceptions as provided therein, a Director shall abstain
from voting on any board resolution and not be counted
in the quorum at meetings for approving any contract or
arrangement in which such Director or any of his associates
has a material interest.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and
related materials and has access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary. The Board and each Director also
have separate and independent access to the Company's
senior management. Directors will be continuously updated
on the major development of the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance
and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. In
addition, a written procedure was established in June 2005
to enable the Directors, in discharge of their duties, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at a reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.

DIRECTORS' LIABILITY INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has purchased appropriate and sufficient liability
insurance to indemnify its Directors and senior officers in
respect of legal actions against the Directors and senior
officers.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’'s operations and businesses
as well as his/her responsibilities under statute and common
law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements
and the Company’'s business and governance policies. The
Company also provides Directors with updates on latest
development and changes in the statute and common law, the
Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements and the
Company's business and governance policies from time to
time. The Directors are also provided with regular updates on
the Company's performance, position and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties.

DreamEast Group Limited 2R 7S£ B AR Q7]
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PEERRE
Participation in Continuous Professional Development Activities
SHBESEBRTEY
Attending
trainings/
briefings/
seminars/
conferences
relevant to
Directors’ duties
Reading HEREERE
Regulatory BEME
Updates IGE:A =4
Name of Directors EEpE MEZREH BERE WS
EDs: HITES:
Zhou Zheng [k v v
Lam Yu Yee, Benjamin MR
(appointed on 18 January 2017)  (F2017F1518BE L) v v
Yang Lei 55
(appointed on 13 June 2017) (720176 B13REZE) v v
Chan Tak Kwong PR 122 v v
Zhu Ling KE
(resigned on 18 January 2017) (20171 A18A BHT) v v
Yang Hongguang 15 7% ¥
(resigned on 13 June 2017) (7A20179F6 A13H B fF) v v
Lin Guoxiong R 2
(resigned on 13 June 2017) (201746 A13H & T) v v
Yuan Zhihai EE
(appointed on 13 June 2017 and (201746 A13H
resigned on 13 July 2017) HERT - WH20174F
7A13HEHE) v v
INEDs: BIYFHITES:
Li Chak Hung R v v
Meng Xiaosu & AR v v
Yang Buting HBE= v v
Zhao Daxin AT v v
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ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. There has been a
deviation from this code provision since the appointment of
Mr. Zhou Zheng as the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 27 January
2014. The Board considers this arrangement to be appropriate
for the Company in view of Mr. Zhou Zheng's extensive
experience in the property development industry in the PRC
and his in-depth knowledge of the Group's tourist resorts
and property development operation and business. The Board
believes that a balance of power and authority is adequately
ensured by the operation of the Board which comprises
experienced and high caliber individuals including 4 INEDs.
Nevertheless, the Board will identify an appropriate person to
take up the role of chief executive when necessary.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In June 2005, the Board established and adopted a written
nomination procedure (“Nomination Procedure”) specifying
the process and criteria for the selection and recommendation
of candidates for directorship of the Company. The Chairman
of the Board shall, based on those criteria as set out in the
Nomination Procedure (such as appropriate experience,
personal skills and time commitment, etc.), identify and
recommend the proposed candidate to the Board for approval
of an appointment. The existing Nomination Procedure has
been included in the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee with effect from the establishment of the
Nomination Committee on 20 March 2012.

All INEDs of the Company were appointed for a specific term
of three years, but subject to the relevant provisions of the
Bye-Laws or any other applicable laws whereby the Directors
shall vacate or retire from their office but shall be eligible for
re-election.

According to the Bye-Laws, at each annual general meeting
of the Company ("AGM"), one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation. Further, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until
the next following general meeting of the Company whilst
for those appointed as an addition to the Board shall hold
office until the next following AGM and in both cases, those
Directors shall then be eligible for re-election at the relevant
meeting. Every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance
duties and has adopted the written terms of reference on its
corporate governance functions in April 2012.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate
governance functions include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company's policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’'s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

In 2017 and up to the date of this report, the Board has
performed the corporate governance duties in accordance
with its terms of reference.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including
an Audit Committee, a Nomination Committee and a
Remuneration Committee, each of which has its specific
written terms of reference. Copies of minutes of all meetings
and resolutions of the committees, which are kept by the
Company Secretary, are circulated to all Board members
and the committees are required to report back to the Board
on their decision and recommendations where appropriate.
The procedures and arrangements for a Board meeting,
as mentioned in the section headed “The Board” of this
report, have been adopted for committee meetings so far as
practicable.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 20 March
2012 and is chaired by the Chairman of the Board and
comprises a majority of INEDs. During the year and as at the
date of publication of this report, the Nomination Committee
was made up of 5 members, namely:

Mr. Zhou Zheng (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
Mr. Li Chak Hung

Dr. Meng Xiaosu

Mr. Yang Buting

Mr. Zhao Daxin

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice according to the Company’s
policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
are:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’'s corporate
strategy;

(ii) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;
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(iii) to assess the independence of INEDs; and

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and the Company.

The Nomination Committee will meet as and when necessary
in accordance with its terms of reference and may also deal
with matters by way of circulation. In 2017 two Nomination
Committee meetings were held. In 2017 and up to the date of
this report, the Nomination Committee performed the works
as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and recommended for Board approval the
proposed resolutions for re-election of the retiring
Directors at 2017 AGM;

(ii) reviewed and recommended for Board approval the
proposed resolutions for appointment of new Directors;
and

(iii) reviewed and recommended for Board approval
the renewed terms of appointment of INEDs with
reference to the structure, size and composition of the
Board and the independence of each INED.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a “Board Diversity Policy” in relation
to the nomination and appointment of new Directors, which
provides that the selection of Board candidates shall be based
on a range of diversity perspectives with reference to the
Company’'s business model and specific needs, including
but not limited to gender, age, race, language, cultural
background, educational background, industry experience and
professional experience.

The above measurements were also reviewed and adopted
when the Nomination Committee reviewed the composition
of the Board. After assessing the suitability of the Directors’
skills and experience to the Company’'s business, the
Nomination Committee confirmed that the existing Board was
appropriately structured and no change was required.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has been established since
September 1997.

During the year and as at the date of publication of this report,
the Remuneration Committee comprised of:

Mr. Li Chak Hung (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Dr. Meng Xiaosu
Mr. Yang Buting
Mr. Zhao Daxin
Mr. Yang Hongguang (resigned on 13 June 2017)
Mr. Yuan Zhihai (appointed on 13 June 2017 and
resigned on 13 July 2017)

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice according to the Company's
policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are:

(i) to make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration policy and packages of the Directors
and, where appropriate, to consult the Chairman of
the Board and/or the Chief Executive Officer about the
Remuneration Committee’s proposals relating to the
remuneration of other EDs;

(ii) to review and recommend EDs’ remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals
and objectives;

(iii) to review and recommend the compensation payable to
EDs relating to any loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

(iv)  to review and recommend compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for

misconduct; and

(v) to ensure that no Director is involved in deciding his
own remuneration.
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company are in compliance with the code provision
B.1.2 of the CG Code, but with a deviation from the code
provision that the Remuneration Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of the EDs only and not senior management (as opposed to
EDs and senior management under the code provision). The
reason for the above deviations are summarised as below:

(i) the Board believes that the Remuneration Committee is
not properly in a position to evaluate the performance
of senior management and that this evaluation process
is more effectively carried out by the EDs;

(ii) a majority of Remuneration Committee members are
INEDs who may not be industry skilled and come from
differing professions and backgrounds and they are
not involved in the daily operation of the Company.
They may have little direct knowledge of industry
practice and standard compensation packages. The
Remuneration Committee is thus not in a position to
properly determine the remuneration of the EDs;

(iii) the EDs must be in a position to supervise and control
senior management and thus must be able to control
their compensation; and

(iv) there is no reason for EDs to pay senior management
more than industry standards and thus Shareholders
will benefit by reducing costs in the fixing of such
compensation packages.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year
in accordance with its terms of reference. Two Remuneration
Committee meetings were held in 2017 and the attendance of
each member is set out in the section headed “The Board” of
this report.
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In addition to the Remuneration Committee meeting, the
Remuneration Committee also dealt with matters by way
of circulation during 2017. In 2017 and up to the date of this
report, the Remuneration Committee performed the works as
summarised below:

(i) reviewed the existing policy and structure for the
remuneration of the Directors;

(ii) reviewed the performance of the EDs; and

(iii) reviewed and recommended for the Board’'s approval
the service fees of the Directors (including newly
appointed Directors during the year).

Each Director will be entitled to a Director's fee which is to
be proposed for the Shareholders’ approval at the AGM each
year. Further remuneration payable to Directors (including any
service fees of the INEDs) for their additional responsibilities
and services will depend on their respective contractual
terms under their employment contracts or service contracts
as approved by the Board on the recommendation of
the Remuneration Committee. Details of the Directors’
remuneration are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has been established since September
1997 To retain independence and objectivity, the Audit
Committee is chaired by an INED with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

During the year and as at the date of publication of this report,
the Audit Committee was made up of 4 INEDs, namely:

Mr. Li Chak Hung (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Dr. Meng Xiaosu

Mr. Yang Buting

Mr. Zhao Daxin

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice according to the Company’s policy if
considered necessary.
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The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

to consider and make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
guestions of its resignation or dismissal;

to consider and discuss with the external auditor the
nature and scope of each year’s audit;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing
the Company'’s relations with the external auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditor's
independence and objectivity;

to review the interim and annual consolidated financial
statements before submission to the Board;

to discuss any problems and reservation arising from
the interim review and final audit, and any matters the
external auditor may wish to discuss;

to review the external auditor's management letters
and management’'s response;

to review the Group's financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems;

to review the internal audit plan, ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and ensure
whether the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Group; and

to consider major investigations findings on risk
management and internal control matters and
management’s response.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are revised
from time to time to comply with the code provision C.3.3 of
the CG Code, but with deviations from the code provision of
the audit committee’s responsibility to:

(i)

(ii)

implement policy on the engagement of the external
auditors to supply non-audit services; and

ensure the management has performed its duty to
have effective risk management and internal control
systems.
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The Board considers that the Audit Committee shall
recommend (as opposed to implement) the policy on the
engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit
services for the following reasons:

(i) it is proper and appropriate for the Board and its
committees to develop policy and make appropriate
recommendations;

(ii) the proper and appropriate mechanism for
implementation of such policy and recommendations is
through the Executive Director and management; and

(iii) INEDs are not in an effective position to implement
policy and follow up the same on a day-to-day basis.

Further, the Board considers that the Audit Committee only
possesses the effective ability to scrutinise (as opposed to
ensure) whether management has performed its duty to
have an effective internal control system. Where an internal
audit function exists, the Audit Committee is not equipped to
ensure that the same is in place as this would involve day-to-
day supervision and the employment of permanent experts.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year
in accordance with its terms of reference. Three Audit
Committee meetings were held in 2017 and the attendance of
each member is set out in the section headed “The Board” of
this report.

In addition to the Audit Committee meetings, the Audit
Committee also dealt with matters by way of circulation
during 2017 In 2017 and up to the date of this report, the
Audit Committee performed the works as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees
proposed by the external auditor;
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(ii) reviewed the reports from the external auditor in
relation to the final audit for the year ended 31
December 2016 (“2016 Final Audit”), the interim
results review for the six months ended 30 June 2017
("2017 Interim Review") and the final audit for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (“2017 Final Audit”) of the
Group;

(iii) reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval
the financial reports for the year ended 31 December
2016, for the six months ended 30 June 2017 and for
the year ended 31 December 2017;

(iv) reviewed the effectiveness of internal control system
and risk management, including reviewed the internal
control review reports from the independent internal
control reviewer;

(v) reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval
the report on substantiation of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget; and

(vi) reviewed and recommended for the Board's annual
review the Related Party Transaction Policies and
Procedures, the Connected Transaction Policy and the
Whistle Blower Policy.

COMPANY SECRETARY

For the year ended 31 December 2017 in compliance with
Rule 3.28 of Listing Rules, the Company's existing Company
Secretary (the “Company Secretary”) is a full-time employee
of the Company and familiar with the ordinary affairs of the
Company. The Company Secretary is responsible for giving
advice to the Board on corporate governance matters in order
to assist the Group to cope with the changing regulatory
environment and to suit different commercial needs. Details
of the Company Secretary are set out in the section headed
“Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

For the year ended 31 December 2017 the Company
Secretary had complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by
taking no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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MODEL CODES FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
All Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry
by the Company, that they have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31 December 2017.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code as the
Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees to
regulate dealings in the securities of the Company by certain
employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries who are
considered to be likely in possession of inside information in
relation to the Company or its securities. No incident of non-
compliance of the Model Code by the Relevant Employees
was noted by the Company.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to present
a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of
the Group's performance, position and prospects in the
consolidated financial statements of the annual and interim
reports in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. Pursuant to Code Provision
C.1.1 of the CG Code, the management provided such
explanation and information to the Board to enable the Board
to make an informal assessment of the financial and other
information put before the Board for approval. The Directors
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2017 the Directors have selected
appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistently,
and have made judgements and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable.

The Group has announced its interim results and annual
results in a timely manner within the limits of two months
and three months respectively after the end of the relevant
financial periods, as laid down in the Listing Rules.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to maintain appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems
in order to safeguard the interest of the Group and the
Shareholders, review and monitor the effectiveness of the
internal control and risk management systems on a regular
basis to ensure that the systems in place are adequate.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems
comprise, among others, the relevant financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management procedures,
a well-established organisational structure with clearly
defined lines of responsibility and authority. Each department
is accountable for its daily operations and is required to
implement the business strategies and policies adopted by
the Board from time to time.

The Company has the procedures and internal controls for
the handling and dissemination of inside information. In
practice, employees of the Group who become aware of
any events and/or matters which he/she consider potentially
inside information, will report to the designated personnel
of the Company who, if considered appropriate, will pass
such information to the Board for the purpose of considering
and deciding whether or not such information constitutes
inside information and disclosure of which shall be made
immediately.

The internal audit department of the Company supported the
Board and the Audit Committee in reviewing the effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems and
performed its functions during the year following an annual
audit plan and submitting their reports of their findings to the
Board and the Audit Committee at the meetings. The Audit
Committee provides independent review on effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and gives their recommendation to the Board. The
Board is responsible for reviewing the internal audit report
and approving policies and procedures designed by the
management.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRSE

BEREERERABEE
EERARARBAERARNEREE
T PSR EE 2 B - DAAR I A5 SR B 2 AR R PO
5 W REBNHEL AR E R
I MOB R - DARRIR B S T 5 o

AEBNRBREREMAREEHERREAH
BT EE M RES AR ERERIZF
AR B AR E B X MR e E MRS
F-RUMBEEHARERE LEARTES
BN R A RSB MR

RARIRBAREENEMANRHENERF
EAMEE - RETH EXAKERESE
EAEH R IFERERZ REEREHE
B ZEEHRARRIEEABER M
ERABRARER BHNESSRRZAH
HENHEERREBRBEEREBAAR
H R AN 4 B

ARRINBEZIFIXFHEFEMESZERE
SEMEREIELARPEIERRALIE
WRAFEERFEEZEIETEREE
YHE LRAEFEREFREA @I EERN
HE - ERZ B AKEEREE AR
ERFRGNAMIEFL B R ARAESR
SRENENEZ EFSATRIANE
S MAERE IR BRI R LI -

Annual Report 2017 F 3§

13



74

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRS

The Board conducted a review and assessment of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems and procedures during the financial year
ended 31 December 2017 by way of discussions with the
management of the Group, members of the Audit Committee
and the external independent auditor.

The Board believes that the existing risk management and
internal control systems are adequate and effective. The Board
also reviewed the resources, qualification and experience
of staff of the Group's accounting and financial reporting
function and their training schemes and budget and was
satisfied with their adequacy.

The Board also assessed the effectiveness of the Group's
internal audit function and external audit process, and
satisfied itself, through the work of its Audit Committee, that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and is
effective at providing assurance to the Board on the relevant
risks faced by the Company, and that the external audit
process is effective.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Group in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities to
ensure that the financial statements of the Group are
published in a timely manner.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to
carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval. The
Company provides all members of the Board with monthly
updates on Company's performance, positions and prospects.

The reporting responsibilities of our Company's external

auditor on the financial statements of the Group are set out in
the “Independent Auditor's Report” in this report.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Group's
external auditors, and non-audit services, is set out as
follows:
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HK$'000
FAET

Services rendered for the Group M A E R AR
Audit services 2% B R 7% 2,034
Non-audit services IEZERTS 754
Total: At 2,788

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication
with the Shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is
disseminated to the Shareholders in a timely manner through
a number of formal channels, which include interim and
annual reports, announcements and circulars. Such published
documents together with the latest corporate information and
news are also made available on the website of the Company
at www.dreameast.com and the website of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) at www.
hkexnews.hk.

The Company's AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to
communicate directly with the Shareholders. The Chairman
actively participates at the AGM and personally chairs the
meeting to answer any question from the Shareholders.
The chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee or in their absence,
another member of the respective committees or failing
that their respective duly appointed delegate, are also
available to answer questions at the AGM. The chairman
of any independent board committee formed as necessary
or pursuant to the Listing Rules (or if no such chairman is
appointed, at least a member of the independent board
committee) will also be available to answer questions at any
general meeting of the Shareholders to approve a connected
transaction or any other transaction that is subject to
independent Shareholders’ approval.
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The 2017 AGM was held on 2 June 2017 The attendance
records of the Directors at the general meeting are set out in
the section headed “The Board” of this report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings
for each substantial issue, including the re-election of retiring
Directors.

The notice to Shareholders is to be sent, in the case of AGM,
at least 20 clear business days before the AGM and to be
sent at least 10 clear business days in the case of all other
general meetings. An explanation of the detailed procedures
of conducting a poll is provided to the Shareholders at the
commencement of the meeting. The Chairman answers
questions from Shareholders regarding voting by way of a
poll. The poll results are published in the manner prescribed
under the requirements of the Listing Rules.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company can request the convening of a special
general meeting according to Bye-law 58 of the Bye-Laws and
Section 74(1) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (“Act”)
by written requisition, with the stated business proposed to
be transacted, which must be validly served at the head office
and principal place of business of the Company registered
in Hong Kong (“Head Office”). Besides, Shareholders may
make a proposal at a Shareholders’ meeting by submitting it
in written form to the Board at the Head Office in the form
of a proposed resolution, which shall be clearly and concisely
set out the proposal for discussion and be relevant to the
Company's business scope.

The Board established a shareholders’ communication policy.
A Shareholder may serve an enquiry to the Board at our
Head Office for the attention of the Board in written form,
which shall state the nature of the enquiry and the reason
for making the enquiry. In addition, Shareholders can contact
Tricor Tengis Limited, the share registrar of the Company, for
any questions about their shareholdings.

Furthermore, to foster two-way communication amongst
the Company, its Shareholders and potential investors,
and to update them abreast of the latest industry updates,
corporate communications and the Group's announcements
and business development in a timely manner, the Company
has appointed two investor relation professionals as a formal
channel to respond to enquiries from Shareholders and the
public.
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CORPORATE COMMUNICATION AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The major task and objective of the Group’s investor relations
is to clearly introduce the Group, including the business
positioning, existing operations and future development of
the Group, to the media, Shareholders, investors, analysts
and investment banks through different communication
channels. In future, the Group shall further enhance
communication with the media, Shareholders, investors,
analysts and investment banks on various aspects such as
development strategies, operation and management, financial
prospects and business operation through meetings, senior
management’s participation in investor forums, conferences
and roadshows. The Group is confident in establishing
and maintaining a good relationship with the international
capital institutions through the continued enhancement of
information transparency.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There had been no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2017

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter
of applying and complying with the CG Code of the Stock
Exchange but also about promoting and developing an ethical
and healthy corporate culture. We will continue to review and,
where appropriate, improve our current practices on the basis
of our experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any
views and suggestions from our Shareholders to promote and
improve our transparency are also welcome.

On behalf of the Board

Zhou Zheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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The board of directors of the Company (“"Board”) presents
its annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries at 31 December 2017 are
set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group's principal
activities as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance, including a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business, can be found in
the Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 7
to 26 of this annual report. No important event affecting the
Group has occurred since the end of the financial year under
review.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on pages 98 to 99 and in the
accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend (2016: Nil) or a special dividend (2016: Nil) for the
year ended 31 December 2017. Details are set out in note 12
to the consolidated financial statements.

CLOSURE OF REGISTERS OF MEMBERS

FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND VOTE
AT THE FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE
COMPANY (“2018 AGM")

The 2018 AGM is scheduled to be held on 1 June 2018. For
determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2018
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 28 May 2018 to 1 June 2018 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be
registered. In order for a Shareholder to be eligible to attend
and vote at the 2018 AGM, all transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited of Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
25 May 2018.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities (including
both continuing and discontinued operations) of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited consolidated financial statements and reclassified/

MBEENBE

TXAHARSE DA EBEA G
RRUEBESHHR EN25| 2 AEE
RBEAANBFEZ EEREERARY
HE (BEFARERILEEEY) AHE

restated as appropriate, is set out below. This summary

does not form part of the audited consolidated financial

AT BRAEE LA GTERE 2 — 315 -

statements.
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
20174 20164 20154 20144 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET FET TET FAET
(Restated) (Restated)
(i&=5)) (&&7))
RESULTS £
REVENUE KA 1,278,298 83,754 140,472 99,016 142,507
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE BRABHA
INCOME TAX R (BE) 222,735 179,411 870,259 (154,630) 30,333
INCOME TAX EXPENSE FERAX (95,804) (129,859) (256,015) (45) (1,529)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FORTHEYEAR &2 REHE AER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS FREAN/ (B1R)
OF THE COMPANY 115,575 39,741 547200 (143,597) 28,804
31 December
128310
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
20175 201645 2015% 20144 2013%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEL FTET THEL FTAET
(Restated) (Restated)
(BE7) (IBE75))
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BEE 11,217,361 10,205,737 7,978,433 6,298,517 2,856,290
Total liabilities 8,162,285 7396,411 5,187,104 4,858,359 1,271,690
Total equity 3,055,076 2,809,326 2,791,329 1,440,158 1,684,600
Total liabilities and total equity BEERERES 11,217,361 10,205,737 7,978,433 6,298,517 2,856,290
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of
the Group during the year are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

Details of movements in the properties under development
for sale of the Group during the year are set out in note 19 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, WARRANTS AND SHARE
OPTIONS

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

There were no outstanding warrants and share options
throughout the year.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected and related transactions undertaken
in the ordinary course of business by the Group during the
year are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements. Saved as disclosed therein, none of these related
party transactions constitutes a connected transaction or a
continuing connected transaction of the Group as defined in
and required to be disclosed under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Group confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

As detailed in the Company’'s announcement dated 9
October 2017 and note 39(D) to these consolidated financial
statements, on 9 October 2017, the Group has entered into
a tenancy agreement with Sanhe SkyOcean, a company held
as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng, pursuant to which Sanhe
SkyOcean, the owner of the Park, will lease the aforesaid
premise to the Group with the lease term from 9 October
2017 to 31 December 2019. The rental expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and the years ending 31 December
2018 and 2019 are approximately HK$500,000, HK$2,300,000
and HK$3,500,000, respectively.
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The aforesaid continuing connected transaction was
exempted from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement and was approved by the Directors (other than
Mr. Zhou Zheng), including the independent non-executive
Directors on 9 October 2017.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to perform certain
agreed upon procedures in respect of the continuing
connected transactions of the Group. The auditor has reported
their factual findings on these procedures to the Board.
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the continuing connected transactions and the report of the
auditor, and have confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into by the Company in the ordinary course of its
business, on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favorable than terms available to or from independent third
parties, and in accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable
and in the interest of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The auditors have confirmed that nothing has come to their
attention that caused them to believe that the continuing
connected transactions: (1) have not been approved by the
Board; (2) were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the
transactions; and (3) have exceeded the annual caps.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-laws of the Company or the laws of Bermuda which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing Shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 102 to 104
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017 the Company's reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981 (as amended from time to time),
amounted to approximately HK$1,640,030,000 (2016:
HK$1,771,914,000).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company (“Directors”) during the year
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Zhou Zheng
Lam Yu Yee, Benjamin (appointed on 18 January 2017)
Yang Lei (appointed on 13 June 2017)
Chan Tak Kwong
Zhu Ling (resigned on 18 January 2017)
Yang Hongguang (resigned on 13 June 2017)
Lin Guoxiong (resigned on 13 June 2017)
Yuan Zhihai (appointed on 13 June 2017
and resigned on 13 July 2017)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Li Chak Hung

Meng Xiaosu

Yang Buting

Zhao Daxin

In accordance with the Company's Bye-law 86(2), Mr. Yang Lei
shall hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws 87(1) and (2), Mr.
Zhou Zheng, Mr. Chan Tak Kwong and Mr. Li Chak Hung retire
from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM")
has an unexpired service contract with the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, every Director or other
officers of the Company acting in relation to any of the affairs
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which he may incur or sustain in or about the execution of his
duties in his office. The Company has arranged appropriate
insurance cover in respect of legal action against its Directors
and officers.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year under
review.
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TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs"”) were
appointed for a specific term of three years but subject to the
relevant provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company or any
other applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or
retire from their office.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017 Mr. Zhou Zheng, had the following
interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
and its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO:

Number of shares
and underlying
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Approximate % of
the relevant issued

Name of Director Name of company shares held share capital Nature of interests
BEROR EERERTREAZ

EEpnsg DR AR HERLHE R ERN EEiME

Zhou Zheng the Company (Note 1) 461,392,004 175.29% Interest of controlled

B AR (MFE) corporation

REHEE 2z BR

Notes: Fft 5% -

1. This includes interests in (i) 182,903,181 shares of the Company, 1. FZREBERIREEBRAERAR ([RF
and (i) convertible bonds (upon exercise of the conversion rights BE] RAREABRAAZEZENBR

attached to which, 278,488,823 shares will be alloted and issued by
the Company) of the Company held by SkyOcean Investment Holdings
Limited (“SkyOcean Investment”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Knowledge Silicon Valley Limited. Knowledge Silicon Valley Limited
was owned as to 80% by Sheng Bang Holdings Limited (“Sheng
Bang"), which in turn was wholly-owned by Mr. Zhou Zheng. By virtue
of the SFO, each of Mr. Zhou Zheng, Sheng Bang and Knowledge
Silicon Valley Limited was deemed to be interested in the shares and

underlying shares owned by SkyOcean Investment.

2. All interests stated above represent long positions.

A B Z ()42 F182,903,181M% A% 1+ &
(i) AR E S (RREMTIRAR TR - A
AN A B B N 3 17278,488,823[% B 10 ) © &1
NEABRARHBERIERER AR (B
B) (BEABEE2EHS)HEA80% 2 E
moRIBEF RBEEN - BBREE B R
MREAARATSAREERKFIRERE
BzBRORBERG PR ER-

2. FiE Lt mis e -

Annual Report 2017 £



84

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ExEgE

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2017 none of the
then Directors and chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business
that competes or competed or is or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the Group's business at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2017 and as at the
date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which the Directors had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

During the year and as at 31 December 2017 none of the
Directors of the Company had any personal interests in the
options to subscribe for shares in the Company's former
ultimate holding company, AGL, granted under the share
option scheme of AGL nor in the warrants of the Company's
former direct holding company, APL, to subscribe for the
shares of APL.

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS® AND OTHER

PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2017 the following Shareholders had
interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section

336 of the SFO:
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Number of shares
and underlying

Approximate % of
the relevant issued

Name of shareholders Nature of interests shares held share capital Notes
FEROR EERERTREZ
REZHE BHME HERGEA BABAH i &
Knowledge Silicon Valley Limited Interest of controlled corporation 461,392,004 175.29% 1
HEABRAR REtEE 2 ER
Sheng Bang Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 461,392,004 175.29% 1
(“Sheng Bang”)
BRERARAF REHEE BR
(T&#1)
Zhou Zheng Interest of controlled corporation 461,392,004 175.29% 1
B REHEEz ER
Notes: B &
1. This includes interests in (i) 182,903,181 shares of the Company, 1. ZEEBREXFRE (BMREAERARZ
and (i) convertible bonds (upon exercise of the conversion rights 2EWEBRAR)FAE Z()A 2R RE182,903,181

attached to which, 278,488,823 shares will be alloted and issued
by the Company) of the Company held by SkyOcean Investment,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Knowledge Silicon Valley Limited.
Knowledge Silicon Valley Limited was owned as to 80% by Sheng
Bang, which in turn was wholly-owned by Mr. Zhou Zheng. By virtue
of the SFO, each of Mr. Zhou Zheng, Sheng Bang and Knowledge
Silicon Valley Limited was deemed to be interested in the shares and

underlying shares owned by SkyOcean Investment.

2. All interests stated above represent long positions.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS UNDER RULE 13.18 OF THE
LISTING RULES

The Group entered into subscription agreements containing
covenants relating to specific performance of the controlling
shareholders of the Company which were subject to
announcement disclosure under Rule 13.18 of the Listing
Rules and requirements of disclosure in this annual report
under Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules, the details of which are
set out below:

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Convertible
Bonds | and the Bonds | and Il, which details are set out
in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements, at all
times throughout the terms of the Convertible Bonds | and
the Bonds | and II, (a) the controlling shareholders, namely
SkyOcean Investment and Mr. Zhou Zheng, shall maintain an
aggregate beneficial ownership (directly or indirectly) of not
less than 51% in the issued share capital of the Company on
a Fully-Diluted Basis; (b) SkyOcean Investment shall not (i)
exercise any of its rights to convert all or any portion of the
Charged Existing CB into Shares; and (i) amend any terms or
conditions of the Existing CB Sale and Purchase Agreement,
the Existing CB Terms and Conditions, the Uncharged Existing
CB Terms and Conditions and the Charged Existing CB Terms
and Conditions; and (c) Mr. Zhou Zheng shall remain as a
Director and the Chairman of the Company. A breach of such
covenants constitutes an Event of Default.

As at the date of this annual report, (a) SkyOcean Investment
and Mr. Zhou Zheng beneficially owns approximately 69.49%
of the issued share capital of the Company; (b) SkyOcean
Investment has not (i) exercised any of its rights to convert
all or any portion of the Charged Existing CB into Shares;
and (i) amended any terms or conditions of the Existing CB
Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Existing CB Terms and
Conditions, the Uncharged Existing CB Terms and Conditions
and the Charged Existing CB Terms and Conditions; and (c)
Mr. Zhou Zheng remains as a Director and the Chairman of
the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group has endeavored to comply with laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection and adopted
effective environmental measures to ensure that the
conducting of the Group's business meets the applicable
construction standards and ethics in respect of environmental
protection.

The Group adheres to environmental sustainability from
office throughout the property portfolio. As a responsible
developer, the Group strives to ensure minimal environmental
impacts by carefully managing its energy consumption,
water usage, property design and waste production. In
addition, we engaged construction contractors with sound
environmental protection and safety track records and have
closely monitored the project at every stage to ensure the
construction process is in compliance with environmental
protection and safety laws and regulations, and would require
construction contractors to immediately resolve any defect or
noncompliance, where necessary. For further details, please
refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence
to applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those
have significant impact on the Group. The Audit Committee
is delegated by the Board to monitor the Group's policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and such policies are regularly reviewed. Any
changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations are
brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operation units from time to time.

As far as the Company is aware, the Group has complied
in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
which have a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2017
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP’S
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
WORKPLACE QUALITY

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and does not
discriminate on the basis of personal characteristics. With an
aim to enhancing the quality of the Board's performance by
diversity, the board diversity policy was adopted. Details of
such board diversity policy are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report — Board Diversity Policy”.
Further, the Group has employee handbooks outlining terms
and conditions of employment, expectations for employees’
conduct and behaviour, employees’ rights and benefits. The
Group establishes and implements policies that promote a
harmony and respectful workplace.

The Group provides on the-job training and development
opportunities to enhance its employees’ career progression.
Through different trainings, staff's professional knowledge
in corporate operations, occupational and management skills
are enhanced. The Group also organised charitable and staff-
friendly activities for employees, such as annual dinner, to
promote staff relationship.

The Group provides a safe, effective and congenial
working environment. Adequate arrangements, trainings
and guidelines are implemented to ensure the working
environment is healthy and safe. The Group provided health
and safety communications for employees to present the
relevant information and raise awareness of occupational
health and safety issues.

The Group values the health and well-being of its staff.

In order to provide employees with health coverage, its
employees are entitled to medical insurance benefits.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP’S OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group maintains good relationships with existing and
potential customers as understanding of the market trends
would enable the Group to monitor and review the credit
quality of the customers and timely adjust its operating
strategies, which are crucial to the development and success
of the Group. The Group places effort to build up and
maintain good relationships with various commercial banks
and financial institutions as the businesses of the Group
are capital intensive nature and require on-going funding to
maintain continuous growth.

During the year ended 31 December 2017 there was no
material and significant dispute between the Group and its
financial institutions and/or customers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Details of the Directors’ and senior management emoluments
and of the five highest paid individuals in the Group are
set out in notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments payable to Directors will depend on their
respective contractual terms under their employment
contracts or service contracts as approved by the Board
on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee,
having regard to the Company's operating results, individual's
performance and comparable market statistics.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the
Group's five largest customers accounted for 3.61% of
the Group's total revenue for the year and the revenue
attributable to the Group's largest customer included therein
amounted to 1.13%. The aggregate purchases attributable
to the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 31.83%
of the Group's total purchases for the year. The purchases
attributable to the Group's largest supplier amounted to
12.28% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more than
5% of the Company’'s issued share capital, had a beneficial
interest in any of the Group's five largest customers or
suppliers.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's shares on
the Stock Exchange during the year ended 31 December 2017.

DONATIONS

The Group made no charitable donations during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 55 to 77

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is
confirmed that a sufficient public float of more than 25% of
the issued capital of the Company has been maintained as at
the date of this report and at all times during the year ended
31 December 2017

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the reporting period are set out in
note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Company has appointed Messrs, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) as auditors of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual

general meeting to re-appoint Deloitte as the auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhou Zheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DREAMEAST GROUP LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS SKYOCEAN INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED)

ERFREERAF (ABXFERZRARAF)

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of DreamEast Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 98 to 236, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and

RREETEE

RS E FRERBAITHERHE  RA
HBARAHUBREANECR/EENST
He BLERNANTTEZE HMEHRER R
AT RRSRERE AT TG L FRER
BIUBR-

in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

HRgET SR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FOEEAFNNEEERETER

Valuation of investment properties

BREWMRZEE

We identified the valuation of investment
properties as a key audit matter because the
valuation process is based on an estimation
of future results, a set of assumptions and
a determination of key inputs, which are
judgmental. Any changes to these inputs may
have a significant impact on the fair value.
Management determined the fair value of the
Group's investment properties at 31 December
2017 with the assistance of an independent
external valuer.

RITHEREMENGEI REREAFIE BRMA
BERBEDERERREENMGE WK —RIE
fRE% -~ HET R B R ABNEE ZERAB2E
MEBHAESHAABEENEATE -EBE
EBUINBETERN 2B TEE BEEEN20174F
12A3MBEREMEZ AAEE

Details of the investment properties and the
related key estimation uncertainty are set out in
notes 20 and 5, respectively, to the consolidated
financial statements.
REMEFBREBEEFZMATEELED RIERE
BF R SRR M 3E20 15 »
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Our procedures in relation to management’s

valuation of investment properties included:

AR EEBHREMELTHEZERAEFEE:

e FEvaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the external valuer engaged by the
management;
AEEREEZRENINDTGAEEEE G R
BE

e Obtaining a copy of valuation report prepared
by the external valuer and discussing with
the external valuer together with our internal
valuation specialists to understand the basis of
determination of valuation;

HR 15 51 B 3T fik B A B 10 ST b SR 5 BIAS - FIRTTEH A
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e Challenging the external valuer the
methodologies and judgments used in valuing
the investment properties with the assistance of
our internal valuation specialists and obtaining
the market evidence that the external valuer
used to support the key inputs; and
EARTASEESERKA W T - E &N BTk AD &
BT HER TR A8 7 A R FAE - WES
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e Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures
of the fair value measurement of investment
properties including the fair value measurement
hierarchy, the valuation technique and significant
unobservable inputs in the consolidated financial
statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS - continued

Key audit matter
R EEIR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BUGBAHE

FARETEE-&

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AITHEBS PN MEERARETER

Revenue recognised of property sales

MEHEZCHEIRA

We identified the revenue from sales of
properties as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the amount and volume of sales
transactions recognised during the year.
ARFANERZHERH S ERBECHBER
M RITIREEMEMSRAS REHRETEER

Details of revenue from sales of properties are
set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

HEMEMBRAZFBEN A G HRKRM 6 -

Our procedures in relation to revenue from sales of
properties included:

RIREENEABRAZEBIEFEHE:

e Testing key internal controls over revenue
recognition on a sampling basis;

AR S WA TE R 2 BB MR IE I

e Selecting property sales transactions on a
sampling basis and:

MEERYXHER S K

e reading the signed sales and purchase
agreements to understand the relevant terms
of the timing of property delivery and title
transfer.
HEDRITEE MR N TRYEINRER
EE o RRZ Iz BERR -

e obtaining evidence regarding the property
delivery and title transfer.

EREBMEINRERERZBRIE-

e reconciling the monetary amounts
of recorded transactions and related
payments to the signed sales and purchase

agreements.
KELHBRHGZ BN REERTEE RS

BN FETHER -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYGBARE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

DreamEast Group Limited 2R 7S£ B AR Q7]
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the content of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BAGBAHE

BB AT E S O I I AR R
EHEE

AT B R REAHMBERRES T FHER
HEFk SR MG B A B A R EUS
BERFRE  WHABREATERNZEER
e AMETIRBEARERREFIERER
ERRRELRE LEELMAE AT
TERAREANRREFAEMA LR LK
BEMEERER - @ BZE KT HZ
& ETRERERBBENENETHERZ
ER—EAFERRMFAER BRI - 3R
PR AT KRR SR FREE A - IR A IR TEHH
BEYERRERAZESHUBREERE
RIBZE B OF R M L A ERTE RS -
AR D E A RBR AL

AITRBEBEFEANATECNIIEZ
— RERBERHAE REFEFXIEE AT
N

o B MFHEBEREFFRERMEHA
I BRERFEE AT RR AR -
WAt MTITEZIR P AR X AR -
ARERFTRMEENEERE 1
RATERMER - AR EFFERI 8L
KEBR & BFRER  ERR
EEANRES BN R ReE#HR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYGBARE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
— continued

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

DreamEast Group Limited 2R 7S£ B AR Q7]
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
— continued

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Yam Siu Man.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2018

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BUGBAHE
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EHNEE-&
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CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EHEsRHEMDGE NS &

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

2017 2016
20174 20164
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FBT FET
(Restated)
(4&£E5))
Continuing operations FEREER
Revenue WA 6 1,278,298 30,200
Cost of sales and services SHE R ARF KA (846,448) (28,901)
Gross profit EH 431,850 1,299
Other gains and losses Hith s K B8 8 53,770 (43,057)
Other income HaUA 8,738 172
Gain on fair value change of HEMEARBEZS
investment properties Wiz 20 51,616 511,483
Selling expenses HEER (59,627) (64,672)
Administrative expenses TER (107,109) (77,481)
Finance costs Wi%EHA 9 (156,503) (154,823)
Profit before tax Rt A& A 222,735 172,921
Income tax expense i3 10 (95,804) (129,862)
Profit for the year from REFRASEEKZ
continuing operations FRER 11 126,931 43,059
Discontinued operations DRI REER
Profit for the year from REDHKRIEREEEE 2
discontinued operations F N F) 13 - 6,493
Profit for the year F s T 126,931 49,552
Other comprehensive Hitir & WA~ (BX) :
income/(expense):
Item that will not be reclassified HZFEEHIB/EEHE 2
subsequently to profit or loss: HE:
Exchange differences on translation # & 525 E¥ELS 2
to presentation currency PE 5 =% 157,738 (157,550)
Items that may be reclassified HESEEHIEREREZ
subsequently to profit or loss: HE:
Exchange differences on MEBINETE TSk
translation of foreign operations EACIERERE (25,497) 21,279
Reclassification adjustment-transfer B D EFAZ-RNHE
translation reserve to profit or BB A R n e
loss upon disposal of subsidiaries fEEZ B - 5,781
(25,497) 27,060
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EHERERAMGEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

2017 2016
20174 2016%F
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7 FEx AT
(Restated)
($LE7)
Profit for the year attributable AATHEE AEEFREF
to owners of the Company
— from continuing operations —REBFELEHES 115,575 33,248
— from discontinued operations — KB BRI EFETE - 6,493
115,575 39,741
Profit for the year attributable FEiEH R R ERER
to non-controlling interests
— from continuing operations —REBFELEHES 11,356 9,811
11,356 9,811
Total comprehensive income/ FREFEEWE(FX)
(expense) for the year W 259,172 (80,938)
Attributable to: EEN:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NSIEZE DN 247,816 (87,852)
Non-controlling interests FEPES) i 11,356 6,914
259,172 (80,938)
Earnings per share BREF 16
From continuing and REFELER
discontinued operations BARIEREEK
— Basic —HRK HK$0.4394/8 T HK$0.1524/8 7T
— Diluted —#E HK$0.413058 7T HK$0.1522/8 7T
From continuing operations REFELSEER
- Basic — &K HK$0.439478 T  HK$0.1275/% T
— Diluted —8E HK$0.4130/%8 7t  HK$0.1273% T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

S i B 3% K R =

At 31 December 2017 72201712 B31H

2017 2016
20174 20164
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
P aE FERT FET
(Restated)
(&E5))
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment e E R =Y 17 46,346 18,759
Prepaid lease payments TEfSHERIEA 18 53,648 -
Investment properties HEYHE 20 5,724,876 5,167218
Other long term assets HEmREEE 23 181,519 14,189
6,006,389 5,200,166
Current assets REBEE
Properties under development BRPSEDE
for sale 19 1,883,976 2,093,097
Completed properties held for sale DR IFEYE 956,040 403,325
Inventories FE 126 326
Trade receivables E 5 REWGIR 21 8,455 4,631
Other receivables, HEmEWEIE - -Ee &k
deposits and prepayments B FA 22 678,913 992,740
Amounts due from related JE Uk B B R SR IE
companies 39(f)(i) 5,913 -
Pledged bank deposits BEIPIRITFR 1,793 3,589
Other current assets HmEh e E 23 272,633 462,371
Bank balances and cash RITHEBARS 24 1,403,123 1,045,492
5,210,972 5,005,571
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables and %%&E@Jﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ&
accruals TEIR KT 25 678,864 922,651
Amounts due to related companies JEfIE 5?’2\ FRIE 39(f)(ii) 433,762 201,602
Tax payable FEGFRIE 46,313 1,841
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER
— due within one year ——F NI 26 850,136 1,218,040
2,009,075 2,344,134
Net current assets REEEFE 3,201,897 2,661,437
Total assets less current liabilities R EERB KB ARG 9,208,286 7.861,603
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBAE 28 389,156 351,193
Bank and other borrowings RITNEMEE
- due after one year ——F1EFH 26 3,627,711 2,768,771
Convertible bonds and bonds AMRES RES 27 2,136,343 1,932,313
6,153,210 5,052,277
NET ASSETS BEEFE 3,055,076 2,809,326
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

O BMRR R

At 31 December 2017 722017412 831H

2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Restated)
(& E5)
Equity s

Share capital [N 26,322 26,222
Reserves e 3,010,673 2,720,619

Equity attributable to owners of RAEHER AR
the Company 3,036,995 2,746,841
Non-controlling interests FEVE I 1 M 2 18,081 62,485
TOTAL EQUITY 4R 3,055,076 2,809,326

The consolidated financial statements on pages 98 to 236
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 29 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

ZHOU ZHENG
DIRECTOR
A
BF

%98E 2368 A B R F A 2018FF3 29
AgEEeERRETE XA TIES

CHAN TAK KWONG
DIRECTOR
BREEK
BF
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CONSOUIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EHExZENE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

AAAEEARGRER
Equity
Convertible attributable
Statutory bonds  Exchange to non-
Share Share surplus Other equity translation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
FEHMN
R EER# 2t TRKRES  HERD RE EREL 3
B& HE e #E  ERRE 1 BR @t | 53 ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FER TER TER TER TER TER FER TER TiEn
(note a)
(Fitta)
At 1 January 2017 m2017%F1 A1A
(As originally stated) (R%2528) 26,222 336,039 100,106 (634,332) 1,327,718 (244,916) 1838916 2,749,753 62,485 2,812,238
Combination of a subsidiary AR T
under common control (note 2) WEAR (KzF2) - - - 7,360 - 68 (10,340) (2912) - (2912)
At 1 January 2017 (Restated) m2017F1 A1A
(&E51) 26,222 336,039 100,106 (626,972) 1,327,718 (244,848)  1,828576 2,746,841 62,485 2,809,326
Profit for the year FRET - - - - - - 115,575 115,575 11,356 126,931
Exchange differences on translation MEEE 7 EXEH - - - - - 132,241 - 132,241 - 132,241
Total comprehensive income FRNGENEEE
for the year - - - - - 132,241 115,575 2473816 11,356 259,172
Combination of a subsidiary AR T
under common control (note 2) WEAR (KF2) - - - (7.360) - - - (7.360) - (7,360)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34)  WE—FMBAF
(F34) = = = (2,254) = = = (2,254) = (2,254)
Acquisition of additional interestin WL RREZ
Beijing SkyOcean (note b) BoMEs (th) - - 3,676 2,321 - (699) 38,440 43,738 (55,157) (11,419)
Acquisition of additional interestin BRI RA$LE 2
Beijing SkyOcean Comb+ (note o) ESMER (Fific) - - - (34,009) - - - (34,009) (603) (34,612
Deemed contribution on disposal of a i &—FHBARZ
subsidiary (note 35) (note ¢ RIEER (MEE35)
(GED) - - - 30,257 - - - 30,257 - 30,257
Issue of shares upon conversion of AR E% EE K
convertible bonds (note 27) BB (MER27) 100 11,900 - - (34) - - 11,966 - 11,966
Transfer to reserve HATHE - - 24,098 - - - (24,098) - - -
At 31 December 2017 120175124318 26,322 347,939 127,880 (638,017) 1,327,684 (113,306) 1,958,493 3,036,995 18,081 3,055,076
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EHEREHR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

NG PN 3
Equity
Convertible attributable
Statutory bonds  Exchange to non-
Share Share surplus Other equity translation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
FERIE
Ry EERH £ wERES  NERD ®a BRER B
BA H(E il fE  ERRE i il st i a%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FHL FHL FHL FHL T FisT Fib T Tt T
(note a)
(GED))
At 1 January 2016 1201651 318
(As originally stated) (REZTIEE) 24,646 259,584 67974 (643,958 1327718  (116,173) 1,803,329 2,723,120 69,062 2,792,182
Combination of a subsidiary AHRA—EH TR
under common control (note 2)  MBAA (Ffi2) - - - 3,805 - 33) (4,625) (853) - (853)
At 1 January 2016 (Restated) 7201651318
(EE7) 24,646 259,584 67974 (640,153)  1,327718 (116,206) 1,798,704 2,722,267 69,062 2,791,329
Profit for the year (Restated) FRER (LE5) - - - - - - 39,741 39,741 9,811 49,552
Reclassification adjustment Exim L
~ transfer translation reserve ~REENBARE
to profit or loss upon disposal BRMERES
of subsidiaries (note 35) B3 (M3E35) - - - - - 5,781 - 5,781 - 5,781
Exchange differences on translation BB EE 7 [EX £
(Restated) (&E7)) - - - - - (13337) - (13337)  (2,897)  (136,271)
Total comprehensive (expensel/  FR&A (B%)/
income for the year (Restated) W@ (L&) - - - - - (127593) 39,741 (87852) 6914 (80,938
Combination of a subsidiary under A HF— | T &~
common control (note 2) WEBAR (HiE2) - - - 3,555 - - - 3,565 - 3,555
Deemed contribution on disposal of H&—FHBARZ
a subsidiary (note 35) BIEER (F13E35) - - - 4,141 - - - 4,141 - 4141
Transfer to reserve ARERE - - 28,276 - - - (28,276) - - -
Non-controlling interests arising k1 — &I}t B2 &%
on the establishment of EEZ AR
a subsidiary (note d) (HizEd) - - - - - - - - 17218 17218
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 34) ME& M B2 &
(FisE34) - - - (4,010) - - - 4,010 - (4,010)
Acquisition of non-controlling figF 2t £
interests (note b) GED) - - 3,856 9,495 - (1,049) 18407 30,709  (30,709) -
Exercise of warrants (note 29) (& E
(fit529) 1576 76,455 - - - - - 78,031 - 78031
At 31 December 2016 (Restated) 20165128318
(BE5|) 26,222 336,039 100,106 (626,972) 1,327718  (244,848) 1,828,576 2,746,841 62,485 2,809,326

Annual Report 2017 £

103



104

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EHEESDR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

Notes:

DreamEast Group Limited Z2H 7 &

In accordance with the Articles of Association of all subsidiaries of
DreamEast Group Limited (the “Company”) that established in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), those subsidiaries are required
to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to the statutory surplus
reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital.
Transfer to this reserve must be made before distributing dividends to
equity holders. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up
for previous year's losses, expand the existing operation or convert into
additional capital of the subsidiaries.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, additional capital injection
of RMB150,000,000 was made by the Group to a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, Beijing SkyOcean Foundation Investment
Co., Ltd. ("Beijing SkyOcean"), the equity interests of which held by
the Group is increased from 90% to 96.02% accordingly. The carrying
amounts of the Group's interest and the non-controlling interest are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interest in Beijing
SkyOcean. Furthermore, during the current year, the Group acquired
the remaining 3.98% equity interests in Beijing SkyOcean from its non-
controlling shareholder for a consideration of RMB9,900,000, which is
equivalent to HK$11,419,000. Upon the completion of this acquisition,
Beijing SkyOcean becomes a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

During the current year, the Group entered into an equity transfer
agreement with the non-controlling shareholder of Beijing SkyOcean
COMB+ Technology Co.,Ltd (“Beijing SkyOcean COMB+"), Le Shun
Venture Capital Co., Ltd (“Le Shun”), a company held as to 80%
by Mr. Zhou Zheng, pursuant to which the Group agreed to acquire
and Le Shun agreed to sell 8% equity interest in Beijing SkyOcean
COMB+ for a consideration of HK$34,612,000. Upon completion of
the above transaction, Beijing SkyOcean COMB+ became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group. The excess of the consideration paid
over the decrease in the carrying amount of non-controlling equity
interests of HK$34,009,000 has been recorded against certain reserve
items. Subsequently, prior to the end of the current year, the Group
further disposed the 100% equity interests of Beijing SkyOcean
COMB+ to Beijing COMB+ Technology & Development Co., Ltd, a
company held as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng, for a total consideration
of HK$37,795,000. Further details of the aforesaid disposal are set out
in note 35.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company and a non-
controlling shareholder established a subsidiary. Capital contribution
of HK$174,375,000 and HK$17218,000 were made by the Company
and the non-controlling shareholder. The equity interests held by
the Company and the non-controlling shareholder are 90% and 10%
respectively.

RAT]

Wi
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RBE-ZT—A"E+-_A=1t-—"BLEE
A AR R B — 2 IR AR AR SRR 3 — RE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SHRENME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

2017 2016
20174 20164
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
P 5 FBT FAET
(Restated)
($LE7)
Operating activities REER
Profit before tax BR 15 A1 A
— continuing operations — B E TS 222,735 172,921
— discontinued operations — BRI REET 13 - 6,493
Adjustments for: IR
Bank interest income HRITHBHBA (4,261) (297)
Interest income from liquidity RERBEDZFEWA
funds (7,479) -
Gain on fair value change of REMENABEES
investment properties g (51,616) (511,483)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary HE—RHBRA Rz W - (4,016)
Finance costs B 9 156,503 154,823
Depreciation on property, VI R KRBT E
plant and equipment 17 6,217 3,803
Amortisation of prepaid lease SEANREN=E 0t £
payment 731 -
Loss on disposal of property, HEME FEMREZ
plant and equipment E518 20 10
Net exchange (gain)/loss &N (W), BEFE (40,393) 33,548
Operating cash flows before RetEEBESE A2
movements in working capital KERERE 282,457 (144,198)
Decrease/(increase) in properties  BEEFWERFEYE
under development and A, ()
properties for sale 769,325 (640,772)
Increase in prepayment {5 R 2 TR FRIBIE AN
for land use rights (237,480) (106,414)
(Decrease)/increase in deposit VIEHEBBIES
received from sale of properties CRA) /38 (376,711) 511,681
Increase in trade receivables B 5 e IR N (3,824) (629)
Increase in other receivables, HMEWRIE e &
deposits and prepayments TR FRIEIE N (38,756) (34,961)
Increase in trade and B 5 N E MR RRIE A K
other payables and accruals TEHRFRIEIE N 136,294 1,056
Decrease in inventories FERD 200 -
Cash from/(used in) operations BEmS/ (TR Z2RE 531,505 (414,237)
Income tax paid =ARIFIECY (28,556) (160)
Net cash from/(used in) BEEEE (FTA)
operating activities ReFE 502,949 (414,397)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EHRAERDE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

2017 2016
20175 20164
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FBT FET
(Restated)
(&&EY)
Investing activities REEE
Acquisition of subsidiaries L B B JB 1 B 34 (5,958) 172
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—fFWEB AR A 35 16,779 5,848
Investment in liquidity funds HERBESD (1,914,397) -
Redemption of liquidity funds BRREBES 1,921,877 137,269
Purchase of property, BEWE BEEEE
plant and equipment 17 (16,762) (10,667)
Payment for acquisition of AW E Y 2 508
investment properties 20 (541,112) (479,985)
Prepayment to a construction PIEEREMER
contractor for constructing HEEABDEIENRK
investment properties 23 (43,569) (6,215)
Bank interest received BUERTTH B 4,261 297
Placement of pledged deposit GABERGERE
to a financial institution T EIERE 26 - (116,896)
Placement of pledged bank HFAREPERITER
deposits = (3,589)
Withdraw of pledged deposit REFEA S RS 2
to a financial institution [ ENER 369,085 -
Withdrawal of pledged bank RERE IR IRITFR
deposits 1,796 -
Advance to related companies Bk NI SN (5,760) -
Others Hity = 1,194
Net cash used in RETBHFARSESE
investing activities (213,760) (472,572)

DreamEast Group Limited 2R £ EHRAF]



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EHAERB K

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

2017 2016
20174 20164
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
P 5 FBT FAET
(Restated)
($LE7)
Financing activities A& T B
Exercise of warrants T RAREE - 78,031
Interest paid EAALE (303,610) (251,315)
Proceeds from issue of BT BRESFRESZ
convertible bonds and bonds FriSsk1E 27 - 470,000
Payment of transaction cost on BT IRRES 2
issue of convertible bonds RGN 27 - (50,700)
New bank and FIgRITREMEE
other borrowings raised 3,229,493 5,036,875
Repayment of bank and EERTIREMEE
other borrowings (3,011,549) (2,922,268)
Advances (repayment of) from Bk NGB
related companies (BEEBARRN) 202,725 (699,562)
Capital contribution from original ~ FrUtBE—RIR —42% T~ 2
owner of a subsidiary acquired MBARZREFANTE
under common control - 3,555
Acquisition of a subsidiary under  UgEE—REIRE—2H T~ 2
common control Loy ENE)| 2 (7,360) -
Acquisition of additional interest U BB BB A Bl 2 BB S
in subsidiaries (46,031) -
Capital contribution from REFEEH R
non-controlling interest BN E R = 17218
Net cash from financing activities M EEB B 2R FE 63,668 1,681,834
Net increase in cash and HeRESEEYIGMFE
cash equivalents 352,857 794,865
Cash and cash equivalents RENZESRESEEY
at the beginning of the year 1,045,492 243,186
Effect of foreign exchange rate @ ERSFH &
changes 4,774 7441
Cash and cash equivalents RERZBEERES
at the end of the year, ZEWMFTHRBTEHRK
represented by RBe
bank balances and cash 1,403,123 1,045,492
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
© b B 3% ¥ 2 B G

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

1.

GENERAL

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda. The address of its principal place of business
is 10th Floor, COFCO Tower, No. 262 Gloucester Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The Company's shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries (together
with the Company, hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “Group”) were involved in the provision
of property development and leasing, theme park
operation and investment in financial instruments.
In prior years, the Group were also involved in
the provision of elderly care services and medical
equipment distribution. During the year ended 31
December 2016, the Group disposed of certain
subsidiaries that were engaged in the business
of provision of elderly care services and medical
equipment distribution in Hong Kong. The result of
these operations have been presented as discontinued
operations in these consolidated financial statements
(see note 13 for details).

The immediate and ultimate holding company of the
Company is SkyOcean Investment Holdings Limited,
which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
("BVI") and beneficially owned as to 80% by Mr.
Zhou Zheng, a director and an ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
("RMB"), and for the purpose of more convenience to
the readers of these consolidated financial statements,
the consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$").

DreamEast Group Limited 2R 7S£ B AR Q7]

—RER
ARRR—ERBERETMR I
BRAR] M EER R Clarendon
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FE AEBHEETHREBNRER
HEERBEE R D HBEEREES
RIB AR - ZEEB 2 EEERA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB RM

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During the current year, a discloseable and connected
transaction in relation to the acquisition of the 100%
equity interest in DreamEast Future World (Sanhe)
Entertainment Co., Ltd. (“DreamEast Future World")
by the Group from DreamEast Cultural Investment Co.,
Ltd. (“DreamEast Cultural Investment”), a company
held as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng, was made. The
total consideration of the acquisition is RMB6,000,000
which is equivalent to HK$7,360,000.

DreamkEast Future World is principally engaged in the
operation of certain aerospace theme park located in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). DreamEast
Future World entered into a tenancy agreement with
the owner of the DreamEast Future World Aerospace
Theme Park (the “Park”), Sanhe SkyOcean Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd., (“Sanhe SkyOcean”) a
company held as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng. Details of
the tenancy agreement are set out in note 39 (d).

As the Group and DreamEast Future World were under
common control of Mr. Zhou Zheng and Mr. Zhou
Zheng continues to control the Group and DreamEast
Future World upon completion of the above acquisition,
the acquisition is considered as a combination of an
entity under common control and accounted for using
the principles of merger accounting.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows have been prepared as if DreamEast Future
World had been a subsidiary of the Group from 1
January 2016. The consolidated statements of financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2016 and 1
January 2016 have been restated to include the assets
and liabilities of DreamEast Future World as at above
dates. Respective notes to these consolidated financial
statements have also been restated. All significant
intra-group balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on combination.

2.

AHMBRRFEREE

RAFERETEEANEERZ R
MR EBR AT ([B2RAXEE
& —HERAKREEFEO%RE R
Z AR WEERFARRMR (=)
IREEHR AR ([ERFREHR])
100% I ATHERBEIS -
Wi 2 R (B B A R %6,000,0007T
(#E 77360,0008 7T ) °

BRIAKE R ERUELEMNH
EARKME (THE])2ETHX
TREKE - BRI R REERT
REHE R AR T ELE ([4E]) 1
BEAZARFBEHWEREGR
RE ([=ZRRAFR] > —EHRERE
HEFEA80% M 2 A R)) RIS ARAY
MK 2 FBENHIEE3N) °

RS B L2 ER 5 R SR SR A A
BT Z R —ZH T MEABKER
IR IR AR AR B R 2
RAARREST - Et B EIER S
F—26] TR WIRAHET
ERBARR

APHEEREMER S KK & 0HE
HEBRRARSRER RGN
Z2ERARKERE2016F1A1HEK
BAEERB AT MER - AREER
2016512 5318 &20165F1A1H 2
AT BRREREENZY) LABTE
LFHlAMER TR R CEERE
(EREZES o= s )
EH2V -FBEEREBREH I
ARFSBERE G
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 2.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

The effects of the combination of DreamEast Future
World on the results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016 and the financial position of the
Group at 31 December 2016 are summarised below:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

O BRHRREREE

= —
— 5

BHFE R AR M R E £ 2016512
A318 IEFEAREEFEE RN20165F
12 31 B AREBEF SRR 2 2B T
NS

BZ2016FE12831B L EEEH
BEXEREMEARER

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Combination of

a subsidiary
under common
2016 control 2016
BHR—EHTH
20165 LI =PNG] 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT TR
(previously (Restated)
reported)
(note)
(BEZ2H) (LE7)
(Fir)
Continuing operations BEREEY
Revenue A 12,849 17,351 30,200
Cost of sales and services HE KRB A (16,826) (12,075) (28,901)
Gross (loss)/profit E(8) /7 (3,977) 5,276 1,299
Other gains and losses Hinhm R EE (43,210) 153 (43,057)
Other income Hig A 172 - 172
Gain on fair value change of REMEAAEBEEY
investment properties Wz 511,483 - 511,483
Selling expenses HEBMA (56,066) (8,606) (64,672)
Administrative expenses TRER (74,943) (2,538) (77481)
Finance costs HBER (154,823) - (154,823)
Profit/(loss) before tax BEBATRT (B1) 178,636 (5,715) 172,921
Income tax expense FERREY (129,862) - (129,862)
Profit/(loss) for the year from REBELEEH 2
continuing operations ERER,/ (FE) 48,774 (5,715) 43,059
Discontinued operations DRIEREER
Profit for the year from REERIEEEEB L
discontinued operations FR 6,493 - 6,493
Profit/(loss) for the year EREF/ (BE) 55,267 (5,715) 49,552

DreamEast Group Limited 2R FEEHR AT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 2. AOHMBHRREREE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued —#&
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND BE2016F 123N A L FES 6
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR BERkHEMtGEWRER-E

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 — continued

Combination of

a subsidiary
under common
2016 control 2016
O E—EH T/
2016 Pt 8 22 ) 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEL FTEL FTAEL
(previously (Restated)
reported)
(note)
(BEZ2H) (L&)
(F3E)
Other comprehensive Hit4Re (BIX) /W
(expense)/income:
Item that will not be HETEEH I EE
reclassified subsequently BH2ER:
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences REREIEKEEY
on translation to BEXES
presentation currency (157,651) 101 (157,550)
ltems that may be reclassified HEAREEHFIEE
subsequently to profit or loss: #E#% 21EE:
Exchange differences on REGIEBYBRE
translation of foreign operations E4Z[EX ZH# 21,279 - 21,279
Reclassification adjustment - BNOBERE-
transfer translation reserve RHER B DA EE
to profit or loss upon disposal ~ BHEHETER
of subsidiaries 5,781 - 5,781
Profit/(loss) for the year RARHERAERN
attributable to owners of EREF/ (BR)
the Company
- from continuing operations - REFELEER 38,963 (5,715) 33,248
- from discontinued operations —REER KL E£% 6,493 - 6,493
45,456 (5,715) 39,741
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 2.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 — continued

O BRHRREREE

==

- IIE

BZ2016FE12831B L EEEH
BERHMGEAKRER—E&

Combination of

a subsidiary
under common
2016 control 2016
BHA—ZHTH
20165 P 22 ] 2016%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THT
(previously (Restated)
reported)
(note)
(BE2HR) (LE75)
(Bi3E)
Profit for the year attributable  JE34|M B E(G
to non-controlling interests FREF
- from continuing operations ~-REBELLER 9,811 - 9,811
9,811 - 9,811
Total comprehensive (expense) FREE (%) WEHEH
income for the year (75,324) (5,614) (80,938)
Attributable to: HER
Owners of the Company ARDAEBA (82,238) (5,614) (87,852)
Non-controlling interests FEE It 6,914 - 6,914
(75,324) (5,614) (80,938)

Note:  During the current year, the Group presented an analysis of
expenses recognised in profit or loss using a classification
based on their function within the Group, which provides
information that is more relevant. The comparative figures
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income have been reclassified.

DreamEast Group Limited 2R 5 & EHR AT

M RAFE AEERNAEEAN
BRI RN EaRRNMAX S
- AR E AR E B - & iR
REMGERERNLBEFEE

Mok



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 2. AOHMBHRREREE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued — &
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION R20165E12 8318 2 & OF B B AR
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 R

Combination of

a subsidiary
31 December under common 31 December
2016 control 2016
BHR—EHT
2016912 A31H 0 apE=NG| 2016412 A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET TET
(previously (Restated)
reported)
(BEZ®) (L&)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment 1% BiE K R 18,244 515 18,759
Investment properties REME 5,167,218 - 5,167218
Other long term assets HitRHEE 14,189 - 14,189
5,199,651 515 5,200,166
Current assets RBEE
Properties under development ~ EEHRHEYE
for sale 2,093,097 - 2,093,097
Completed properties ERIGENMSE
held for sale 403,325 - 403,325
Inventories lE3 - 326 326
Trade receivables 2 S EMGE 4,631 - 4,631
Other receivables, HiERHE Re Rk
deposits and prepayments BRRE 992,411 329 992,740
Pledged bank deposits BERBITER 3,589 - 3,589
Other current assets HitmBEE 462,238 133 462,371
Bank balances and cash RITEHREE S 1,042,268 3,224 1,045,492
5,001,559 4,012 5,005,571
Current liabilities TBaE
Trade and other payables and ZHRHMERTIER
accruals BRNE 917685 4,966 922,651
Amounts due to JE < BB 12 R SR 0E
related companies 199,129 2,473 201,602
Tax payable BT 1,841 - 1,841
Bank and other borrowings BOREMEE
- due within one year -—FRIH 1,218,040 - 1,218,040
2,336,695 7439 2,344,134
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 2. BV BRREREE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued — &

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 20165128318 2 & Bt I Ak
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 — continued mRk—&

Combination of

DreamEast Group Limited 2R FEEHR AT

a subsidiary
31 December under common 31 December
2016 control 2016
ABE—EZHT
201612 A31H WMEALR  2016F12831H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEL TERL FEL
(previously (Restated)
reported)
(BEER) (ies5))
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (A1) FE 2,664,864 (3,427) 2,661,437
Total assets less BEERFRBAR
current liabilities 7864,515 (2,912) 7861,603
Non-current liabilities krBEE
Deferred tax liabilities ERBEARE 351,193 - 351,193
Bank and other borrowings BITREMEE
- due after one year —— A5 H 2,768,771 - 2,768,771
Convertible bonds and bonds ARkRES RES 1,932,313 - 1,932,313
5,052,277 - 5,052,277
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) &/ (8f6) 36 2,812,238 (2,912) 2,809,326
Equity B
Share capital g 26,222 - 26,222
Reserves &1 2,723,531 (2,912) 2,720,619
Equity attributable to owners of AR FEAR AREEER
the Company 2,749,753 (2,912) 2,746,841
Non-controlling interests JEE Gl 62,485 - 62,485
TOTAL EQUITY Endm 2,812,238 (2,912) 2,809,326




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB RM

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 2.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

EHBMBEBRRERNEE
—%a
201651 B18 2 S Bt BT R0

AT 1 JANUARY 2016

=

Combination of

a subsidiary
1 January under common 1 January
2016 control 2016
AR %'J
2016F1A1H Ok 2016F1A1H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FTEL FTAEL
(previously (Restated)
reported)
(BEZ®) (&)
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment 1% BiE K R & 12,999 92 13,097
Investment properties REME 4,014,180 - 4,014,180
Other long term assets HitRHEE 1,194 - 1,194
4,028,373 92 4,028,465
Current assets REEE
Properties under development ~ EEHEEYE
for sale 1,961,867 - 1,961,867
Completed properties held BERIFENE
for sale 663,592 - 663,592
Inventories lE3 - 146 146
Trade receivables 2 S EMGE 4,002 - 4,002
Other receivables, HiERHE Re Rk
deposits and prepayments BRRE 938,381 1,625 939,906
Other current assets HitRBEE 137269 - 137269
Bank balances and cash 'fEﬂ s 242,263 923 243,186
3,947,374 2,594 3,949,968
Current liabilities nEEE
Trade and other payables and BHREMENTIER
accruals BRRE 449,420 1,897 451,317
Amounts due to ) NGBS
related companies 900,579 1,642 902,221
Tax payable [E&T A 10 - 10
Deferred income BN 1,236 - 1,236
Bank and other borrowings RORAMEE
- due within one year ——ER3E 2,102,819 - 2,102,819
3,454,064 3,539 3,457,603
Net current assets/(liabilities) REEE/ (AE)E 493,310 (945) 492,365
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 2. BV BRIREREE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued |
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION R20165E1 B1H 2 & BTG ARR
AT 1 JANUARY 2016 — continued -

Combination of

a subsidiary
1 January under common 1 January
2016 control 2016
ABE—ZHT
201651411 ol 201651 A1H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEL TEL FEL
(previously (Restated)
reported)
(BEER) (ies5))
Total assets less BEERRBEE
current liabilities 4,521,683 (853) 4,520,830
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEEE 244,403 - 244,403
Convertible bonds and bonds RBREFRER 1,485,098 - 1,485,098
1,729,501 - 1,729,501
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) BE/ (8636 2,792,182 (853) 2,791,329
Equity B
Share capital g 24,646 - 24,646
Reserves & 2,698,474 (853) 2,697,621
Equity attributable ARRBEBAELER
to owners of the Company 2,723,120 (853) 2,722,267
Non-controlling interests FEE I 69,062 - 69,062
TOTAL EQUITY Enam 2,792,182 (853) 2,791,329
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB RM

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 2.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued — &

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 1 JANUARY 2016 - continued

The effects of the above business combination under
common control on the Group's basic and diluted
earnings per share for the year ended 31 December

2016 are as follows:

rx—&

BERR

EHBMBEBRREREE
201651 B18 2 G Bt BT iRR

AR T RS A P AR B
ZE20165F12 A31 B IEFEFIRERN
FENT:

Impact on basic
earnings per

share
HEREREF
pa-7 -
HKS$
& T
From continuing and REBERERCARILERE XK
discontinued operations
- Basic —HK
Figures before adjustments R SRR 0.1743
Effect arising from business combination R —i2#| NE£KAHELEZ FE
under common control (0.0219)
Figures after adjustments FEE SRR 0.1524
- Diluted —&E
Figures before adjustments FER SRR 0.1741
Effect arising from business combination R —#2#| NEKAHELZFE
under common control (0.0219)
Figures after adjustments R SR 0.1522
From continuing operations REBERKSEER
- Basic —ER
Figures before adjustments FER SRR 0.1494
Effect arising from business combination [F—Z#l TEFEHELEZFE
under common control (0.0219)
Figures after adjustments FEIE DR 0.1275
- Diluted —#E
Figures before adjustments FEA SRR 0.1492
Effect arising from business combination R —iZ#HI TTE£KEAHELEZFE
under common control (0.0219)
Figures after adjustments % SRR 0.1273
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 2. BV BRREREE

2.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued — &

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION R2016F1 B18 2 & Bt TERR
AT 1 JANUARY 2016 — continued e

The effects of the above business combination under LR — B TG A RS EE
common control on the Group's basic and diluted E2015F 12 A3 B I FEBREALRK
earnings per share for the year ended 31 December HERN o FENT:

2015 are as follows:

Impact on basic
earnings per

share
HERERAEF
2B
HK$
P TT
From continuing and REFERERCRIERE ZERK
discontinued operations
- Basic —H K
Figures before adjustments RS 2.3448
Effect arising from business combination — B TEREHEEZTE
under common control (0.0196)
Figures after adjustments ARG 2.3252
- Diluted —#E
Figures before adjustments FEH 2R 2.2079
Effect arising from business combination R —Z& TEBKEHEE L FE
under common control (0.0185)
Figures after adjustments FEESRE 2.1894
From continuing operations REFELSCEER
- Basic —ER
Figures before adjustments FEA SRR 2.3343
Effect arising from business combination [ —#Z&| NEBEHEEZZE
under common control (0.0091)
Figures after adjustments FERESE 2.3252
- Diluted —#E
Figures before adjustments RS 2.1980
Effect arising from business combination —EBHTEREHEECTE
under common control (0.0086)
Figures after adjustments HEESRE 2.1894
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB RM

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") that are relevant for
the preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax

Assets for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Except described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material effect on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 7 DISCLOSURE INITIATIVE

The Group has applied these amendments for the
first time in the current year. The amendments require
an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments
also require disclosures on changes in financial assets
if cash flows from those financial assets were, or
future cash flows will be included in cash flows from
financing activities.

Specially, the amendments require the following to

be disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows;
(i) changes arising from obtaining or losing control
of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of

changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair
values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of these items is provided in note 38.
Consistent with the transition provision of the
amendments, the Group has not disclosed comparative
information for the prior year. Apart from the
additional disclosure in note 38, the application of
these amendments has had no impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") — continued

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments
to HKFRS 2

Amendments
to HKFRS 4

Amendments
to HKFRS 9

Amendments
to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments’

Leases?

Insurance Contracts*

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments?

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between

an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB RM

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

Amendments Long-term Interests in Associates and
to HKAS 28 Joint Ventures?
Amendments As part of the Annual Improvements to
to HKAS 28 HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle’
Amendments Transfers of Investment Property’
to HKAS 40
Amendments Annual Improvements to
to HKFRSs HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
described below, the Directors anticipate that the
application of the above new and amendments to
HKFRSs and Interpretations will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and
impairment requirements for financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs") — continued

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the
Group are:

all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are
held within a business model whose objective
is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms that give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI"). All other financial assets are
measured at their fair value at subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS
9, entities may make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss
model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss
model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
In other words, it is no longer necessary for
a credit event to have occurred before credit
losses are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB RM

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs") — continued

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2017 the
Directors anticipated the following potential impact on
initial application of HKFRS 9.

Classification and measurement:

° Loan and receivables carried at amortised cost
as disclosed in note 37: these are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding. Accordingly, these financial assets
will continue to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost upon the application of HKFRS 9.

° All other financial assets and financial liabilities
will continue to be measured on the same basis
as are currently measured under HKAS 39.

Impairment

In general, the Directors anticipate that the application
of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not
yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets
measured at amortised costs and other items that
subject to the impairment provisions upon application
of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the Directors, if the
expected credit loss model were to be applied by the
Group, the accumulated amount of impairment loss to
be recognised by the Group as at 1 January 2018 would
be slightly increased as compared to the accumulated
amount recognised under HKAS 39 mainly attributable
to expected credit losses provision on trade and other
receivables. Such further impairment recognised under
expected credit loss model would reduce the opening
retained profits and increase the deferred tax assets at
1 January 2018 slightly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") — continued

HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: ldentify the performance obligations in
the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step b: Recognise revenue when (or as) the
entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS
15 in relation to the identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as
well as licensing application guidance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB RM

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS - continued

The Directors have assessed the impact on application
of HKFRS 15 and did not anticipate a material impact
on revenue of the Group. However, application of
HKFRS 15 may have impact on the following areas:

Currently, the Group expensed off the costs associated
with obtaining the sales of properties contracts with
customers. Under the requirement of HKFRS 15,
incremental costs of obtaining a contract is eligible for
capitalisation as deferred contract costs if they meet
certain criteria.

In respect of sales of properties held for sale, when
payments are made before the properties held for
sales are delivered to the customer, the customer may
be providing the Group with a benefit of financing.
The Group will not adjust the promised amount of
customer consideration if the effects of the financing
component will not materially change the amount of
revenue at a contract level or if the Group expects at
contract inception, that the period between the Group
transfer’s the property and when the customer pays for
that property will be one year or less. Otherwise, the
Group will adjust the promised amount of consideration
and recognise revenue at the cash selling price in
accordance with the requirement of HKFRS 15.

The Directors intend to apply the limited retrospective
method with cumulative effect of initial application
recognised in opening balance of retained profits at 1
January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[Z

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") — continued

HKFRS 16 LEASES

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS
16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes leases and service contracts
on the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled
by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured
at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability
is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as
the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For
the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing
cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for own use
while other operating lease payments are presented
as operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS
16, lease payment in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion which
will be both presented as financing cash flows by the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") — continued

HKFRS 16 LEASES - continued

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a
lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or
a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$19,505,000 as disclosed in note 31. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will
meet the definition of a lease. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all
these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-
term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable
rental deposits received of HK$8,653,000 as
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies.
Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating
to the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly,
the carrying amounts of such deposits may be
adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments are
considered as additional lease payments. Adjustments
to refundable rental deposits received would be
considered as advance lease payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements
may result changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[Z

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") — continued

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 40 TRANSFERS OF
INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or from
investment property necessitates an assessment of
whether a property meets, or has ceased to meet,
the definition of investment property, supported
by observable evidence, that a change in use has
occurred. The amendments further clarify that
situations other than the ones listed in HKAS40 may
evidence a change in use, and that a change in use
is possible for properties under construction. For
example, change in use for transfer from properties
under development for sale in the ordinary course of
business to investment properties could be evidenced
by inception of an operating lease to another party.
Currently the Group accounts for such transfer only
upon commencement of an operating lease.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these amendments may result in
early recognition of such transfers on the Group's
consolidated financial statements in future periods
should there be a change in use of any of its
properties.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and available-for-sale investment
which are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods or
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except
for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transferred at fair value and a valuation
technigue that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level
1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns

from its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION - continued

The Group reassesses whether or not they control an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[Z

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

CHANGES IN THE GROUP'S OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN
EXISTING SUBSIDIARIES

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group
and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group's and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted after re-allocation
of the relevant equity components and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs).The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting of cost on investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY CLASSIFIED AS AN
ASSET ACQUISITION

Where an acquisition of a group of assets and liabilities
that does not constitute a business, the Group
identifies and recognises the individual identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating
purchase price first to the financial assets and financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining
balance of the purchase price is then allocated to other
individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis
of their relative fair values at the date of purchase.

MERGER ACCOUNTING FOR BUSINESS COMBINATION
INVOLVING ENTITIES UNDER COMMON CONTROL

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date
when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are combined using the existing book values from
the controlling party's perspective. No amount is
recognised in respect of goodwill or bargain purchase
gain at the time of common control combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of
the combining entities or businesses from the earliest
date presented or since the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the common
control, where this is a shorter period.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or business
had been combined at the end of the previous
reporting period or when they first came under
common control, whichever is shorter.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities, as described below.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Revenue from sales of properties in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the respective
properties have been completed and delivered to the
buyers. Deposits and prepayments received from
purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for
revenue recognition are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Revenue from theme park operation is recognised
when the relevant services are provided.

Rental income from operating lease is recognised in
the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the terms
of the relevant lease.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment including land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purpose
(other than construction in progress as described
below), are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets (other than construction in progress) less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method, at the following rate per
annum:

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 5%

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 15% to 33'/3%

Leasehold land and
buildings
Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and 15% to 33'/3%
office equipment

Medical equipment 20%

Computer equipment and  20% to 33'3%
software

Motor vehicles 20% to 33'3%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and

depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each

reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[Z

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - continued

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
LEASEHOLD LAND AND BUILDING FOR OWN USE

When the Group makes payments for a property
interest which includes both leasehold land
and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment
as to whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
property is accounted as an operating leases. Specially,
the entire consideration (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element of the lease at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as "prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the leasehold land and building elements, the entire
property is generally classified as if the leasehold land
is under finance lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences on
monetary items receivable from a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to
occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in
the foreign operation), which are recognised initially
in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of
the Group's interests.

DreamEast Group Limited 2R 7S£ B ER Q7]

TEETHER-&

HhEE
RimEEEREEEREZ MBHR
B UZERNEEE NI ZEE
(SN ) I T2 R PITIR Z AR i
REXBRESE[ 2SS (A%
ERKEMETIELER 2 EE)
AR -RMEHAR UINESHEZE
BIEBHRZAZEREXREN R
B UONEEHEIRESE AT E 2 3F
ERHEBINTENBRE -

REERIRR MEEEEIERMEL
ZERZRE  REELPRERET
MR HEEUOB SN KRS AR I AT
Il ge R A (BB INERS
REFBRZ—#0) cE¥IRA &
REBIN ZFELEZRIENEA
AW MR W S ERD H
EAXAKERDR A RSENNEER

S

B



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
FOREIGN CURRENCIES — continued

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
group entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange fluctuation reserve. Exchange differences
arising from translation of a foreign operation to the
functional currency of the Company (i.e. RMB) are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
the foreign operation is disposed of whilst exchange
differences relating to translation from RMB to the
presentation currency of the Group are transferred
directly to retained profits. On disposal of a group
entity that is not a foreign operation, the exchange
differences accumulated in equity relating to the
translation of assets and liabilities of that group entity
into presentation currency of the Group are transferred
directly to retained profits.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[Z

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes, including state-managed retirement benefits
schemes in the PRC and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme, are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave) after deducting any amount already
paid.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from the profit before
tax as reported in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
TAXATION - continued

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
TAXATION - continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
to equity, in which case the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

Properties under development for sale which are
intended to be held for sale in the ordinary course
of business are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value and are shown as current assets.
Cost includes the cost of land, construction cost and
other development expenditure and other attributable
expenses. Net realisable value is determined by
management based on prevailing market conditions.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE AND OTHER
INVENTORIES

Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes the
related land costs, development expenditure incurred
and, where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised.
Net realizable value is determined based on prevailing
market conditions.

Other inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
properties under construction for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — continued

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalised as part of the
carrying amount of the investment properties under
construction.

The Group transfers a property from inventories
to investment property when there is a change of
intention to hold the property to earn rentals or/and
for capital appreciation rather than for sale in the
ordinary course of business, as observable evidence
of a change in use of the property is available during
the current year. Any difference between the fair value
of the property at the date of transfer and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit
or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans
and receivables and available-for-sale investments. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, other receivables, deposits, amounts
due from related companies, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial assets — continued
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets that are either designated
as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans
and receivable, (b) held-to-maturity instruments or (c)
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair
value, with unrealised gains or losses recognised as
other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment
is derecognised or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to
profit or loss. Interests earned whilst holding the
available-for-sale investments are reported as interest
income and are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as investment income.
Dividend on available-for-sale investments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to
receive the dividend is established.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets have been affected.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the counterparty;
or
o breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group's past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period, as well as observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and other receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade and other receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

When an available-for-sale financial investments is
considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through
profit or loss if any increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
- continued

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and
of allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amounts due to related companies, bank and other
borrowings and convertible bonds and bonds) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Convertible bonds

The component parts of the convertible bonds issued
by the Company are classified separately as financial
liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated by measuring the fair value of
similar liability that does not have an associated equity
component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
- continued

Convertible bonds - continued

The conversion option classified as equity is
determined by deducting the amount of the liability
component from the fair value of the compound
instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included
in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured. In addition, the conversion
option classified as equity will remain in equity until
the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred from
convertible bonds equity reserve to share premium.
Where the conversion option remains unexercised at
the maturity date of the convertible bonds, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to retained
profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction cost that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to
the equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction cost relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability portion
and amortised over the period of the convertible bonds
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
- continued

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at
the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately
unless the derivative is designated and effective as a
hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of
the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics
are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the host contracts are not measured at fair value
through profit or loss. Generally, multiple embedded
derivatives in a single instrument are treated as a
single compound embedded derivative unless those
derivatives relate to different risk exposures and are
readily separable and independent of each other.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’'s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
- continued

Derecognition — continued

An exchange between the Group and lender of debt
instruments with substantial different terms shall be
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability. The terms are substantially different if the
discounted present value of the cash flow under
the new term and discounted using the original
effective interest rate is at least 10% different from
the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flow of the original financial liability. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability
extinguished and the consideration paid, including non-
cash assets/equity instruments transferred or liability
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss except for debt
restructuring which involved entities under common
control when the substance of the transaction includes
deemed contribution to, or distribution by the Group.

When the contractual terms of a hybrid or compound
instrument are modified such that the revised terms
would result in a substantial modification from the
original terms, after taking into account all relevant
facts and circumstances including qualitative factors,
such modification is accounted for as derecognition
of the original hybrid or compound instrument and the
recognition of new instrument. The difference between
the carrying amount of financial liability derecognised
and the fair value of consideration paid or payable,
including any liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit
or loss.

DreamEast Group Limited 2R 7S£ B ER Q7]

TEETHER-&

tMIAE-&
THEERREATA-&

BB R — 42
AEBMEFTABEAZEBEKR
PRGN IR EW EERERAE
RILER T RS BAE - M
FETZRERECIRIRE (FH
REEFENER) BRSRA EF%
RemeE s SITRBEREZE10%
AL BIBBGRFEERER B
HIEBRZeHBENERRERDS
NREzZ%E (BIEEEE 2 AMIE
WEBE HHILANDHAEZE
&)  IRIEEIER  BRIEP R E—E
FITEREEEHEIINELGREARN
SEHEMNRR DA S AEE
REE RS-

BEREEMANEBEERER (B3
HERR)R RANEATANE
HMERIRIE RT A BUERT IR BUR
TRIER]  IERT ART RBUBRER IR
BRASES TARERH TA B
HERNEREERAEED X N®
e EREE (BIEER A
ERE) ZRNERMNERAER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER
THAN GOODWILL

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is higher of fair value less cost of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies,
which are described in note 4, the Directors are
required to make estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

CRITICAL JUDGMENT IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The following are the critical judgments, apart from
those involving estimations, that management
has made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed
the Group's investment properties and concluded
that the Group's investment properties are held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time through rental
income. Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred
taxation on investment properties, the Directors have
determined that the presumption that investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered through sale is rebutted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
— continued

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

Investment properties

Investment properties were stated at fair values
based on the valuation performed by independent
professional valuers. In determining the fair values,
the valuers have based on a method of valuation
which involves certain assumptions and estimates of
market condition. In relying on the valuation report,
the Directors work closely with qualified external
valuer and have exercised their judgment and are
satisfied that the assumptions used in the valuation are
reflective of the current market conditions. Changes to
these assumptions would result in changes in the fair
values of the Group's investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or
loss reported in profit or loss.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31
December 2017 was approximately HK$5,724,876,000
(31 December 2016: HK$5,167,218,000). More details
are set out in note 20.

Estimated net realisable value on properties under
development for sale

In determining whether allowances should be made
for the Group's properties under development for
sale as disclosed in note 19, the Group takes into
consideration the current market environment and
the net realisable value which is determined as the
estimated market value (i.e. the estimated selling price
less estimated selling expenses) less estimated costs
to completion of the properties. An allowance is made
if the estimated net realisable value is less than the
carrying amount. If the actual net realisable value on
properties under development is less than expected
as a result of change in market condition and/or
significant variation in the budgeted development cost,
material provision of allowances for properties under
development for sale may result.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
— continued

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
— continued

Write-down of completed properties held for sale

Management performs a regular review on the carrying
amount of completed properties held for sale. Based
on management’s review, write-down of completed
properties held for sale will be made when the
estimated net realisable value has declined below the
carrying amount.

In determining the net realisable value of completed
properties held for sale, management refers
to prevailing market data such as recent sales
transactions as basis for valuation. If the actual net
realisable value on completed properties held for
sale is less than expected as a result of change in
market condition, material provision of allowances for
completed properties held for sale may result.

Income taxes

No deferred tax asset has been recognised on
the tax losses as disclosed in note 28 due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future.

Land appreciation tax

Certain subsidiaries of the Group are subject to LAT
in the PRC. However, the implementation of the tax
varies amongst different tax jurisdictions in various
cities of the PRC and certain projects of the Group
have not finalised their LAT calculations with the local
tax authorities in the PRC.

Accordingly, significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of land appreciation and its
related income tax provision. The Group recognised
the land appreciation tax based on management’s best
estimates. The final tax outcome could be different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, and
these differences will impact the income tax expense
and the related income tax provisions in the period in
which such tax is finalised with local tax authorities.
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6.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

REVENUE 6. A
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year from TEBFRREFELSEEBKAZ
continuing operations is as follows: AT
2017 2016
2017%F 20164F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
(Restated)
(#eE5)
Continuing operations BFEREXEL
Sales of properties MEIEE 1,253,402 4,680
Property leasing YEMBE 12,220 4,131
Theme park operation FRELEZE 10,990 17,351
Others HAb 1,686 4,038
1,278,298 30,200
SEGMENT INFORMATION 1. TEER

Information reported to the Group's executive
directors, being the chief operating decision maker
("CODM"), for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focused on the
types of goods or services delivered or provided.

The Group's reportable and operating segments under
HKFRS 8 are (i) property development and leasing, (ii)
theme park operations and (iii) investment in financial
instruments.

As the elderly care services and medical equipment
distribution operations were discontinued upon
disposal of certain subsidiaries in the year ended 31
December 2016, the segment information reported
below does not include financial information in respect
of the discontinued operations, which are disclosed in
more details in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Directors are of the view that the
Group intends to continue to engage in the investment
in financial instruments in the future upon available
resources allocated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

1. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 1. THEER-&
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS TEWBARES
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue RERBEER  ANEBE =B EHUIA
and results by the three segments for the period under REBEITEINNT
review.
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ2017F12831HLLEE
Property Investment

development  Theme park in financial
and leasing operations  instruments Consolidated

MEBRR FHELE RE
HE EE $RIA @
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Continuing operations FELEXRY
Revenue from external RENBER 2 HA
customer 1,267,308 10,990 - 1,278,298
Reportable segment revenue Al 5 DR A 1,267,308 10,990 = 1,278,298
Reportable segment results  A[REDIEEE 338,696 (8,086) (14,879) 315,731
Unallocated income and RAOBEWRARF L
expenses
Other gains and losses Hih s R EE 56,868
Other income =R ON 8,738
Administrative expenses TRER (6,046)
Finance costs HBER (152,556)
Profit before tax BR 0 A A 222,735
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

1. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 1. PHEER &
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS - continued THEUAREE-&
For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Restated) BZ2016F12831HILFE (KRE
5)
Property Investment
development  Theme park in financial
and leasing operations instruments ~ Consolidated
MELRR TREEE "E
HE 28 SWMIA B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T THET THET
Continuing operations BERKEER
Revenue from external RENBER ZHA
customer 12,849 17,351 - 30,200
Reportable segment revenue ] R & D EWA 12,849 17351 - 30,200
Reportable segment results ~ AIR&E D IAE S 312,442 (5,868) (6,833) 299,741
Unallocated income and APBEBRARFAL
expenses
Other gains and losses HElzm REE (43,057)
Other income Hip A 172
Administrative expenses THER (14,100)
Finance costs HBER (69,835)
Profit before tax 25 A 172,921
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

1. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 1. THEER-&
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THEERERE
As at 31 December 2017 A2017%12831H
Property Investment
development  Theme park in financial
and leasing operations  instruments Consolidated
MEBRR TELE RE
HE EE SEMIA Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEAR TERT THET THET
Continuing operations FELEXY
Reportable segment assets ~ AJSREDEEE 10,908,206 6,746 163,899 11,078,851
Unallocated assets (note) KA EEE (Fi:) 138,510
Total assets BEE 11,217,361
Reportable segment liabilities Al HEDEEE 5,583,315 5,875 1,283 5,590,473
Unallocated liabilities (note)  F®AE & & (FzE) 2,571,812
Total liabilities BaE 8,162,285
Note:  Other corporate assets (including certain property, plant and MeE: HEMARAE (BEETYE BE

equipment, bank balances and cash, certain prepayments,
deposits and other receivables) and liabilities (including
convertible bonds and bonds, tax payable and deferred tax
liabilities) are unallocated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - continued
As at 31 December 2016 (Restated)

1.

THEEEREE-&
RA20165128310 (KLEF|)

Property Investment
development  Theme park in financial
and leasing operations instruments ~ Consolidated
MELER TEERE BE
HE &8 $BIA w@at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET FEL FEL
Continuing operations BEREXY
Reportable segment assets A/ &N HEE 10,052,865 4,527 7733 10,065,125
Unallocated assets (note) AOBEE (M) 140,612
Total assets BEE 10,205,737
Reportable segment liabilities A[MR & DA & 5,097.414 7439 577 5,105,430
Unallocated liabilities (note) KD E & f& (KizE) 2,290,981
Total liabilities Bek 7,396,411
Note:  Other corporate assets (including certain property, plant and e : HuAREE (BREETYE BE

equipment, bank balances and cash, certain prepayments,
deposits and other receivables) and liabilities (including certain
other payables and accruals, convertible bonds and bonds, tax
payable and deferred tax liabilities) are unallocated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao B R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

1. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 1. THEER-&
OTHER INFORMATION H g gl
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ2017F12A31HLLEE
Property Investment
development  Theme park in financial
and leasing  operations instruments Unallocated Consolidated
NERRR TELE RE
g 2E ¢@MIA ROE )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT ThR ThR TAT TAT
Continuing operations BEREER
Depreciation of property, nE BERLERE
plant and equipment 5,533 13 537 134 6,217
Amortisation of prepaid ENRERREH
lease payments 31 - - - 131
Impairment loss of EENFERERR
other receivables 3,098 - - - 3,098
Loss on disposal of property, ~ HENE HE R
plant and equipment SEEE 20 - - - 20
For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Restated) HZ2016F12A31B LFE (KE
Hl)
Continuing operations RELSRER
Depreciation of property, nE -BERLENE
plant and equipment 2,718 58 519 146 3,441
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION i 15 & Rl

The Group principally engages in the business
of development and sales of properties, lease of
properties and theme park operations in the PRC.
The Group also engages in the investment in financial
instruments in Hong Kong.

Information about the Group's revenue from external
customers from continuing operations is presented
based on the location at which the goods or services
are delivered or provided. Information about the
Group's non-current assets is presented based on the
geographical location of the assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 1. PHEER &
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION - continued i E R - &
The following table presents revenue and non-current TREZ5EZE2017F & 2016F 12 A31
assets, information from continuing operations for the AIEFEAREBEZMIRE S5 2 K
Group’'s geographical areas for the years ended 31 BIFEEEEB WA RIERBNE E
December 2017 and 2016. Bkt
United Hong

Year ended/as at 31 December 2017 PRC States Kong Total
BZ2017512ANALEE/ HE %6 B @t

W2017%12A31R HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TET TAT TER

Continuing operations BERKEER
Segment revenue: DERA

Sales to external customers HETIHIBEP 1,278,298 - - 1,278,298
Non-current assets: FERPEE: 5,728,069 277,472 848 6,006,389
Year ended/as at 31 December 2016 United

(Restated) PRC States Hong Kong Total
BZ2016512A3MALEE/ B e B ast

R2016512A310 (REJ) HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET BT FET

Continuing operations BERGEER
Segment revenue: LE LN

Sales to external customers & FINEEF 30,200 - - 30,200
Non-current assets: FERDEE: 4,955,900 242,863 1,403 5,200,166
INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS FEEFEH

There is no major individual customers contributing
over 10% of the total revenue from continuing
operations of the Group for the years ended 31

December 2017 and 2016.

H E20174F 2016512 A318 1IFF
B BEREAEERBECEERE
BRI A10% A EREBEARF -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HlzREER
2017 2016
2017 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FETT
(Restated)
(4&£E5))
Continuing operations RS
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) & 3 W x5, (E518 ) F 48 49,439 (45,922)
Impairment loss of H At fE Y I R E B 1B
other receivables (3,098) -
Others HAb 7,429 2,865
53,770 (43,057)
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. B E A
2017 2016
2017% 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET &7
Continuing operations BEREEK
Interest expenses on: FMEER:
- Bank and other borrowings —HRITREMEE 268,548 232,490
— Convertible bonds and bonds —ABRREFRES
(note 27) (M$&E27) 189,658 155,141
Less: amounts capitalised W ERPHFEMERKE
in properties under MEEARNLZEHE
development for sale and
investment properties (301,703) (232,808)
156,503 154,823

The capitalisation rates on general borrowings during
2017 is 10.78% per annum (2016: 9.45% per annum).

DreamEast Group Limited 2R 7S£ B ER Q7]

R207F—REE 2 ERMLE ABF
10.78% (2016%F : §49.45% ) °



10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FTE%iRxX
2017 2016
2017%F 20164F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T
Continuing operations FEREXEK
PRC Enterprises Income Tax: PR EMISH
Current EH 7,246 1,897
Deferred (note 28) IRAE (F45E28) 12,904 127,871
20,150 129,768
Land appreciation tax: T IRET 75,654 94
95,804 129,862

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years. PRC
subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprises Income Tax
at 25% for both years.

The provision of land appreciation tax (“LAT") is
estimated according to the requirements set forth in
the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has
been provided at ranges of progressive rates of the
appreciation value, with certain allowable exemptions
and deductions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE - continued 10. PR —&
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the REERIASY TG Hf 18 R A bz
profit before tax from continuing operations per the B TRF TR B RIFELE ET
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other B BR T AR M A BN T

comprehensive income as follows:

2017 2016
2017% 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FiETT
(Restated)
(&£E5))
Profit before tax from REFEREER
continuing operations B A% A1l i ) 222,735 172,921
Tax at PRC Enterprises Income BB PEMEH
Tax rate of 25% (2016: 25%) ME25%=TH 2 HIA
(20164 : 25% ) 55,684 43,230
Tax effect of expenses not TR 2 MG 2
deductible for tax purposes 40,146 41,735
Tax effect of income not taxable  HBERHUWA Z HETE
for tax purposes (12,372) (6,206)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERBRBEBB 2 BHETE
recognised 18,107 51,010
Utilisation of tax losses previously ENFA@ERER 2 HEER
not recognised (62,588) -
LAT THIgER 75,654 94
Tax effect of LAT THIBER 2 HIE T2 (18,913) (23)
Others Hh 86 22
Tax charge for the year from RERFERKEER 2
continuing operations F N FIEF S 95,804 129,862
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11.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING 1.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

REFESERB2FR

OPERATIONS gl
2017 2016
2017F 2016%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
(Restated)
(& E5)
Continuing operations BERKEER
Profit for the year from continuing RBEFHELLESH 2
operations has been arrived at FREF &R (FEA)
after charging (crediting): T B IE B EE:
Staff costs including directors’ BINAK BEESZWS
emoluments
Salaries and other benefits costs  #& K EMEF K K 61,734 37,885
Retirement benefit costs R ARAE B AR 5,142 2,677
66,876 40,562
Cost of properties sold recognised R AR X 2 ¥ ¥ #HER A
as expenses (note) (Pf=E) (822,042) (4,194)
Auditor's remuneration Z B AT B & 3,210 3,324
Operating lease rental expenses &&HEHEEA 9,629 11,111
Depreciation of property, ME -BELREETE
plant and equipment 6,217 3,441
Loss on disposal of property HEWE - HEME&EEE
plant and equipment 20 -
Amortisation of prepaid lease T8~ 78 & 5K I8 8
payments (included in (FGTATTHRER)
administrative expenses) 731 -
Rental income from WEMEZHEEWA
investment properties (12,220) (4,131)
Less: direct operating expense B EEKEER 10,921 12,588
(1,299) 8,457
Note: Included in cost of properties sold are interest expenses of e WEHEXELARMNERAIZR

HK$78,229,000 (2016: HK$224,000).

78,229,000/ 7T (20164 : 224,000

BIT) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

12.

13.

DIVIDENDS 12. KA

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year of 720174 (20164F : &) WHEE = E
2017 (2016: nil), nor has any dividend been proposed R AHEAIAR S o B #S HAZR AR TR
since the end of the reporting period. EEBIREMRE
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 13. CRIELKEEK

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group HE2016F12 A3 B ILFE - AEE
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with an H—ZBIE=F([EF])FIVLE
independent third party (the “Purchaser”), pursuant B Bt AEEBBRGRE D
to which the Group conditionally agreed to sell and E K EH B &R E B Cautious
the Purchaser conditionally agreed to purchase the Base Limited ([Cautious Base | ' 1%
entire issued share capital of Cautious Base Limited REARRBZHTBAR) REKE AT
("Cautious Base”, a subsidiary of the Company (%78 [ Cautious Base Group]) Z &
then) and its subsidiaries (collectively known as EETRA HRRAEE ZME
“Cautious Base Group”), which carried out all of the EERBELEERESHEL %
Group's elderly care services and medical equipment HEFIBE R20165F8 A26H Ak
distribution operations. The disposal was completed on Cautious Base GroupZ = #I#E R & B
26 August 2016, on which date the control of Cautious BEREEH-

Base Group was passed to the Purchaser.

The profit from the discontinued operations for the KEZRBERIHEE RS 2 5 HE
preceding year is set out below. KR

2016
20164
HK$'000
T
Profit from the discontinued operations KB BE&IEKEEBE 2 HF 2,477
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries (note 35) & M /& 2~ 7 P15 % F (BT 7E35) 4,016
Total profit from discontinued operations KB E & IFEEETE 2 m T B8 6,493
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13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT BRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - continued 13. BARLEREXK—E&
The results of the discontinued operations for the EFZERIECEER 2 HEEHNRT
preceding year were as follows: X :
2016
20164
HK$'000
T
Revenue WA 53,554
Cost of sales and services $HE R AR A (49,525)
Gross profit £ 4,029
Other income E A A 3,634
Administrative expenses THER (5,189)
Profit before tax BR A% A 2,474
Income tax credit FrigBi & 3
Profit for the year F N 4 F) 2,477
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries (note 35) &M B ARz H (FiE35) 4,016
Total profit from discontinued operations 2K B B 4% 1F 48 & ¥ 715 2 ) F 4858 6,493
Cash flows from discontinued operations: RE B KR IEKEEB 2R M
Net cash inflows from operating activities R B & & E8) 2 IR &M AFEE 2,371
Net cash outflows from investing activities R B IR & /& &) 2 & i L F 58 (297)
2,074

Annual Report 2017 £

169



170

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - continued 13. BRIERKEXEK—E
Profit for the preceding year from discontinued EFZREBELRIELEER 2 afig
operations have been arrived at after charging: R T Y S IEBER:

2016
20164
HK$'000
&I
Staff costs including BINA BRESMS
directors’ emoluments
Salaries and other benefits costs e & H b & R K AR 28,594
Retirement benefit costs B ARAE F KA 1,006
29,600
Auditor's remuneration % BRI B & 78
Operating lease rental expenses KEHE2HESER 15,932
Depreciation of property, WE BEREEITE
plant and equipment 362
Loss on disposal of property HMEWE BEREEEE
plant and equipment 10
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company were

EERBEITBRAEMS

ENHENARRREERESITHR
ABZBEmT

as follows:
2017
20174
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits contributions Total
Fek RKEF
ik Hurg#l TEIMR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TER THET
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Zhou Zheng (Note 1)*  EBE 4 (Miz1) * 120 - - 120
Mr. LamYu Yee, Benjamin ~ #R# R &4 (HiiE2)

(Note 2) 115 4,709 18 4,842
Mr. Zhu Ling (Note 3)* RERE (H33) * 6 - - 6
Mr. Yuan Zhihai (Note 4)* WG (M) * 10 - - 10
Mr. Yang Hongguang (Note 5) #5725t 04 (i z5) 54 = = 54
Mr. Yang Lei (Note 6)* 58 L E (56) 66 - - 66
Mr. Lin Guoxiong (Note 7)  #REIZ 52 £ (FI57) 54 611 15 680
Mr. Chan Tak Kwong* BB A 120 - - 120
Independent Non-Executive BYFHTEE

Directors
Mr. Li Chak Hung TEERE 145 - - 145
Mr. Meng Xiaosu AEHLE 120 - - 120
Mr. Yang Buting BEEEE 120 - - 120
Mr. Zhao Daxin WA & 120 - - 120

1,050 5,320 33 6,403
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AP RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E
14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 14, EERESTHRAEME
EMOLUMENTS - continued — 18
2016
20164
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits  contributions Total
He R RIKEE
we Hin g SRR @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEL FAEL BT FHBT
Executive Directors HBTEE
Mr. Zhou Zheng (Note 1)*  FIBELAE (M) * 120 - - 120
Mr. Zhu Ling (Note 3)* REEE (eE3) * 63 - - 63
Mr. Liu Li (Note 8)* B h ok E (HzEs) * 57 - - 57
Mr. Chan Tak Kwong* BRER LA 120 - - 120
Mr. Yang Hongguang (Note 5) #5734 (FiE5) 120 - - 120
Mr. Lin Guoxiong (Note 7)*  #REH % & (HI5E7) * 56 - - 56
Independent Non-Executive B E#TEE
Directors
Mr. Li Chak Hung TRELE 145 - - 145
Mr. Meng Xiaosu aEHLTE 120 - - 120
Mr. Yang Buting BEERE 120 - - 120
Mr. Zhao Daxin HBAIEE 120 - - 120
1,041 - - 1,041
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

14. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS - continued

*

Notes:

Certain executive directors of the Company received
emoluments from a related company of the Group for the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, in respect of their
services to the larger group which includes the Group. No
apportionment has been made as the qualifying services
provided by these Directors to the Group are incidental to their
responsibilities to the larger group. The related company is
wholly owned by the immediate family members of Mr. Zhou
Zheng.

Zhou Zheng is also the chief executive of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above also included those for services
rendered by him as the chief executive.

Lam Yu Yee, Benjamin was appointed as an executive director
on 18 January 2017.

Zhu Ling was appointed and resigned as an executive director

on 21 June 2016 and 18 January 2017, respectively.

Yuan Zhihai was appointed and resigned as an executive
director on 13 June 2017 and 13 July 2017, respectively.

Yang Hongguang was resigned as an executive director on 13
June 2017.

Yang Lei was appointed as an executive director on 13 June
2017

Lin Guoxiong was appointed and resigned as an executive
director on 13 July 2016 and 13 June 2017, respectively.

Liu Li was resigned as an executive director on 21 June 2016.

The emoluments shown above were mainly for the
Directors’ and chief executives’ services as Directors
of the Company.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the Directors
waived any emoluments for both years.

14, %%&%%ﬁﬂkﬁ%ﬁ

— &

*

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

REE20174F &20165F12 A318 1t
FE - ARRETHATESHES
HEASE (REAEE)REZ
BR 75 4 7 £ B — RS R B 2 =) URCER B
LoWESBEEMNES REAZSE
BEERNAEEREAEEERRY KE
EHBAEBMAERERETZHHER
HeABBEBMARBARLEZE
AEXBREHEA -

EBMRART 2 &SHTTHALR A
ERRERBER MM BERREST
RRITBABRMRRKRE 2#E -

W R R2017F1B18HEZ T A
WMITES-

KER2016F6 821 E LT AB#H
TEEIR2017F1A18H BT 8L
TEE-

SEBR2017F6 A13REZR T AL
TEEWR2017F7 B13BBHERIT
EE-

BEXR2017F6 B13HEHINITE
%a

SEN2017F6 A 1I3EEZERNTT
B

B R2016FE7A1BHEZ T A
PITEEWN2017F6 A 13HBHEH
TES-

2 20166821 H BHE#MITE
$c

EXFRZMEE R REZENEETT
BABRARRHETEZZME -

REEFER FRITRABRES
BEREWEE RIS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

15. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 15. EEFHM
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in FR-AEELSM &S A L2
the Group during the year, two of them (2016: none) (20165 : ) RARREE (FE 2
were Directors of the Company whose emoluments BB R EXCHIFE14) © FINEERS
are included in the disclosures in note 14 above. fiz (20165 :Bh ) EmF AT 2 ®
The emoluments of the remaining three highest paid wm
individuals for the year (2016: five individuals) were as
follows:
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$000 HK$'000
FET T 7T
Salaries and other benefits e kEMERN 3,144 3,685
Discretionary bonuses BB FEAL = 113
Retirement benefits scheme RIKEFETEIHR
contributions 45 105
3,189 3,803
2017 2016
20174 20164
Bands: e E -
Nil — HK$1,000,000 T ITLE1,000,0007% 7T 1 4
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 L&
1,500,000/ 7T 2 1
3 5
Bonuses are calculated based on the Group's or AR - NS =S = NGy Sl el )
respective member's performance for such financial BREEZRBAFTE-
year.
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the FR-AEETEMESSISUER
Group to the Directors or five highest paid individuals FALTZNE  tERIMAREE K
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or RIMARE B 2 585 ol BB (E o

as compensation for loss of office.

174 DreamEast Group Limited 2R 7S£ B AR Q7]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 16, SREXKEHRF

2017 2016
20174 20164F
‘000 ‘000
T B T %
Number of shares [ &vig 4=
Weighted average number of AUFFESRERRERNZ
shares for the purpose of InE R
basic earnings per share 263,012 260,750
Effect of dilutive potential gk BR#EE Bk
ordinary shares in respect of A
Warrants AT - 356
Convertible Bonds Il (as defined  AI#REEHI (FER
in note 27) (2016: nil) MizE27) (20164 : &) 278,485 -
Weighted average number of AUGFEEREERT
ordinary shares for the purpose DA 19 E AR &L
of diluted earnings per share 541,497 261,106
FROM CONTINUING AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS REFERERCRIEREX
%
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share AARHREANEEERERN SR
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the IR TS BIRETE
following data:
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
(Restated)
(ZEF)
Earnings 27
Profit for the year for the purpose UL EGIRERREF 2
of basic earnings per share F N
(profit for the year attributable to  (ARQAHEA A
owners of the Company) FEAG F & F) 115,575 39,741
Effect of dilutive potential BHEELTBR T E:
ordinary shares:
Interest on the Convertible AR ES 2 1IF E
Bonds Il (note 27) (2016: nil) (M5E27) (20164 : £%) 108,037 -
Profit for the year for the purpose RNt ESREEZF 2
of diluted earnings per share F N 223,612 39,741
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

16.

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE  16.

— continued
FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
from continuing operations attributable to owners of
the Company is based on the following data:

gﬂngzkﬁﬁ/éﬁxu_nﬁ

PIEEY T A F s

AR AR R LT
2 R R SRR TR T FIBE
HE:

2017 2016
2017% 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FiE T
(Restated)
(&£E5))
Earnings ZR
Profit for the year attributable to ~ ANRA & B A FE(E E A F
owners of the Company 115,575 39,741
Less: profit for the year from BREERIEREER 2
discontinued operations FREF (HFE13)
(note 13) - (6,493)
Profit for the year for the purpose FIAFTE IR BB L EEK
of basic earnings per share from Z&REREF 2
continuing operations F 5 F 115,575 33,248
Effect of dilutive potential BrEEBELTRAR  TE:
ordinary shares:
Interest on the Convertible AR ES2F &
Bonds Il (note 27) (2016: nil) (Mi5E27) (20164 : &%) 108,037 -
Profit for the year for the purpose FUAGTEREEFELEEK
of diluted earnings per share from 2Z&R#ERF 2
continuing operations F Rk 223,612 33,248

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for calculating the basic and diluted earnings per

share.

DreamEast Group Limited 2R 7S£ B AR Q7]
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16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB RM

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
— continued
FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, basic
and diluted earnings per share from discontinued
operations were HK$0.02490 and HK$0.02487 per
share respectively, and were calculated based on the
profit for the year from discontinued operations of
approximately HK$6,493,000 and the denominators
detailed above for calculating basic and diluted
earnings per share.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for
the year ended 31 December 2017 did not assume
the conversion of the Company's Convertible Bonds
Il (2016: Convertible Bonds | and Convertible Bonds
[1) since their assumed exercise would result in
an increase in earnings per share from continuing
operations.

16.

BREARBERN &

RECOKRIEREEEK
HE2016F12831BILEE KAD
BRI TS R E AN RS A A
7 Bl A& 0.024907%5 7T 520.024877%
T HERKEERIEEEER 2 F
A3t | #76,493,00078 7T LA K+ TP
HM AR ESREARRBEEAT
AEMBEL -

HEHE207FE12ANBIEFECF
IS BT BRI A N T 2 A
% E#I (20164F « A 2 A% (& 251 &%
AR EHN) - REAERRITE
BeEBRERECEER I EBRE
FI3 A0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

17.

Wz s
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1. VE - BERREE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Computer
land Leasehold office Medical equipment Motor  Construction
buildings imp Juif i and software vehicles in progress Total
BE BE  BHRER BHRE
1HEF NERE  BOERE BRRE R&#k hat-3 ERIE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
THL AT T THL THL AT T THT

cosT A
At 1 January 2016 [restated) 201651518 (&) - 27691 12,463 770 6,035 3,429 - 50,388
Additions AE - 7002 2,768 - 348 549 - 10,667
Acquisition of a subsidiary hE-EHELR - - 17 - 83 676 - 77
Disposals HE - - (133) 4) 9 - - (146)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENRAR - (27599) (5,698) (766) 1,899) - - (35,962)
Exchange realignment EifE - 306) 503) - (276) (91) - (1,176)
At 31 December 2016 (restated) R2016512A318 (BE5)) - 6,788 8914 - 4282 45563 - 24,541
Additions AE - 31 1,002 - 921 698 14110 16,762
Acquisition of a subsidiary hE-BRELAR - - 12 - 116 - - 128
Transfer from investment properties ERARENE 26,276 - - - - - - 26,276
Disposals HE - - (260) - (9) = = (269)
Disposal of & subsidiary HE-FMBAR - (6,994) 4,090) - 4,039) - - (15,123)
Exchange realignment EiBE 978 300 “ - 189 162 453 2529
At 31 December 2017 20175124318 21,254 125 6,025 - 1,460 5423 14,563 54,850
DEPRECIATION ik 3
At 1 January 2016 [restated) H2016561 818 (BE7) - 27378 5,669 755 2,101 1,394 - 37297
Depreciation it - 1,001 1,274 6 667 865 - 3803
Eliminated on disposals HERHH - - (123 4) 9 - - (136)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBATA - (27429) 4,908) (757) 1872 - - (34,966)
Exchange realignment EXHE - (36) (78) - 44 (62) - 210
At 31 Degember 2016 (restated] RI6E 12631 (£E7) - 914 14834 - 8 2207 - 5788
Depreciation ik 985 50 2,144 - 1,996 1,082 - 6,217
Eliminated on disposals HERHE - - (249) - - - - (249)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-BHBAA - (895) (80) - (2,646) - - (3,621)
Exchange realignment EiHE 37 56 161 - 35 80 - 369
At 31 December 2017 20178127318 1,022 125 3810 - 218 3,329 - 8,504
CARRYING AMOUNT EEE
At 31 December 2017 #2017512A318 26,232 - 2,215 - 1,242 2,094 14,563 46,346
At 31 December 2016 20165127318 - 5874 7080 - 3,449 2,356 - 18,759
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19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B BHRERMETE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. FANHENE
2017 2016
201745 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiE T FAT
Prepaid lease payments TEfT & 58 298,675 102,737
Analysed for reporting purposes as: i E B DT 4
Non-current IER B 53,648 -
Current (included in other current &) (st AEMREE E
assets (note 23)) (Ff7E23) ) 245,027 102,737
298,675 102,737

Prepaid lease payment represents land use right in the
PRC.

BENHEERBEER BN LHER
e

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR 19. BREPSEYE
SALE
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Properties under development BRPGEME
for sale 1,883,976 2,093,097
At the end of the year RER 1,883,976 2,093,097

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group pledged
certain of its properties under development for sale,
details of which are set out in note 30.

The Group's properties under development for sale
are situated in the PRC. Included in the amount
are properties under development for sale of
HK$1,061,582,000 (2016: HK$605,587,000) which are
not expected to be completed and available for sale
within twelve months from the end of the reporting
period.

R20174F 2016512 A31H » A& E
BIREETRREPEEYE G
EE IS0 ©

REBZERTEEDEMRF
- BB EEHE1,061,582,000/8 7T
(2016%F : 605,587000/8 7T ) Z B R+
HEDE BHREBEDETTNRE
BARARET121E B R T K Al 56 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

20.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 20 REYE
HK$'000
TR
Fair value AREHE
At 31 December 2015 2015512 A31H 4,014,180
Transfer from completed properties EEACRTHEDE (M)
held for sale (note) 334,447
Additions NE 625,936
Gain on fair value change of WEMERANBEEZDH 2 W
investment properties 511,483
Exchange realignment & 5 % (318,828)
At 31 December 2016 72016512431 H 5,167.218
Transfer from completed properties BRERAERIFEDE (W)
held for sale (note) 215,105
Additions NE 559,913
Reclassified as properties held for sale BENOBERTEME (611,942)
Transfer to property, plant and HEEyE mERSEE (HE17)
equipment (note 17) (26,276)
Gain on fair value change of KREWMERABEEZS 2N
investment properties 51,616
Exchange realignment S 369,242
At 31 December 2017 72017512431 H 5,724,876

Note:  Amount represented the transfer from completed properties B 5T -
held for sale to investment properties during the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016 upon commencement of the

operating lease agreements.

SHEEFEEHEEREEREEE
E20174F N20165F 12 A31H L F [Z
ERIGEMEERZREYE-

The Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals are measured using fair
value model and is classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

As at 31 December 2017 the Group pledged certain
of its investment properties to certain bank and other
financial institutions to secure borrowings obtained
from the aforesaid bank and other financial institutions
(2016: to certain bank and other financial institutions
to secure borrowings obtained from the aforesaid bank
and other financial institutions), details of which are set
out in note 30.

DreamEast Group Limited 2R 7S£ B AR Q7]
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20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB RM

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

The fair values of the Group's investment properties as
at 31 December 2017 were arrived at on the basis of
valuation carried out by CHFT Advisory and Appraisal
Ltd. and CBRE Group Inc. (2016: Crowe Horwath
(HK) Consulting & Valuation Limited and CBRE Group
Inc.), independent qualified professional valuers not
connected with the Group.

The Group engaged the third party qualified valuers
to perform the valuation. The Directors work closely
with the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model.

The fair values of completed investment properties
as at 31 December 2017 were determined based on
the income capitalisation method whereby the rental
income of contractual tenancies are capitalised for the
unexpired term of tenancies. The reversionary market
rent after the expiry of tenancies is also taken into
account.

Fair value of the investment properties under
development as at 31 December 2017 were derived
using the multiple valuation techniques, including
residual method and direct comparison method.
Residual method is essentially a means of valuing
the project by reference to its development potential
by deducting development costs together with
developer's profit and risk from the estimated
capital value of the proposed development
assuming completed in accordance with the existing
development plans as at the date of valuation,
which duly reflected the risks associated with the
development. Direct comparison method is by
reference to market comparable with adjustments
to reflect the additions and locations of the subject
properties.

In measuring the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current
use.

20.

REYE—E
REBREYER2017F12A318 2
AABEDRBEESZ BN EER
NE| R AR T EE (20164 : E
ESHE (BB EATHERARK
HHPIRIB T EE)ET 2 (AERTE -
ZE LN AR B ERE B
VA BIREETER

AEEREE =7 A ERHEEETT
HE -EFHEA BRI )
WA VEARR LB 2 fh (Bl M AR AL 2
BARE -

B T &Y ER2017F12A31H
ZARBERBVRABERNUEETE &
it REHRAOSE 2z A ENES
WAEEFTER WM I R
WEmEzERM SRS

BREPLEWEN2017F12A318 2
AR EERBZEHERI 2R
HEBEEREELEAEE - FIHRE
BEAE T2 EBEBNFAE N
R A R It R IE B
(BRIZNMEE B 2R A MET S
BT MEFHERNBEM SR EAT
Wk EREEZIBE EITHE B
ARERT HFEEABENRR B
BRI EM S A L ENEL T
B DR BRIZ B 90 2 & BT N SR R AL
Eo

RETEVMERZ AR BER MENK
B REERERAERERE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao B R RM

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — continued

The following table gives information about how
the fair values of these investment properties are
determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and
inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into
which the fair value measurements are categorized ES YA

NN

based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair o
value measurements is observable.

AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

Investment properties
held by the Group
AREEEZRENXE

Fair value
hierarchy
MRABEER

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)
HERGTREERAHE

TREVIBHEEZFREMELN
BEZITEZEN CFRIRMAERMAZ
HERMEBAZBE)  ARBER
REEAEZHEAZBEBENAIERE
EBEFEIBEZANEER

RA2017F12A31H

Significant unobservable input(s)

EATUREGARE

Relationship of unobservable
input(s) to fair value

FABRAABEANAEECHE

The 4th Generation

SkyOcean City - Completed

(Carrying amount:

HK$904,882,000, including properties
transferred upon commencement of
operating lease agreements)

Level 3

REHM-BRT (RAEME: F=E
904,882,000 T BERTERE
EEFC Tl ES)

DreamEast Group Limited 2R FEEHR AT

Income capitalisation
method (term and
reversionary approach)

WABRLE
(FHRERE)

The key inputs are:

(1) Term yield;

(2) Reversionary yield;

(3) Market unit rent of
individual unit; and

(4) Level adjustment

IBHAEA:

(1) E Bl E

(2) BHEWE:

(3) AR EAL 2 W5 EA
e R

4 BERE

Term yield, taking into account of
yield generated from comparable
properties and adjustment to reflect
the certainty of term income secured
and to be received, of 7%.

EHKE RSB NEEE 2 KE
RARBENERERAEKRZE
WAL 2B R7% °

Reversionary yield, taking into account
annual unit market rental income and
unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 7.5%.

BENE ARAREENE  EREL
TSRS NAREMTE B75%

Market unit rent, using direct market
comparable and taking into account
of time, location and other individual
factors such as size and quantum of
properties, of RMB126/sg.m./month.

mHELRS RAEERTSIHILRA
B Rt RER EMEMERNER
flinE A N REE AERETAK
ARMB1267°

Level adjustment on individual floors of
the property range from 40% to 60%
on specific level.

ERMEREZEERAR N TETER
Z40%%E60% °

A slight increase in the term yield used
would result in a significant decrease
in the fair value measurement of the
investment properties, and vice versa.

i EmERLARNT IeERREANE
DABEHEAETR RZHA

A slight increase in the reversionary
yield used would result in a significant
decrease in the fair value measurement
of the investment properties and vice
versa.

A BES R MeERRENE
RABEAEAETR R2HA-

A slight increase in the market unit rent
used would result in a significant
increase in the fair value measurement
of the investment properties and vice
versa.

WREATEEL AL AeERRE
NEDABEHEXELI RZTR

An increase in the level adjustment on
individual floors used would result in a
decrease in the fair value measurement
of the investment properties by a lower
percentage, and vice versa.

M AE ERIEE L R ERREM
HAEEHRANEAARENEAREL
BALKE RZTR
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued
AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 - continued

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)

20.

REW=-E

R20175128318H — &

Significant unobservable input(s)

RERHRIEBARE EATTERBARE

Relationship of unobservable
input(s) to fair value

FIBEBABBERANABEZHE

Investment properties Fair value
held by the Group hierarchy
AEESECRENE AAEEER
The COMB+ (Beijing Level 3
Fangshan) - Under construction

(Carrying amount:

HK$4,464,596,000)

(1 piece of land completed,

and 2 pieces of land under

construction)

BREL (tREWL) 2=
-

(B E - 4,464,596,000% )
(—RERT i RMELRLH)

The Jiashan Project (Jiashan) Level 3
(Carrying amount:

HK$16,988,000)

REHA (5%) F=E

(BRI {E: 16,988,000/ L)

Multiple valuation
techniques:

Residual method and
income method

The key inputs of
residual method is:
(1) Total development
cost to completion
(2) Expected developer
profit margin

The key inputs of
income method are:
(1) Term yield;

(2) Market unit rent of
individual unit.

LERBER:
FBBEERMAE

FBnEEETREANE
B
(1) THRENERR
AR
(2) BEREEANEE
WNEZEGAEER:
(1) E Bz

(2) RN AL 2 BB
ikl

Direct comparison
method

The key input is:
(1) Unit site rate

ERUEE

ITREARER:
(1) B EMLLE

Estimation of development costs not
yet incurred or contracted based on
existing development plans.

Estimation of developer profit margin.

Term yield, taking into account of
yield generated from comparable
properties and adjustment to reflect
the certainty of term income secured
and to be received, of 5.5% for retail,
of 3% for office.

Market unit rent, using direct market
comparable and taking into account
of time, location and other individual
factors such as size and quantum of
properties, of range from RMB180/
sg.m./month to RMB210/sg.m./month
on GFA for retail, and of range from
RMB60/sg.m./month to RMB78/
sg.m./month on GFA for office.

RERARRABIGEHAELERCATH
WERRA-

RS T

EHRE fRAREEMEEL 2 WS
RARBENCRERHRRZ EH
WAL BE TENER56%
BRENER% ©

THELES RAERTSIHLER
B R RER pHENALENRE
flpER ) REE TENENTE
ABTHRREARARKIOTES
ASTHAREEBRARK2I07 M
BRENENTFEASTHRREER
ARBOOTEEAGTHRREERA
R#787 -

Unit site rate, using direct market
comparables and taking into account
of time, location and individual
factors such as size and quantum of
properties of RMB980/sg.m.

GHBLLE RAERTSIHLEE
B Rt SR R RENER §lm
NENKIREE BETHRARE
9807T

Increase in the development costs
would result in a decrease in the fair
value measurement of the investment
properties by the same percentage
increase, and vice versa.

A significant increase in the expected profit
would result in a significant increase in
fair value measured of the investment
properties and vice versa.

A slight increase in the reversionary
yield used would result in a significant
decrease in the fair value measurement
of the investment properties and vice
versa.

A slight increase in the market unit rent
used would result in a significant
increase in the fair value measurement
of the investment properties and vice
versa.

BRAAEN NEERRANEAAEE
AERERENBENTR R2TR-

BENERBENKQEHRENELLE
EEFERBEEM RZTR

W EAES KA B RREYE
RABEHERE TR R2HHR-

HAERATSELASHMTT AQERRE
NEDABEHERE LI RZTFR

A slight increase in the unit site rate
would result in an increase in the fair
value measurement of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

A RASEM L EMTT A ERRE
NELDABEHELA RZHA-
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

20.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued
AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 - continued

20 REYWE-&E
A2017F128310 — &

Investment properties Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) input(s) to fair value
AEEEECRENE AAEEER FEXGRIEGANE EATIREBAUE FTURERAMBEAAEECBE
The Hengnan Project (Hengnan) Level 3 Direct comparison Unit site rate, using direct market A slight increase in the unit site rate
(Carrying amount: method comparables and taking into account would result in an increase in the fair
HK$61,011,000) of time, location and individual value measurement of the investment
The key input is: factors such as size and quantum of properties, and vice versa.
(1) Unit site rate properties of RMB422/sq.m.
EmER (F8) E=E BERIBE GBI E RREERTSUMLEE WHAGASOEM L EMA WEBIRE
(SR 61,011,00087) ARARER HERENER Al DEALEBEAELA RZFA-
BRUBEEERANE  DEOXNIREE RETHRARS
R 42278
(1) SFn B %
The Irvine Project Level 3 Direct comparison Unit site rate, taking into account the A slight increase in the unit site rate used
(US Property) method time, location, and individual factors, would result in a significant increase
(Carrying amount: such as frontage and size, between in the fair value measurement of the
HK$277,399,000) The key inputs of direct the comparable and the property, of investment properties and vice versa.
comparison method is: range from US$1,228.92/sq.m. to
Unit site rate US$1,848.16/sq.m
MEEE (ZEVE) FZE BREBE IS BN E 5 RER B RERR  (HAERSEM LR WeBRRE
(BREfE:277399,000%7T) Z QIMAHEBEARNENGER  NERABEHERELA KB4
ERIBEETERGAEE KD NTETHR282ETEE
A FHK1,848.16% L
BN %

DreamEast Group Limited 2R FEEHR AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

Investment properties
held by the Group
AREREZRENE

Fair value
hierarchy
ANREEER

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)

HERNREIEGARE

20.

REW=-E

2016512 831H

Significant unobservable input(s)

EARTEEBARE

Relationship of unobservable
input(s) to fair value

FARRBABEALNEEZHE

The 4th Generation

SkyOcean City - Completed

(Carrying amount:

HK$605,918,000, including properties
transferred upon commencement of
operating lease agreements)

REFAR-CRI (FEE:
605,918,000 T BERNCERE
BEREREERENE)

Level 3

Income capitalisation
method (term and
reversionary approach)

LUN-.N14/
(FHRERE)

The key inputs are:
(1) Term vyield,
(2) Reversionary yield;
(3) Market unit rent of
individual unit; and
(4) Level adjustment

TEHAREA:
(1) & B
(2) BB
Q) ERIBR 2 TIHE
fifie: Rk
(4) BEAE

Term yield, taking into account of
yield generated from comparable
properties and adjustment to reflect
the certainty of term income secured
and to be received, of 7%.

EHRE A RAEEENEEE 2 NG
LBREBEIERG RABKRTE
WATEL 2 HE BT% o

Reversionary yield, taking into account
annual unit market rental income and
unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 75%.

BBk SRABLENE 2 FREM
TEHERARERMTE R75%

Market unit rent, using direct market
comparable and taking into account
of time, location and other individual
factors such as size and quantum of
properties, of RMB127/sq.m./month.

TEENES REEETSTHRLER
BRI RER BN GENER
PlmmEAREE BEAGTHA
ARE1277T

Level adjustment on individual floors of
the property range from 40% to 60%
on specific level.

ERn¥BE RESE NTHTEE
Z40%Z60% ©

A slight increase in the term yield used
would result in a significant decrease
in the fair value measurement of the
investment properties, and vice versa.

fiFfE A e Mk At M ERREYE
RABEHEXETR RZHR

A slight increase in the reversionary
yield used would result in a significant
decrease in the fair value measurement
of the investment properties and vice
versa.

A AES RN AeERRENE
DABEHEABTHR RZFR

A slight increase in the market unit rent
used would result in a significant
increase in the fair value measurement
of the investment properties and vice
versa,

AT EL AL NegRRE
NERABEHENE LI RZTR

An increase in the level adjustment on
individual floors used would result in a
decrease in the fair value measurement
of the investment properties by a lower
percentage, and vice versa.

fHFr e ME ERIEE (L 2 RERREN

AeBBRENZARRESEAREL
BRLKE RZTR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

20.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 — continued

2. REVE-&
20165128310 — &

Investment properties Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) input(s) to fair value
rEEREZRENE MEBEER HERNRIZBABE EXTTBRBABE FTUBERAABEANBEEBE
The COMB+ (Beijing Level 3 Residual method Estimation of development costs not Increase in the development costs
Fangshan) - yet incurred or contracted based on would result in a decrease in the fair
Under construction The key input of residual existing development plans. value measurement of the investment
(Carrying amount: method is: properties by the same percentage
HK$4,318,566,000) (1) Total development increase, and vice versa.
(3 pieces of land cost to completion
under construction) (2) Expected Estimation of developer profit margin. A significant increase in the expected profit
developer profit would result in a significant increase in
margin fair value measured of the investment
properties and vice versa.
BRBE (LREL) EZE HnEEE BERARBHEGENAEELRTN BRMAEMN NGEHRENELNER
-Eg MERRA- SAEEEREMEENTE R2KFA.
(BRTE1E : 4,318,566,000/8 7T ) HBEEEEERATE
(ZlRERLH) R REBHEERET- RERFBABENEEERRENERAE
(1) TREAZNEEE B EREEM R A
KR
(2) BEREEHEE
The Irvine Project (US Property) Level 3 Multiple valuation Unit site rate, taking into account the A slight increase in the unit site rate used
(Carrying amount: techniques: time, location, and individual factors, would result in a significant increase
HK$242,734,000) Direct comparison such as frontage and size, between in the fair value measurement of the
method and income the comparable and the property, of investment properties and vice versa.
method range from US$1,433.65/sq.m. to
US$1,722.23/sq.m.
The key inputs of direct
comparison method is:
Unit site rate
REER (XEY%) £=FE SERERN: GBI SRR B RERE WAEASEL L EMA NEERRE
(FRTE(E 242,734,000 T) ERLRERIAZ Z OIMA BN RER RDENBER  DERABEAERNELA RZBR-
RPN FET K 433655 TEE
ERIRETEGARE  TAA17228%Te

DreamEast Group Limited 2R FEEHR AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB RM

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued 20 BEWE-E&
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND VALUATION ARAEBEEFERGAEBRE
PROCESSES
In estimating the fair value of the Group's investment EhFAEEREME L AAEE
properties, the Group uses market-observable data W AEEgERRAHER 25
to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are BREE -WEIEE—ENHAH
not available, the Group engages third party qualified B AEBSREFE - FEEKTE
valuers to perform the valuation of the Group's MARNER ZIREYFEETHE RN
investment properties. The Group will first consider and SEHEAERIERAZE _ERAR
adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived from B RE@EE AZBBAEERMES
observable quoted prices in the active market. When NI EBRREES - MEEE_EN
Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group will adopt AR AEBERISRABRESE=
valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs. The & &) A BUE 2 (S ERIT - (AERNE
valuation techniques have been calibrated so that at TEEE IE LAME R WA TSR I (A E i
initial recognition, the result of the valuation techniques FriSERERZ S EMER - HEEARD
is reconciled to the transaction price. Where there BEENBREERED: AeREERS
is a material change in the fair value of the assets, BREEBZREA-
the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the
Directors.
TRADE RECEIVABLES 2. ESEWRE
2017 2016
2017F 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T T
Trade receivables Z 5 fE W I8 8,455 4,631
Less: allowance for doubtful debts J& : R ER B 5 - -
8,455 4,631

The following is an analysis of trade receivables by age,
presented based on invoice date, and net of allowance
for doubtful debts at the end of the reporting period:

HEZEMGE RNREHRESRE
WRIE 2 Bk 2 A (EF0BR R R
w25

2017 2016

20174 2016%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FATT

Current to 90 days BIHAZ90H 8,455 4,631
91 to 180 days 912180H - -
8,455 4,631

No debtors which are past due but not impaired at the
end of this reporting period (2016: nil).

RASREHAR I E D B E R REZ
FEULBE X (20164F - 48 ) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao B R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES - continued 21.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group's trade
receivables are individually reviewed to determine if
impaired. The amount of impairment loss of individually
impaired receivables, if any, are recognised based on
the credit history of its customers, such as financial
difficulties or default in payments. Consequently,
specific impairment provision is recognised.

B RWRE-&

RERE IR - Ak B &R (ERIER
BSREIUE DEERETHRR
fE1 {13 HH B AE 2 FE MR 2
BESE(WE) DERER 2 EE
SLE% (ANEA TR B S B 2B 3K) T IA
R BRI RR R E R

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts: RIRBEEZEHWOT
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAET
Balance at beginning of the year  F#]Z &% - 75
Amount written off ZiHE R - (75)
Balance at end of the year F R 2 &R — —

DreamEast Group Limited 2R 7S£ B AR Q7]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB RM

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

22. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

22.

H fth fE W RROIR -

BRERAE

PREPAYMENTS NRIE

2017 2016
201745 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET &
(Restated)
(& E5)
Pledged deposits (note) EHERFR (M5 648,395 963,656
Other receivables H A pE W 58 22,775 13,818
Deposits paid BftiEe 795 3,005
Prepayments TET 5RIB 6,948 12,261
678,913 992,740

Note: As at 31 December 2017, deposits amounting to fsx: ®M2017F12H31H - AR

RMB542,000,000 (equivalent to HK$648,395,000)
(31 December 2016: RMB862,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$963,656,000)) were pledged to an independent third
party to secure the loans amounting to HK$646,714,000 (31
December 2016: HK$959,482,000) granted to the Group by
a financial institution in the PRC (the “Lender”,
party of the above independent third party), details of which
are set out in note 26(b)(ii). Pursuant to agreements entered
into between the Group and the aforesaid independent third
party, and agreements entered into between the Group and
the Lender, upon maturity of the aforesaid loans, the Lender

a related

agreed that the Group does not need to make any repayment
of the loans to the Lender. On the other hand, the Group also
agreed that the aforesaid independent third party does not
need to repay any of the above pledged deposits to the Group.
Based on the legal opinions issued by the Company's PRC and
Hong Kong legal counsels, the aforesaid agreements effecting
the net-off arrangement are legally enforceable.

#®6542,000,0005T (B ER
648,395,000 L) (20164128
31H: AR %862,000,0007C (48
& 4963,6566,000/8 7T) ) Z 17 &K
BHEBTBIE=H EA T
HemkiE([EXRAl BB
EZAzEBAL)IETAEE Y
646,714,000/ L& 7 (201612 A
318 : 959,482,000 7T ) 2 & #f -
BBV I E26(b) (i) < IRIE AN K E
BB E AR 2 HERA
E@MBAERAGT LW £ Lt
BRI B ERARSAEEE
FRAHEEFHEER -Z—HE &
SENRE MBS =HEFE
BB EEATER T AREE BRI
AREPERESEEEBTRME
ZHERER FZETHREA
BIERPITHN -

Annual Report 2017 £

189



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

23. OTHER CURRENT/LONG TERM ASSETS 23. HiRE RHBEE
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(f&E5))
Prepayments for certain AREHERR
land use rights ATIEAE L
for property development TEf B (M REN)
purpose (note ii) 124,126 -
Prepayments to a construction MEEABHTEN
contractor (note i) KIE (KEED) 49,784 6,215
Others Hh, 7,609 7974
Other long term assets HEmEBAEE 181,519 14,189
Prepayments to construction SRR TEN
contractors (note i) FRIE (PfEEi) 13,867 333,574
Prepayments for certain AREHERR 2
land use rights for property ATIEAE L
development purpose (note ii) TR FIE (B 5Eii) 245,027 102,737
Prepayment for taxes SRR R 12,173 24,153
Others Hh, 1,566 1,907
Other current assets H s & E 272,633 462,371

Notes:

(i)

(i)

Other long term assets consisted of prepayments paid to a
contractor in relation to the construction of certain investment
properties. Prepayments in relation to the construction of
properties for sales paid to certain contractors were recorded
as other current assets.

Amounts represented the prepayment for certain land use
rights of pieces of land in the PRC with the lease term
between 40 and 70 years for the purpose of property
development of sale and investment properties.

As at 31 December 2017 included therein are advance to
certain local government authority of RMB148,076,000
(equivalent to HK$177,143,000) (2016: nil), which is unsecured
and will be treated as the prepayment for acquiring certain
land use rights in the areas controlled by such local
government in the future. Advances in relation to the land use
rights for the purpose of property development for sale were
recorded as other current assets.

DreamEast Group Limited 2R 7S£ B AR Q7]

i

(ii)

HRPEEBERRESTRE
MEXN T AR ZANFIE 5
BREGEMEXNTETARHZ
AN REIIEE MR E B E -

FZHBEEANHERRENER I
EERZ2ETIHERBEZRANRK
B %S LR E - EENF40
FET0F -

MR2017F12A831H  ZERER
FRETHHRMAHMZ 2R
AR #¥148,076,0007T (&R
177,143,000 7T) (20164 : f&) -
BEERTBREARBREES
R 75 B ETiE @ 2 5 F i
FRAEZEMRE - AREREPF
EMEZ T FE AR BREEER
ftb 7 Bh & EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao BB RM

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 24,

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the
Group and short-term deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less.

The range of effective interest rates of bank balances
at 31 December 2017 were 0.01% to 0.35% (2016:
0.01% to 0.35%) per annum.

RITEHRRASE
PITEB LR S EAEERERS
RRE|SA A=A A AR S

e
N

R2017F 128310 - RITE#HB B
B £ I = 1) F£0.01 % 50.35% (2016
F I NF0.01%ZE0.35% ) °

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 2% EFNHMESRERTE
ACCRUALS RAIE
2017 2016
2017F 2016%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
(Restated)
(& E5)
Trade payables B SN F0E 434,638 330,846
Other payables, accruals and H At 38 - TR RIE K
deposits received BIEE 124,835 81,688
Deposits from customers for REERFEVWERRP 2
properties developed for sale e 119,391 510,117
678,864 922,651

The ageing of trade payables based on invoice date is
0 to 90 days. The average credit period on purchase
of goods is 90 days. The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all
payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

WERRAMGE EHRNRAZKE
B ROEH - REEMZ FHEE
HI790H - REEC HE M B R E
BHR  ERAA RN FERNEEH
MAETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[Z

26.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 26. WITRHMEE
2017 2016
2017 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T 7T
Bank borrowings RITEE
Secured/guaranteed (note a) BHEEBER (MEa) 3,417,491 1,025,065
Other borrowings HibfEE
Secured/guaranteed (note b) BHE®BER(KEDL) 1,060,356 2,961,746
4,477,847 3,986,811
Total borrowings are repayable BERECERBAOT
as follows:
- Repayable within one year ——FRNEE 850,136 1,218,040
— Repayable over 1 year and ——FREMFNEE
within 2 years 641,217 1,653,189
— Repayable over 2 years and —MEFEBRERAFNEE
within 5 years 2,986,494 1,115,582
4,477,847 3,986,811
Less: Amounts shown under WmEBAEE TR
current liabilities ok (850,136) (1,218,040)
Amounts shown under IEMBEBEE NI RS
non-current liabilities 3,627,711 2,768,771
Fixed rate borrowings EEEE 1,060,356 2,961,746
Floating rate borrowings HEEE 3,417,491 1,025,065
4,477,847 3,986,811
Bank and other borrowings TS EEGEZRITR
dominated in: HMEE:
- RMB —AR% 4,394,055 3,901,763
- US$ -7 83,792 85,048
4,477,847 3,986,811

DreamEast Group Limited 2R 7S£ B AR Q7]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

26. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS - continued 26. S|R{ITRHMEE &

Notes: B 5 -

REBEZ BEARITEETIARSE
EBETEEERER REZKREE

a. The secured bank borrowings of the Group were secured a.
by certain assets of the Group and their carrying amounts

are as follows:

W

2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T

Properties under development for ~ #REFPFEWE (ME19)
sales (note 19) 469,427 1,033,347
Investment properties (note 20) EYE (H320) 4,464,596 1,507,693
Completed properties held for sale B #® THFEME 714,748 -
Pledged bank deposits BHEMRITFER 1,793 3,589
5,650,564 2,544,629

The bank borrowings were also jointly guaranteed by Mr. Zhou

Zheng, a director and an ultimate controlling shareholder of

the Company, and certain related parties.

The details of secured and guaranteed other borrowings of the

RITBENNBARRESE REEE
P& BB SRR R 5 A DA B TR s 7

R{E AR -

AEBEZEERREEREMER

Group are as follows: ZEBWT
2017 2016
2017%F 20164F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Loans from trust fund companies REEXESRARZER
(note i) (M aED) 413,642 2,002,264
Loans from a financial institution RE—RemigE zsER
(note ii) (B &Eii) 646,714 959,482
1,060,356 2,961,746
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao B R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[Z

26. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS - continued

Notes: — continued

b. — continued

(i)

(i)

DreamEast Group Limited Z2H 7 &

In June 2016, SkyOcean Real Estate (Tangshan)
Co., Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group
borrowed a loan of RMB396,000,000 from a trust
loan company. The loan is secured by certain
investment properties with fair value of approximately
HK$904,882,000 (2016: HK$605,918,000) and
completed properties held for sale with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$162,569,000
(2016: HK$329,788,000) and guaranteed by
Beijing SkyOcean, a subsidiary of the Group, and
Beijing SkyOcean International Holdings Limited
("Beijing SkyOcean Holdings"”), a company
beneficially owned as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng.
The loan carries effective interest rate at 9.03%
per annum. During the current year, the Group
has repaid RMB50,000,000, which is equivalent
to HK$57,670,000, to the trust fund company.
RMB100,000,000 of the loan will be repaid on 2 June
2018. The remaining balance of the loan will be due
for repayment on 2 June 2019.

During the current year, the loan from other trust fund
companies of RMB1,400,000,000, which is equivalent
to HK$1,614,746,000, were repaid in full by the
Group.

As at 31 December 2017, certain loans were
borrowed from a financial institution in the
PRC which are secured by the Group's pledged
deposits of HK$648,395,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$963,656,000), bearing interest at a rate of
1.11% to 1.20% (2016: 1.11% to 1.22%) per annum
and repayable within one year from 31 December
2017. Details of the pledged deposits are set out in
note 22. During the current year, the Group did not
raise any further new loans (2016: HK$116,896,000)
but repaid certain loans with carrying amount
of RMB320,000,000, which is equivalent to
HK$369,085,000 (2016: Nil) from the aforesaid
financial institution. For certain loans borrowed in
prior years which were outstanding at 31 December
2016 were renewed during the current year upon
entering into the respective agreements by the Group
and the Lender as defined in note 22.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS 2]. ABRREBEFKES
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
Liability components BEH
- RMB19,680,000 (31 December — AR #19,680,0007T
2016: RMB29,520,000) 8.5% (201641284318 -
convertible bonds (note i) AR #29,520,000
TL) R FEFES 5%
FTEZAMRES
(B &ED) 23,728 31,985
- HK$270,000,000 8.5% bonds —270,000,0007% 7T *
(note i) REMEBE%TEZ
&% (T 271,549 271,515
- HK$470,000,000 8% bonds —470,000,000 7T *
(note i) REMNER%T B2
&% (T 442,303 426,400
- RMB1,500,000,000 zero coupon  — A R #1,500,000,000
convertible bonds (note ii) T TR AR ES
(B3 1,398,763 1,202,413
2,136,343 1,932,313

(i)

On 12 November 2015, the Company issued a two-year
term RMB8.5% secured convertible bonds due 2017 in
an aggregate principal amount of RMB29,520,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds 1”) to an independent third party. In
addition to which, on the same date, the Company also issued
a two-year term HK$8.5% secured guaranteed bonds due
2017 in an aggregate principal amount of HK$270,000,000
(the “"Bonds ") to the same holder of the Convertible Bonds
|. The total net proceeds from the issue of the Convertibles
Bonds | and the Bonds | are used for funding general working
capital, as well as mergers and acquisitions by the Group. The
Convertible Bonds | and the Bonds | are jointly guaranteed
by Mr. Zhou Zheng and certain related parties and corporate
guarantee provided by Beijing SkyOcean Holdings, a company
beneficially owned as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng. The
Convertible Bonds | and the Bonds | are also secured by share
charge over certain number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company held by SkyOcean Investment Holdings Limited, the
immediate holding company of the Company.

M201611 A128 » AR 8 %17
R2017F R A BEABARE
29,520,0007C 8 W F HA A K40 AR
M SHE - R F RS 5%RT B 2 ATiR
fRES ([FTHRRES ) GEBILE
=He i RERA - ARRINARE
— IR EHIFE ABITR2017F
FIHEAZAN € 48%8/4270,000,00078 7L HY
WE B IEER ERETE  KFE
ME8 5%t B2ES ([EHI]) -
BT E S I R EH |2 BFTE
BFERERN—REEES A
SEETZHBIE -TTRRES
IREHFBEAREERE THEES
HEAER B RRFER (M
HEARTEEREBSO%ER Z A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued

(i)

DreamEast Group Limited Z2H 5 &

— continued

On 28 June 2016, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with the same holder of the Convertible Bonds |
and the Bonds |, for the purpose of issuing three-year term
HK$8% secured guaranteed bond due in 2019 in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$470,000,000 (the “Bonds II”). The
Bonds Il are jointly guaranteed by Mr. Zhou Zheng and certain
related parties. Corporate guarantee was provided by Beijing
SkyOcean Holdings. The Bonds Il are also secured by share
charge over certain number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company held by SkyOcean Investment Holdings Limited,
the immediate holding company of the Company. Pursuant to
the subscription agreement, SkyOcean Investment Holdings
Limited, being the holder of Convertible Bonds Il (as defined
in note 27 (ii)), charged over certain part of Convertible
Bonds Il amounting to RMB450,000,000 (the “Charged
Convertible Bonds I1”) in favour of the holder of Bonds Il. The
Company issued a total amount of the Bond Il amounting to
HK$470,000,000 in 2016 which are subsequently measured at
amortised cost by applying effective interest rate of 12.8% per
annum after taking into consideration of initial transaction cost
of HK$50,700,000 accordingly.

The Convertible Bonds |, the Bonds | and the Bonds II,
constitute direct, unsubordinated, unconditional and secured
obligations of the Company and shall at all times rank pari
passu in all respects and without any preference or priority
among themselves.

On 28 June 2016, the Company reached an agreement with
the holder of the Convertible Bonds | and the Bonds | to
extend the maturity date of Convertible Bonds | and the Bonds
I from 12 November 2017 to 30 June 2019. The extension
mentioned above did not result in material impact on the
financial information of the Group for both years.

In March 2017 certain holders of the Convertible Bonds |
exercised their right to convert certain Convertible Bonds
I, consisting of principal amount of RMB9,840,000, which
is equivalent to HK$12,000,000, into share capital of the
Company. Liability component and equity component of
RMB9,812,000, which is equivalent to HK$11,966,000,
and RMB28,000, which is equivalent to HK$34,000, were
derecognised upon conversion, and share capital and share
premium of HK$100,000 and HK$11,900,000 were recognised
accordingly, as a result of which 1,000,000 new ordinary
shares were issued during the current year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued

(i)

— continued

The principal terms of the Convertible Bonds | are as follows:

(a)

Conversion right

Pursuant to the aforesaid agreement dated on 28
June 2016, the holder of the Convertible Bonds
| has the right to convert all or any part of the
principal amount of the Convertible Bonds | into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time from the
beginning on, and including, 12 November 2016 to
the close of business of the maturity date at 30 June
2019.

For the purpose of determining the number of
ordinary shares to be issued on conversion of the
Convertible Bonds |, the relevant principal amount
of the Convertible Bonds | to be converted shall
be translated into HK$ at the exchange rate of
HK$1.2195: RMB1. The price at which ordinary shares
of the Company will be issued upon conversion
(the “Conversion Price of Convertible Bonds |") will
initially be HK$12 per share, but will be subject to
adjustment for, among other things, consolidation,
reclassification or subdivision, capitalisation of profit
or reserves, distributions, rights issues of shares
or options over shares, dividend adjustments and
other dilutive events. In the opinion of the Directors,
the adjustments to Conversion Price of Convertible
Bonds | in those circumstances are all for anti-dilutive
purpose to protect the right of the holder of the
Convertible Bonds |.

Final redemption

Unless previously redeemed, converted, purchased
and cancelled as provided herein, the Company shall
pay to each holder of the Convertible Bonds on the
maturity date of the Convertible Bonds | an aggregate
price of (i) 100% of the outstanding principal amount
on the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds |,
(i) all accrued and unpaid interest in respect of the
Convertible Bonds | and unpaid default interest in
respect of the Convertible Bonds I, if any, and (iii) all
other related outstanding amounts payable by the
Company to the holder of the Convertible Bonds I.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao B R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[Z

27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued

(i)

— continued

The principal terms of the Convertible Bonds | are as follows:
— continued

(c)

Convertible Bond Holder's Redemption Rights for
Events of Default

Should any of the events of default set out in the
agreements of the Convertible Bonds | occurs, the
holder of the Convertible Bonds | may elect to require
the Company to redeem the outstanding Convertible
Bonds | in full in the amount equivalent to the sum of
(i) 100% of the outstanding principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds |, (ii) all accrued and unpaid interest
in respect of such Convertible Bonds | and unpaid
default interest in respect of such Convertible Bonds
[, if any, (iii) a premium as set out in the agreements
of the Convertible Bonds | and (iv) all other related
outstanding amounts payable by the Company to the
holder of such Convertible Bonds I.

The details of the redemption of the Bonds | and the Bonds Il
are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Final redemption

Unless previously redeemed, purchased and
cancelled, the Company shall pay to each holder
of the Bonds on the maturity date of the Bonds |
and Bonds Il an aggregate price of (i) 100% of the
outstanding principal amount on the maturity date of
the Bonds | and Bonds I, (i) all accrued and unpaid
interest in respect of the Bonds and unpaid default
interest of the Bonds | and Bonds Il, if any, and (iii)
all other related outstanding amounts payable by the
Company to the holder of such Bonds | and Bonds II.

Bonds Holder’'s Redemption Rights for Events of
Default

Should any of the events of default set out in the
agreements of the Bonds | and Bonds Il occurs,
the holder of the Bonds | and Bonds Il may elect
to require the Company to redeem the Bonds | and
Bonds Il in full in an amount equivalent to the sum
of (i) 100% of the outstanding principal amount of
the Bonds | and Bonds I, (i) all accrued and unpaid
interest accrued in respect of the Bonds | and Bonds
II'and unpaid default interest accrued in respect of the
Bonds | and Bonds Il, if any, (iii) a premium as set out
in the agreements of the Bonds | and Bonds II, and
(iv) all other related outstanding amounts payable by
the Company to the holder of such Bonds | and Bonds
1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

2], ERREBEHEEKESF-E

27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued

(i)

— continued

The details of the redemption of the Bonds | and the Bonds Il
are as follows: — continued

(c)

Mandatory Early Redemption for Convertible Bonds I,
the Bonds | and the Bonds Il

The amendment of mandatory early redemption of
Convertible Bonds | the Bonds | and the Bonds Il as
mentioned below are mainly in relation to the change
of calculation of Total Security Value (as defined
below). Pursuant to the subscription agreement on 28
June 2016, if in any trading day during the remaining
term of the Convertible Bonds |, the Bonds | and the
Bonds I, the total security value, which is calculated
as the sum of below items (a) and (b) (the “Total
Security Value"):

(a) total share value of the Company, which
equals to the closing price per share of the
Company on such trading day multiplied
by the total number of the shares of the
Company held in the securities account
maintained with the holder of the Convertible
Bonds |, the Bonds | and the Bonds Il by
SkyOcean Investment Holdings Limited, and;

(b) charged Convertible Bonds Il

Is less than 2 times of the aggregate
outstanding principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds |, the Bonds | and
the Bonds Il, and SkyOcean Investment
Holdings Limited elects not to deposit such
further number of shares of the Company
in the aforesaid securities account, the
Company shall redeem such portion of
the outstanding principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds I, the Bonds | and the
Bonds Il (the “Mandatory Early Redemption
for Convertible Bonds |, the Bonds | and
the Bonds I1”) in order to maintain the Total
Security Value not lower than 2.5 times of
the aggregate outstanding principal amount
of the Convertible Bonds |, the Bonds | and
the Bonds II.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao B R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued

(i)

— continued

The terms of the Convertible Bonds | and the Bonds | are
negotiated with the holder collectively and the issuance of
the Convertible Bonds | and the Bonds | are interconditional.
Accordingly, the total net proceeds received by the Company
from the issue of the Convertible Bonds | and the Bonds | have

been allocated between a liability component and an equity
component in its initial recognition as follows:

(a)

(b)

Liability component of the Convertible Bonds | and
the Bonds | are initially measured at fair value by DTZ
Cushman & Wakefield Limited using the discount
cash flow approach, amounted to approximately
RMB251,311,000 (equivalent to HK$305,919,000),
which represent the present value of the contractually
determined stream of future cash flows discounted
at the prevailing market interest rate at that time
applicable to instruments of comparable credit status
and providing substantially the same cash flows with
the Convertible Bonds | and the Bonds | and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost by applying
an effective interest rate of 9.6% per annum after
considering the effect of the transaction costs;

In the opinion of the Directors, the economic
characteristics and risks of the mandatory early
redemption option of the Convertible Bonds | and
Bonds | are closely related to the host debt contract
of the Convertible Bonds | and Bonds |. Therefore, the
Company does not account for the mandatory early
redemption separately; and

Equity component, which is equal to the difference
between the total fair value of the Convertible Bonds
| and the Bonds | at the date of issuance and the fair
value of the liability component of the Convertible
Bonds | and the Bonds | at the date of issuance,
amounted to approximately RMB84,000 (equivalent to
HK$103,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued

— continued

The total net proceeds received by the Company from the
issue of the Convertible Bonds | and the Bonds | have been
split between a liability component and an equity component
in its initial recognition. The movements of the liability
component of the Convertible Bonds |, the Bonds | and the

2]. TBRREBESFRES-E

(i) —#&

KA F B BEITARRES RE ST
W Bz P AS FORFER B V) g
REEDRAEEND RESHD -
AHRBRER - ERIRESFIZEE
MARAFEZEEHHIIMT

Bonds Il for the year are set out below:

Liability
component
of the
Bonds | and Convertible
Bonds Il Bonds | Total
R R E |
BEHIREFI aERD st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET & T
Convertible Bonds | and Bonds | 201651 A1R 2
at 1 January 2016 RELG ALt 269,092 35,021 304,113
Bonds Il issued BITESF 470,000 - 470,000
Transaction costs incurred EEZRSER (50,700) - (50,700)
Interest charged B 51,043 3,374 54,417
Interest paid RS (42,342) (2,933) (45,275)
Exchange realignment R 822 (3,477) (2,655)
At 31 December 2016 2016512 A31H 697,915 31,985 729,900
Conversion of Convertible Bonds | IR AR E A - (11,966) (11,966)
Interest charged B 79,297 2,324 81,621
Interest paid B FE (60,550) (2,040) (62,590)
Exchange realignment [E X & (2,810) 3,425 615
At 31 December 2017 201751283108 713,852 23,728 737,580
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[Z

27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued

(i)

DreamEast Group Limited Z2H 7 &

On 24 December 2015, the Company issued a five-year
term RMB zero coupon convertible bonds due 2020 in an
aggregate principal amount of RMB1,500,000,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds I1”) to SkyOcean Investment Holdings
Limited, the immediate holding company of the Company
which is beneficially owned as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng. The
issuance of the Convertibles Bonds Il are for the settlement of
certain amount payable by the Group to SkyOcean Real Estate
(Qian'an) Co., Ltd., a company beneficially owned as to 80%
by Mr. Zhou Zheng.

The fair value of the Convertible Bonds Il at the date of
issuance was RMB2,040,441,000, consisting of liability
component and equity component of RMB988,425,000
(equivalent to HK$1,247,869,000) and RMB1,052,016,000
(equivalent to HK$1,328,152,000), respectively. The amount
of the fair value of the Convertible Bonds Il at the date of
issuance in excess of the amount due to SkyOcean Real
Estate (Qian'an) Co., Ltd., extinguished of RMB540,441,000
(equivalent to HK$682,298,000) is accounted for as a deemed
distribution to the controlling shareholder of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2015 as the debt
restructuring above is a transaction with shareholder of the
Company.

The Convertible Bonds I, constitute general, unconditional,
unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Company
and rank pari passu and rateably without preference
equally with all other present and future unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of the Company.

The principal terms of the Convertible Bonds Il are as follows:

(a) Conversion right

The holder of the Convertible Bonds Il has the right
to convert all or any part of the principal amount of
the Convertible Bonds Il into ordinary shares of the
Company at any time from the beginning on, and
including 24 December 2015 to the close of business
of the maturity date at 24 December 2020.

21.
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(ii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

2], ERREBEHEEKESF-E

27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued

(ii)

— continued

The principal terms of the Convertible Bonds Il are as follows:

— continued

(a)

(c)

Conversion right — continued

For the purpose of determining the number of
ordinary shares to be issued on conversion of the
Convertible Bonds I, the relevant principal amount
of the Convertible Bonds Il to be converted shall
be translated into HK$ at the exchange rate of
HK$1.2625:RMB1. The price at which ordinary shares
of the Company will be issued upon conversion (the
“Conversion Price of Convertible Bonds I1”) will
initially be HK$6.8 per share, but will be subject to
adjustment for, among other things, consolidation,
reclassification or subdivision, capitalisation of profit
or reserves, distributions, rights issues of shares
or options over shares, dividend adjustments and
other dilutive events. In the opinion of the Directors,
the adjustments to Conversion Price of Convertible
Bonds Il in those circumstances are all for anti-dilutive
purpose to protect the right of the holder of the
Convertible Bonds II.

Redemption

The Company may redeem at any time before or
upon the maturity date of Convertible Bonds Il at
100% of all or any part of the principal amount of
the Convertible Bonds Il in respect of which the
conversion rights have not been exercised by the
holders of the Convertible Bonds II.

Convertible Bonds Holder's Redemption Rights for
Events of Default

Should any of the events of default set out in the
agreements of the Convertible Bonds Il occurs, the
holder of the Convertible Bonds Il may elect to require
the Company to redeem the outstanding Convertible
Bonds Il in full in the amount equivalent to 100% of
the outstanding principal amount of the Convertible
Bonds II.

(i) —-&

ABEEFIZ EZ GO —&

(b)

BmEE-E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao B R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS
— continued

(i)

— continued

The total net proceeds received by the Company from the

issue of the Convertible Bonds Il have been split between

a liability component and an equity component in its initial

recognition as follows:

(a)

(b)

Liability component is initially measured at fair
value by DTZ Cushman & Wakefield Limited using
the discount cash flow approach, amounted to
approximately RMB988,425,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,247,869,000), which represents the present
value of the contractually determined stream of
future cash flows discounted at the prevailing market
interest rate at that time applicable to instruments of
comparable credit status and providing substantially
the same cash flows with the Convertible Bonds II.
It is subsequently measured at amortised cost by
applying an effective interest rate of 8.7% per annum
after considering the effect of the transaction costs;

In the opinion of the Directors, the economic
characteristics and risks of the early redemption
option of the Convertible Bonds Il are closely related
to the host debt contract of the Convertible Bonds
II. Therefore, the Company does not account for the
early redemption option separately; and

Equity component, which is determined based on the
valuation performed by DTZ Cushman & Wakefield
Limited using the Binomial Option Model and such
amounts are carried as equity component until
extinguished on conversion or redemption, amounted
to approximately RMB1,052,016,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,328,152,000).

DreamEast Group Limited 2R FEEHR AT
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28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND BONDS 2].

— continued

(ii) — continued

The movements of the liability component of the Convertible

Bonds Il for the year are set out below:

IRRESRES &

(i) — i

THRBES 2 AEBSRAFEZ
#HHFIWT :

Liability
component
BEBD
HK$'000
FET

Convertible Bonds Il AR E
At 1 January 2016 M2016F1A1H 1,180,985
Interest charged FE X 100,724
Exchange realignment IE 5 5 & (79,296)
As at 31 December 2016 2016512 A31H 1,202,413
Interest charged FE X 108,037
Exchange realignment VE 5 38 & 88,313
As at 31 December 2017 R2017612H318 1,398,763

No conversion or redemption of the Convertible Bonds Il has

occurred up to 31 December 2017

DEFERRED TAX

28.

The deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group and
movements thereon during the year are as follows:

HZE2017F12A310 i EE s
BE O] AT R AR E S ©

EEB R
FRRKEER ZELEHRABRE
FAZEEIT -

Fair value

change on

investment

properties

REMEZ

AREES2E

HK$000

FET

At 1 January 2016 R2016F1H1H (244,403)
Charge to profit or loss T ABE (127.871)
Exchange realignment bE 3 33 B 21,081
At 31 December 2016 72016512 A31H (351,193)
Charge to profit or loss (note 10) T AEZ=E (FFFE10) (12,904)
Exchange realignment ME 5 & (25,059)

At 31 December 2017 A20175F12831H (389,156)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[Z

28.

DEFERRED TAX - continued

Details of the Group’s unused PRC income tax losses
are as follows:

28.

EERIE &
KNEERBA 2 PETESHERZ
(ERUINE

2017 2016
2017 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBx FETT
(Restated)
(&£ E5))
Tax losses unrecognised for REhIERE T I8 & B 1R
deferred tax assets I8 & 18 215,684 440,925

The following unrecognised PRC income tax losses has
fixed expiry date, which will be expired in the following
years:

AT ARERZ PEMEHERASR
ERHRE WHR AT FEEEIH:

31 December 2017 201712 A31H
31 December 2018 201812 A31H
31 December 2019 201912 A31H
31 December 2020 2020%12A31H
31 December 2021 2021412 A31H
31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2017 2016
20174 20164F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBx FiE T
(Restated)

(g&E5)

= 8,178
20,817 20,817
41,531 125,962
77,302 103,448
42,744 182,520
33,290 -
215,684 440,925

At 31 December 2017, the Group had tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of HK$121,269,000 (2016:
HK$82,133,000), subject to the agreement by the Hong
Kong Inland Revenue Department, that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred
tax asset has not been recognised in respect of these
tax losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that
have been loss-making for some time and/or it is not
presently considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which such tax losses can be
utilised.

DreamEast Group Limited 2R 7S£ B AR Q7]
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29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017F12A31H L F[E

EEBIE &

RN R B AR ERTERA
R R4 R B DR S - E
MAEFEMNBARZADIRA
i RE LT I8 B F - 2017412
A31H -HFBEWBRAR Z XD K G
F| #4858 /1,047,742,0007% 7T (2016
£ :722,072,000 7T ) ° 20174
124318 - HHE 2 REREERIE
B & /104,742,000% 7T (20164 -
72,20700078 7T ) °

DEFERRED TAX - continued 28.

No deferred tax liabilities for undistributed earnings of
the PRC subsidiaries have been recognised as there is
no plan of the dividends distribution out of the PRC in
the foreseeable future by these PRC subsidiaries. As at
31 December 2017 the aggregate undistributed profit
of the PRC subsidiaries were HK$1,047742,000 (2016:
HK$722,072,000). The corresponding unrecognised
deferred tax liabilities as at 31 December 2017 were
HK$104,742,000 (2016: HK$72,207,000).

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS 29, RARDREE
2017 2016
2017& 20164
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000
EEREE TER LEREE FiEL
Authorised: ET
Ordinary shares of BREE0.10ETZ
HK$0.10 each @ 3,000,000,000 300,000 3,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIRER:
Ordinary shares of BREE0.10ETZ
HK$0.10 each L@k
At 1 January B1A1H 262,211,739 26,222 246,447959 24,646
Exercise of warrants TR R
(note a) (Miska) - - 15,763,780 1,576
Conversion of Convertible A H R E |
Bonds | (note b) (Fi5Eb) 1,000,000 100 - -
At 31 December “128318 263,211,739 26,322 262,211,739 26,222
Notes: B3 -
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2016, 15,763,780 (a) HZ2016F12A31A Lt FE -

warrants were exercised at an adjusted subscription price of
HK$4.95 per ordinary share before their expiry date of 4 March
2016. The listing of the warrants were withdrawn from The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 4 March 2016.

(b) During the current year, 1,000,000 new ordinary shares were
issued upon conversion of certain Convertible Bonds |, details
of which are set out in note 27.

(b)

15,763,780 R AL 1 75 71 201643 A
AREHA AR AR REETRY
A4 95 TTEITIE - ZERRIEF
ER2016F3A4AREBHER S
FrARARBE LT

RAFE  REBRE T RRES

5 E£471,000,0000 5 @M% - B
BRI 27 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E
EEEH

NTEEDER UAZHERREK
FTAKE ZRITREMEEFERR:

30. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 30.

The following assets were pledged to secure certain
bank and other borrowings granted to the Group at the
end of each reporting period:

2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET T
Pledged deposits [REEEEEE 648,395 963,656
Properties under ERPHEEME
development for sale 469,427 1,033,347
Investment properties "EME 5,369,478 4,808,942
Completed properties BERTIFEME
held for sale 877,317 329,788
Bank deposits RITFE N 1,793 3,589
7,366,410 7,139,322
31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 31. KREHERIE
AS LESSEE EHEEA
Continuing operations BERSEEL

RERER - AEBRE A AT HH
REROHMCHEEDE 2 ZIBRER

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had
outstanding commitments under non-cancellable

operating leases in respect of rented premises which AYEWT
fall due as follows:
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
(Restated)
(f&E5))
Within one year —FR 8,698 7,016
In the second to fifth year, F_EERF
inclusive (BEEEMSF) 10,807 717
19,505 7,733

HEFHHE —BAZE=F (2016
F-EE2RF)RAEEEZES

Leases are negotiated for a term of one month to three
years (2016: one year to five years) and rentals are
fixed over the respective leases.

208 DreamEast Group Limited 2R 7S£ B ER Q7]
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32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
— continued
AS LESSOR

Continuing operations

The investment properties held by the Group for rental
purpose have committed tenants for one month to
twelve years of which majority are with fixed rental.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future

3. REHEERE-E

ERHBEA
FRREER

AEERBAFHERGZRENELZ
HPAEHERR—EAZT—F H
PABHEEZEHEREEEE -

RIEIR - AEBERET A HEHE
EHOEBPHE 2 KRR &IEH SR

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable B
operating leases:
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T
Within one year —F A 32,673 11,030
In the second to fifth year, FEFRF
inclusive (BREERME) 104,593 23,465
After five years hFE 49,084 37207
186,350 71,702
COMMITMENTS 32. A
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T
Development expenditure THIEE 2ERMAT:
in respect of:
Properties under ERPEHEEME
development for sale 926,279 923,491
Investment properties "EME 552,331 718,389
Property, plant and equipment R 108,470 -
1,587,080 1,641,880
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

32A. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

33.

2A. EEE

2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
Mortgage loan guarantees provided NEBAEESHIERTT
by the Group to banks in favour of Rt HIRIB EHIER
its customers (note) (PF3E) 399,252 6,137
399,252 6,137

Note: In the opinion of the Directors, the fair values of the financial
guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant at initial
recognition, taking into consideration the possibility of default
by the relevant buyers and, in case of default in payments,
the net realisable value of the related properties can recover
the repayment of the outstanding mortgage principals
together with the accrued interest and penalty. Accordingly,
no provision has been made in these consolidated financial
statements for these guarantees.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all employees in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control
of an independent trustee. Under the rule of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at
5% (2016: 5%) of the employee’s basic salary with the
maximum contribution of HK$1,500 per month (2016:
HK$1,500 per month).The obligation of the Group
with respect of MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions under the MPF Scheme. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contributions
payable in future years. The Group's contributions to
the MPF Scheme of HK$417000 (2016: HK$247000)
are charged to profit or loss.

DreamEast Group Limited 2R 7S£ B ER Q7]
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34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT
BENEFITS- continued

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the PRC government. The
Company's PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their employees’ payroll to
the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme which are calculated
based on 20% (2016: 20%) of the employee's basic
salaries during the year. The Group’s contributions to
the PRC retirement benefits scheme of HK$4,725,000
(2016: HK$2,430,000) are charged to profit or loss.

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the current year, the Group acquired certain
assets through the acquisition of 100% equity interest
in DreamEast (Tianjin) Limited (“DreamEast Tianjin")
for considerations of RMB5,350,000 (equivalent to
HK$6,171,000) from DreamEast Culture Entertainment
Group Limited, a company held as to 80% by Mr.
Zhou Zheng. As DreamEast Tianjin did not constitute
a business, the acquisition of the equity interests by
the Group is considered as acquisition of assets and
liabilities. The excess of consideration payable over the
assets and liabilities amounted of HK$2,254,000 were
recognised in other reserve. The net cash outflows
arising from the acquisition is HK$5,958,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
acquired certain assets through the acquisition of
100% equity interest in Jiangsu DreamEast Cultural
Investment Co.,Ltd (“Jiangsu DreamEast”) and
Sophie USA Holdings Ltd (BVI) ("Sophie USA")
for considerations of RMB2,029,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,270,000) and HK$1 from
DreamEast Cultural Entertainment Group Limited and
Sophie Holdings Limited respectively, companies held
as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng. As Jiangsu DreamEast
and Sophie USA did not constitute a business, the
acquisition of the equity interests by the Group was
considered as acquisition of assets and liabilities. The
excess of consideration payable over the assets and
liabilities amounted of HK$4,010,000 were recognised
in other reserve. The net cash inflows arising from the
acquisition is HK$172,000.

33.

34.

EBERKEFN &

RARHFEHBEARZEER AT
BFE Nz BRE R RAKEFEE
2B e ANE R ENE A RERR
EBEHEZHETEDLREKET
B B RA - AN EE A H
RINVEFF Bz —ET2  BIEZ
FFEEL TR MR KSR IIEE
BRFRERFH S 220% (20165
20% ) &1 & - ANEE M) BRI E F)
sHEIEE Z 4 5k4,725,00078 7T (2016
F 12,430,000 70 ) B A B kR o

ERWENMBARWEE
E

RAEE  REEFBUREBEARE
5,350,0007¢ (A8 & 56,171,000/ 7T)
BERAHHIREEB AR AR (—
B A BRI EFF0%RER 2 A F])
WHEEEF (RE)ERAR ([KZF
BHEF|) 2 2ERE - AR REEE
FHARFRERER  NEBEREREE
WRIEEERBBEWE - ERNRER
BEEREBEZ S %2,254,0008 T
REAMEEER  WBEBEEZIR
& it F 58 55,958,000 7T

REZE2016F 128318 LFE - A&
B B AR (E A R#2,029,0007T (18
& 12 492,270,000 7T ) R 17E T A B
B2RICIREEEER AR R
Sophie Holdings Limited (54 &
BR&EEHEO% R Z A A UKEE
TEE2BR VR BEER AR ([T
#HZH A |) K Sophie USA Holdings
Ltd (BVI) ([Sophie USA |) 100%8%
BREETEE- AR IHERS
K Sophie USA K R H %7 - A
SEREREFERIEEERBER
B-ERNREBRAEERAGBZSEH
4,010,000/ 7R B At [ 1R - Wi iE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

35.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

During the current year, the Group disposed of its
entire equity interest in a subsidiary, Beijing SkyOcean
COMB+, to Beijing SkyOcean COMB+ Technology &
Development Co., Ltd, a company held as to 80% by Mr.
Zhou Zheng, for cash consideration of HK$37.795,000.

The net assets of the subsidiary at the date of disposal
were as follows:

35.

HE— B E LD
REAFE AEEBRBEEKE
37795,000/% 7T [A)Beijing SkyOcean
COMB+ Technology & Development
Co., Ltd (—FE B A SE £ HEHB0%
AR HEEMBARIERX
FBE 2 2 EfAE

ZMEARNEE B EE AN
T

HK$'000
&
Property, plant and equipment M- BE &K 11,502
Bank balances and cash WITHEBR LIRS 21,016
Other receivables, HAb BB - e RFE FE
deposits and prepayments 5,817
Trade, other payables and accruals B RHEHMEMNRERTERKIE (30,797)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 7538
Cash received BUIE & 37795
Net assets disposed of HEBEEFE (7538)
Gain on disposal (note) o Was (B EE) 30,257
Net cash inflows arising from disposal: HEELEZRERAFE:
Consideration received in cash BWEERE 37795
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of & : HERITEH LIRS 21,016
16,779

Note: As Beijing SkyOcean COMB+ was disposed to a subsidiary
controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholder of the
Company and a substantial gain on disposal was resulted, this
gain on disposal was accounted for as deemed contribution by

shareholder in other reserve for the current year.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
disposed of its entire equity interest in its subsidiaries,
SkyOcean Culture Zhuozhou Investment Co., Ltd.
("SkyOcean Zhuozhou") and Cautious Base, to
DreamEast Cultural Investment, a company held as
to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng and Purchaser (as defined
in note 13), for cash considerations of RMB10,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$11,000) and
HK$20,000,000 respectively.

DreamEast Group Limited 2R 7S£ B ER Q7]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY - continued 3. HE—-BWEAT-E&
The net assets of these subsidiaries at the date of ZEMBARNHE AN EEFEAE
disposal were as follows: N
SkyOcean
ZhuoZhou Cautious Total
RFEFM Base @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FEL FET
Property, plant and equipment ER e 34 962 996
Bank balances and cash RITERER S 283 13,869 14,152
Other receivables, deposits and Hi IR e &
prepayments B 5E 25 9,062 9,087
Completed properties held for sale BERTIHENER
and other inventories HihF & - 75 75
Deferred Income EREWA - (1,304) (1,304)
Trade and other payables and accruals & 5 & E i BT FE K
BIETR (4,472) (12,461) (16,933)
Net (liabilities)/assets disposed of HE(BE) BEZFS (4,130) 10,203 6,073
Cash received BEURE - 20,000 20,000
Consideration receivable BRE 1 - 1
Net liabilities/(assets) disposed of PEaE/ (BE)FE 4,130 (10,203) (6,073)
Reclassification adjustment - transfer ~ B EFHX
translation reserve to profit or loss ~REERB AR
upon disposal of subsidiaries ERSNEREEER - (5,781) (5,781)
4,141 4,016 8,157
Gain on disposal: & W i
Recognised in profit or loss (note 13) REEMER (FE13) - 4,016 4,016
Recognised as deemed contribution BRABREMEET
in other reserve BIEER 4,141 - 4,141
4,141 4,016 8,157
Net cash (outflows)/inflows HEEL RS ORE),/
arising from disposal: MAFE -
Consideration received in cash BElHRERE - 20,000 20,000
Less: bank balances and B HERTEBLAS
cash disposed of (283) (13,869) (14,152)
(283) 6,131 5,848
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND  36.

OBJECTIVES

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to owners of
the Group through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances. The Group's overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes bank and other borrowings, convertible
bonds and bonds, disclosed in notes 26 and 27 net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the Directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through new share issues and share buy-backs as well
as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 37.

(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

EXEBEERBRRREBEE

AEMERE AU HREEA T E
WA LT RIS B BE(
L A E M A AT
%o BB F AL ARE Y B
TR

REEZEAREERFEBENX B
FEMEE TBBRESRESR (R
MizEoe k272 #5) - EMNHRIE S R
BEEEWARANA RIS AFE(GHE
m (BEBBEITRARGEE)

EXTHBRMENERE (FR%EMN
Hf—3R EFEEEENKARER
BETHERR REESNHEBRZ
& ARERSE BT MR E
BUNBITHEGREERAERS
ERETERERTE-

EWMIA
(A) SBWIAZESZ

2017 2016
201745 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables E LR EK S E
Trade receivables B 5 MW FRIE 8,455 4,631
Other receivables and Hib B R IE S
deposits 671,965 980,479
Amounts due from FE U A BSE R B FRIB
related companies 5,913 -
Pledged bank deposits BEHEMBITER 1,793 3,689
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIES 1,403,123 1,045,492
2,091,249 2,034,191
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 37. EWMIRA-&E
(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (A) CRMIBEZEA-&
— continued
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
(Restated)
($&E7)
Financial liabilities SRAaE
Financial liabilities LR ER K K ZI R
at amortised cost THEE
Trade payables B S ENFIE 434,638 330,846
Other payables and accruals  E b fE < 508 R FB IR F0IA 124,835 81,688
Amounts due to Rl NI E O]
related companies 433,762 201,602
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEES 4,477,847 3,986,811
Convertible bonds and bonds A i% (& % & (& % 2,136,343 1,932,313
7,607,425 6,533,260

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments
include trade receivables, other receivables
and deposits, amounts due from/to related
companies, bank balances and cash, pledged
bank deposits, trade payables, other payables
and accruals, bank and other borrowings and
convertible bonds and bonds. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with the Group's
financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(B) HBEREEEREREER

AEENTESHTABE
B 5 REUGHIR - A FEYGRIR
Rize W TER R AR
FIERITEHBERS B
HIRITER BB FR
HLA 5 R IR SR FRAR IR ~ 4R
TREMBERABERES
KiEH - hEFEMTRAZHE
D RIR B FERKEE - AR
EemTARBEZAREBRE
migRR (B%EE  FEE,
R EMERER) FER
 Rom B o BUE X EE R
ZBREN T - EREETE
RERZERR  HREEE
R B Bt 8 HE B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao B R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES - continued

Market risk

(i)

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that
the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. With the majority of the
Group's businesses transacted in RMB
and HK$, the aforesaid currencies are
determined as the functional currencies
of the Company and some subsidiaries
respectively.

The Company and its subsidiaries have
foreign currency: bank deposits, amounts
due from subsidiaries, amounts due to
related parties/subsidiaries, prepayments
and other receivables, other payables
and bonds, which expose them to foreign
currency risk.

The net carrying amounts of the Group's

37.

ﬁﬂl E _ng
BERREEEEREE

(B)

-5

™ 45 [ By

(i)

B b
SNERBRIESRIA
PR T =R 8 B8 BB
;&QZ@ ﬁ*oEEﬁ/\\\Z’K
EBMAHDOEBR
HIANREE KA T
77 8 i D )
THERRZINEEE
?t%lo

AR R EME AR
BHNUTIMNMEIRR -
RITIF 7K B UL B
X A FRIE ~ FE A R B
AL /B A RR
TR FAA FRIR R H Al
& W R IR - H Al A
RIE A BWAEE
HHNERR -

7R 5 E K B A R

and inter-company foreign currency EHIRAINE ST E 2
denominated monetary assets (liabilities) SRMEE (BE)ZEK
at the end of the reporting period are as HFEDT:
follows:
2017 2016
2017% 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Us$ ETT 205,514 277,947
RMB AR 83,741 211,736
HK$ BT (513,285) (658,100)

In addition, amounts due from certain
subsidiaries that are considered as part
of the Group's net investment in foreign
operations and are denominated in
HK$, at the end of the reporting period,
amounted to HK$381,605,000 (2016:
HK$388,511,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

37. sMITAE-&

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES - continued

Market risk — continued

(B)

(i)

Currency risk — continued

The Group manages the foreign currency
risk by closely monitoring the movements
of the foreign currency rate.

Since HK$ are pegged to US$, there
is no significant exposure expected
on US$ transactions and balances for
certain subsidiaries of the Company with
functional currency of HK$ whilst the
currency peg remains in place.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to RMB
and HK$. The following table details
the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2016:
5%) increase and decrease in certain
functional currencies against the relevant
foreign currencies. 5% (2016: 5%) is
the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents
management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rate. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items,
and adjusts their translation at the end of
the reporting period for a 5% (2016: 5%)
change in foreign currency rate. A positive
number below indicates an increase
in profit for the year where functional
currencies strengthen 5% (2016: 5%)
against the relevant foreign currencies.
For a 5% (2016: 5%) weakening of
functional currencies against the relevant
foreign currencies, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profit
for the year.

(B)

MBEEREEREREE

— &

™5 E by — &

(i)

B — A
AEEERTYER
GNEEFE R 7 B E) - B
BN R B o

78 Tt 8 36 T B
W REAREYH
WBRRA LR A
HIRNRBETAET
TERINEEE M Z B
RAZETR 5 M
R PN

BURRE DT

AEBETEMHAR
MRATRER &
A EEET)
BE e H AR INE 2
5% (2016%F : 5% ) Ft
BERREZHXE-
5% (2016%F : 5% ) &
MEZEEABRNI
R NS R B BT AR 8K
RELE - WREKE
BEHERSIEN A
BE) o F o BRRE
DATIEBIEAINE 5
BzRBEEEKIAE
B3R RS HRE
MEZX25% (2016
F:5%)EHHBE
BME ST T XE
ZEEIENEEER K
8 9N EE FHEB% (2016
F:5% )BT F
JE 5 ) 2 380 e ik Th
BEE T N RN
B2 5% (20164 :
5% ) ' Blg ¥ FE &
FMEARERER 2

B/ 988
=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 37. @I HE-&
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) HMERKMEEEERBE
AND POLICIES - continued —#&
Market risk — continued i AR - &
(i) Currency risk - continued (i) EXEmEE-—E&
Sensitivity analysis — continued BRE DT — &

Decrease in other

Increase (decrease) in profit comprehensive income
A m L) Hirralmmd
2017 2016 2017 2016
2017 20164 20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAET THET FET
US$ e (8,580) (11,349) - -
RMB ARE (3,496) (8,840) - -
HK$ BT 21,429 27476 (15,932) (16,220)
9,353 7,287 (15,932) (16,220)
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity EEERAE BARTF
analysis is unrepresentative of the # B H) R B B
inherent foreign exchange risk as the B 9 R B B
year end exposure does not reflect the EoN TR EES
exposure during the year. SN [ g o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES - continued

Market risk - continued

(B)

(ii)

Fair value and cash flow interest rate
risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation
of the prevailing market interest rate on
bank deposits and bank borrowings (2016:
bank deposits and bank borrowings)
carried at prevailing market interest rates
based on or by reference to the interest
rates promulgated by the People’s Bank
of China. Fixed rate debt securities, bank
and other borrowings and convertible
bonds and bonds expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. During the year,
the Group does not hedge its fair value
and cash flow interest rate risk. Interest
rate risk is managed by the management
on an ongoing basis with the primary
objective of limiting the extent to which
net interest expense could be affected by
adverse movements in interest rates.

The Group's cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of the interest rate of
variable-rate bank deposits and bank and
other borrowings (2016: bank deposits
and bank borrowings). The sensitivity
analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates
for bank deposits and bank and other
borrowings (2016: bank deposits and bank
borrowings) at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding
at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis
points (2016: 50 basis points) increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the effect from possible
change in interest rates.

37. s®MIBE-&

(B)

ﬂﬂjﬁﬂ[ﬁ%%’ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬂl

iz A - &

(i) KA EBERE2TE
Tl 5 2
AR IRITE R R IRTT
BEERRITM SN E
FFE-mMRTHEF
RNRIBERBEREH
ARBITEMEYF K
FrE ALAEER
RITEARRRITEE
(20164F : $R1TIF K K&
RITEE) iﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ
KRB MATIEE R
EMNERER-FEE
BEH BITREAM
BERITRRES R
BEHEAEEAZA
AEBEMERR-F
RPN SR 3

D\/L{E{Eﬁiﬁj—:/]\b

%ﬂ [B bz o B F
& ,@E%iﬁﬂfﬂ
BEZHEERHIFE
2 RS E) O] R ¥ F
FERZER 2

2,
=

ZJSE lzfﬁibwgﬁj
REREBERNZ
BIRTTERIA KIBTT
REMES ZFRF
&) (20165  $R1TTE K
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BEE AT TR R 3R
LHRBRITFETAR
IRITRHMEE (2016
FRITHERRIET
BE)ZFXERKE
TE ° fm B0 AT R BT E
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RAENzEBMIT A
THEREEFEEGE
B fF o £ FHak TBE50
& E 2 (20164 : 5OfE
A AR ETEER
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BTSRRI &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES - continued

Market risk — continued

(ii) Fair value and cash flow interest rate
risk — continued

If the interest rates had been 50 basis
points (2016: 50 basis points) higher or
lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's profit for the year
would decrease/increase by HK$7554,000
(2016: increase/decrease HK$65,000)
after taking into account the interest
capitalisation effect.

Credit risk

At 31 December 2017 the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties
is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade and other receivables at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider
that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES - continued

Credit risk — continued

For debt securities, the Group manages the
credit risk exposure by using its internal rating
system, and also taking external ratings into
account. Investments in debt securities are
viewed as a way to gain a better credit quality
mapping and, at the same time, to maintain
a readily available source of funding to meet
funding requirements. The Group manages
this credit risk by only dealing with reputable
financial institutions.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in
respect of deposits pledged to an independent
party with carrying amount of HK$648,395,000
(2016: HK$963,656,000). Details of the pledged
deposits are set out in note 22. In order to
minimize the credit risk on deposits pledged to
an independent party, the Group’'s management
continuously monitors the credit quality and
financial conditions of the debtor and the level
of aforesaid pledged deposits to ensure that
follow-up action is taken timely to recover
overdue amounts, such as certain agreements
entered into by the Group effecting the net-
off of the pledged deposits with certain loans
as mentioned in note 22. In this regard, the
Group's management considers that the Group's
credit risk in respect of the above is significantly
reduced.

Other than concentration of credit risk as
mentioned above, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk
with exposure spread over a number of counter
parties and customers.

37. sMITAE-&

(B)

M EEEREBERBUR
— &

FERR-&
EHESMS  AREERE
PP ERRT AR BIE - L ANAZE R
HNEBETAR - B EE R - 1%
ERNERRFRR TERE
HEEEE  RSIRRER
BRENEZRRAREES
TR AEEERIIAEER
lrzER BREESEY
TREER S

AEEFRKIFFELE=H
2 BR T & £648,395,000/8 7T
(20164 : 963,656,000 7T )
ZHEREREPEERE K
WIFERAFEERKIFE22 < B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES - continued

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of borrowings.

Liquidity risk analysis

The following table details the Group's
contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. In addition, the following table details
the Group's liquidity analysis for its derivative
financial instruments.

The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rates, the undiscounted amount is
derived from the interest rate at the end of the
reporting period.
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37.

(B)

- = =
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 37. €@mIE-E&E
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) HMEEREMEEEZERBREK
AND POLICIES - continued — &
Liquidity risk - continued B R b — &
Liquidity risk analysis — continued JEB) RS 7T — B
On demand Carrying
Weighted or 3 months 1 year 2 years Total amount at
average less than to to to undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 3 months 1 year 2 years 5years  cash flows 2017
H2017E
nE REREEL =fiRE -2 MEE  AFRASE 128318
THHNE  SRZEA - mE fik:3 REAR ZEHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TERL TEL TET TET TEL TET
Non-derivative financial liabilities 174 $H& &
Trade payables BAEMATE TER 434,638 = = - 434,638 434,638
Other payables and accruals EHEAFERERRE T#ER 124,835 - - - 124,835 124,835
Amounts due to related companies FE( BB A RZE TER 433,762 = - - 433,762 433,762
Convertible bonds and bonds TaRESRER 8.7-12.8% - 65,487 798,215 1,794,452 2,658,154 2,136,343
Bank and other borrowings BIREBEE 1.11-9.64% 59,844 1,032,914 842,223 3,190,985 5,125,966 4,477,847
1,053,079 1,098,401 1,640,438 4,985,437 8,777,355 7607425
On demand Carrying
Weighted or 3 months 1 year 2 years Total amount at
average less than to to to undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows 2016
20165
nig =f@Az —£Z2 MEEZ  AWERS 124318
RRsFIES —F e fik:3 nELE ZEEfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TET TEL TET TEL TET TEL
Non-derivative financial KL ERER
liabilities (Restated) (&85
Trade payables BREATE TR 330,846 - - - 330,846 330,846
Other payables and accruals EtEATERERNE TR 81,688 - - - 81,688 81,688
Amounts due to related companies E{T BB A RIFE TEA 201,602 - - - 201,602 201,602
Convertible bonds and bonds aRkESRES 8.7-12.8% - 63,355 63,35 2,485,080 2,611,790 1932313
Bank and other borrowings BAREBEE 1.11-9.64% 67554 1,373,684 1,808,371 1,188,032 4437541 3,986,811
681,690 1,436,939 1,871,726 3,673,112 7,663,467 6,533,260
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(C)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at
fair value on a recurring basis

Except as detailed in the following table, the
Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

37.

eWMIAE-&

(C)

TMIRZAREBETE

FEMUFEEHEEED
REEFEZEREERS
BMEEZAAEE

BRNRFIFAEIN EFRD
RA BF B 16 3R IR B SR AR
ke ERMEERERAE
ZREERE A EERE -

Carrying amounts Fair values
REE AREERE
2017 2016 2017 2016
2017 20164 20174 201645
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TER TET
Financial liability tMaRE
Non-current FERE
Liability component of the ~ A[#REHIIZ
Convertible Bonds |l SEHS 1,398,763 1,202,413 1,397,150 1,284,090

The fair value of liability component of the
Convertible Bonds Il with fair value hierarchy of
level 3, are determined based on the valuation
performed by Asia-Pacific Consulting and
Appraisal Limited using discounted cash flow
approach and applying prime rate as adjusted to
reflect the credit risk of the issuer as key inputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

= =
NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 38. EBEESRERMKE
RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM METHMELAEBEZHER
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Non-cash changes
#5429
Acquisition of
asubsidiary ~ Acquisition of
Foreign under additional Conversion of
31 December Financing exchange common interest in Accrued Convertible Other 31 December
2016 cash flows differences control  subsidiaries interest Bonds | changes 2017
W i
0165 R-#4TH HEAR L} 0175
12A%8  BERLRE AEEE -MKEAR BER EiRE  TRREH B4 3] 128318
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Fin Fin Fin TR FEn FEn TR TR
(note a) (note 27) note b)
(Hita) (Hit21) (Hith)
Amounts due to related companies ERBEADHE
(note 39(f)iil) (FaE30MM i) 201,602 149,334 29435 7360 46,031 - - - 433,762
Bank and other borrowings (note 26) BOREBES (Hike) 3,986,811 217944 250,022 - - - - 23,070 4477847
Convertiole bonds and bonds (note 27) TERERRER (W) 1,932,313 162,590) 83928 - - 189,658 (11,966) - 2,136,343
Interest payable (included in trade and ERFE GIAEAR
other payables) (note 25) Efpefisn) (ios) 42,093 (241,001 - - - 5478 - - 46,551
Total @it 6,162,819 63,668 368,385 7360 46,031 435,136 (11,966) 23070 7,094,503
Notes: B 5
(a) The cash flows with amounts due to related companies, (a) ERARMNEEARE  BITREA
bank and other borrowings, convertible bonds and bonds faE - W’Hﬁ%%&ﬁ%%&ﬁgﬁﬂ
and interest payable represented the net amount of certain BrBReEREBHEANRERERN
proceeds and repayments disclosed in the consolidated BEOETHERERBERFE-
statement of cash flows.
(b) Other changes mainly represents amortisation of up-front fee (b) HEmEHErBHERTREMEER

of bank and other borrowings.

OES: $:K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Apart from the related party transactions disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,
the Group had the following significant related party
transactions during the year.

(A) PROMOTION SERVICES PROVIDED TO A
RELATED COMPANY

The Group entered into a promotion services
agreement with Beijing SkyOcean Holdings
on 30 June 2015 (the “Promotion Services
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group
will provide Beijing SkyOcean Holdings and its
subsidiaries with marketing strategic advisory
and brand promotion services (“Promotion
Services"”) in relation to the promotion of the
trade name of “Beijing SkyOcean” in the PRC.
The transactions contemplated under the
Promotion Services Agreement were approved
by the shareholders of the Company at the
special general meeting conducted on 31
August 2015. The Group has not yet provided
any of the Promotion Services to Beijing
SkyOcean Holdings and its subsidiaries. On 18
March 2016, the Group and Beijing SkyOcean
Holdings entered into a termination agreement
to terminate and cancel the Promotion Services
Agreement with immediate effect as the Group
intends to concentrate and allocate its resources
to the existing business.

(B)  During the current year, the Group disposed
of its entire equity interest in its subsidiary,
Beijing SkyOcean COMB+ to Beijing SkyOcean
COMB+ Technology & Development Co.,Ltd, a
company held as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng, for
considerations of HK$37,795,000, respectively
details of the disposal are set out in note 35.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group disposed of its entire equity interest in a
subsidiary, SkyOcean Zhuozhou to DreamEast
Cultural Investment, a company held a to 80%
by Mr. Zhou Zheng, for a consideration of
RMB10,000 (equivalent to HK$11,000).

DreamEast Group Limited 2R 7S£ B ER Q7]
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39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES - continued

(C)

(D)

During the current year, the Group acquired
100% equity interest in DreamEast Future
World from DreamEast Cultural Investment, a
company held as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng, for
a consideration of RMB6,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$7,360,000). The acquisition is considered as
a combination of entities under common control,
details of the transaction are set out in note 2.

During the current year, the Group acquired
certain assets through the acquisition of
100% equity interest in DreamEast Tianjin for
considerations of RMB5,350,000 (equivalent
to HK$6,171,000) from DreamEast Culture
Entertainment Group Limited, a company held
as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng, details of the
transaction are set out in note 34.

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
the Group acquired certain assets through the
acquisition of 100% equity interest in Sophie
USA and Jiangsu DreamEast for considerations
of HK$1 and HK$2,270,000 respectively from
Sophie Holdings Limited and DreamEast Cultural
Entertainment Group Limited, companies held
as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng.

During the current year, the Group entered into
a tenancy agreement with Sanhe SkyOcean, a
company held as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng,
pursuant to which Sanhe SkyOcean, the owner
of the Park, will lease the aforesaid premise to
the Group with the lease term from October
2017 to December 2019. The rental expenses
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the
years ending 31 December 2018 and 2019 are
approximately HK$500,000, HK$2,300,000 and
HK$3,500,000, respectively.

39.

B

(C)

(D)

AT Z2HE-E&
RAFE AEERREA
R #6,000,0007T (% %
7360,000/8 7T ) MEZ R 75 31
KRE(—HBBAREERE
80% LR 2 N E)) IREEE R
R FR100% A8 HE - We BE ==
HHRR AR —IEH THELE
At R FEBENWE2 -

RAFE  AEBEZBZRNAE
A B #5 350,0007T (H8E 7
6,171,000 7T ) M1 B 5 301b
REEBBRAR (—EHE
B BS0% R 2 A F])
U B 225 38 K02 100% A% 8
WEEETEE RHHBHN
MI5E34 o

RE Z=2016F12A318 L&
EAEBEFEBUREE
7T $%.2,270,0005 7T 9 Bl B
Sophie Holdings Limited & £
RALIREEBBR A A
(¥ B m AL EFE80%E
# 2 NF)) W iE Sophie USAK
ST ERZ R 5 100% IR IR &
FEE-

RAFE -AEEHE=AX
AR (—HEBBAREERE
80%EZ ZARNFIMNEE
g B = AR F I (£
BzHEBA)BRKNEED
Mz B H2017F
10 A £2019512 A - & £2017
F1RANBLEFEURESR
20184 K2019% 12 A31H 1
FEZ2H2AXS O A
500,0007% 7T * 2,300,0007% 7T
%3,500,0005 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(E)

During the current year, the Group entered into
a service agreement with Hunan DreamEast
Cultural Investment Co., Ltd (“Hunan
DreamEast”), a company held as to 80% by Mr.
Zhou Zheng, pursuant to which Hunan DreamEast
has prepared the project development plan in
relation to a piece of land located in Hengnan
City, Hunan Province. The Group has paid a total
consideration of RMB9,000,000 for services
fee, which is equivalent to approximately
HK$10,000,000.

The above transactions also constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in the chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(F)

OUTSTANDING BALANCES WITH RELATED
PARTIES

(i) At 31 December 2017, amounts due from
related companies of HK$5,913,000
(2016: nil) are all non-trade nature,
unsecured, interest-free and repayable
within one year. Mr. Zhou Zheng has
controlling interest in these related
companies. The maximum amount
outstanding from related companies in
non-trade nature is HK$5,913,000 (2016:
nil) during the current year.

(ii) At 31 December 2017 amounts due to
related companies of HK$433,762,000
(2016: HK$201,602,000) are all non-trade
nature, unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. Mr. Zhou Zheng
has controlling interest in these related
companies.

(iii) ~ The Group issued the Convertible Bonds |l
to SkyOcean Investment Holding Limited,
the immediate holding Company, in prior
years due to debt restructuring. The
finance cost incurred during the current
year and carrying amounts of the liability
component of the Convertible Bonds Il as
at 31 December 2017 are set out in note
27
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES — continued

(G)

(H)

(n

COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL OF THE GROUP

Key management personnel of the Group
representing the Directors, who have authority
and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group, directly
or indirectly. Compensation to key management
personnel represents Directors’ emoluments
and is disclosed in note 14.

The Group has the following operating lease
commitments with the Sanhe SkyOcean, a
company held as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng, for
leasing of the Park as mentioned in above note
2, which have been included in note 31:

39 BEAEALIZHBE-&

(G)

(H)

FEBTEEE A B RN

AEBETEEEABEER
SEERBEAHE - 158 STl
AEBMESHIENREEZ
EX-IT2EHASHmMES
SZEHB - FHIBERHIE4 -

ZNER [ = K (—FE
R ERBBO%EH 2 A
a)) AR E XXMk a5
EREREATREHEAE (B
FNHIEEST) ¢

2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Within one year —F K 2,300 2,236
In the second to fifth year, Fo_EERF (B

inclusive HEME) 2,393 -
4,693 2,236

GUARANTEES PROVIDE BY RELATED PARTIES 1)) HEALTREZER

(i) As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Zhou Zheng
and certain related parties provided joint
personal guarantee for the borrowings
granted by certain bank and other
financial institutions to the Group with the
carrying amount of RMB2,786,673,000
(2016: RMB840,854,000), which is
equivalent to HK$3,333,699,000 (2016:
HK$940,017,000), details of which are set
out in note 26.

(i) R2017F12 8318 -
AR % A T R
ATHBETRITIR
H b & BB A AR
EERNZEEES
AR #2,786,673,000
7T (2016%F : AR ¥
840,854,0007T) (48
& 53,333,699,000
BT (2016 F ¢
940,017000/87T) ) 2
BEEEEEDEAE
R BEFBHAK
5F26 °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao B R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES - continued

() GUARANTEES PROVIDE BY RELATED PARTIES
— continued

(i)

(iii)

As at 31 December 2017, SkyOcean
Holdings Group Limited, a company
beneficially owned as to 80% by Mr. Zhou
Zheng, provided corporate guarantee for the
borrowings granted by certain banks and
other financial institutions to the Group with
the carrying amount of RMB2,786,673,000
(2016: RMB1,395,266,000), which is
equivalent to HK$3,333,699,000 (2016:
HK$1,559,810,000), details of which are set
out in note 26.

As at 31 December 2017 Beijing SkyOcean
Holdings, a company beneficially owned
as to 80% by Mr. Zhou Zheng, provided
corporate guarantee for the borrowings
granted by certain banks and other
financial institutions to the Group with
a total amount of RMB345,767,000
(2016: RMB395,779,000), which is
equivalent to HK$413,642,000 (2016:
HK$442,454,000),details of which are set
out in note 26.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES — continued

(1) GUARANTEES PROVIDE BY RELATED PARTIES
— continued

(iv)

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016,
Mr. Zhou Zheng and a related party,
provided joint personal guarantee and
Beijing SkyOcean Holdings, a company
beneficially owned as to 80% by Mr. Zhou
Zheng, provided corporate guarantee in
favour of the holders of the Convertible
Bonds |, the Bonds | and the Bonds
Il (note 27). Furthermore, Convertible
Bonds |, the Bonds | and the Bonds Il
are also secured by share charge over
certain number of ordinary shares of the
Company held by SkyOcean Investment
Holdings Limited, the immediate holding
company of the Company, details of
which are set out in paragraph headed
“Mandatory Early Redemption for
Convertible Bonds |, the Bonds | and
the Bonds II” in note 27 In addition,
SkyOcean Investment Holdings Limited,
being the holder of Convertible Bonds I,
charged over certain part of Convertible
bonds Il in favour of the holder of Bonds Il
(note 27).

39 BEALTZHE-&
) BEATEMHIER-E

(iv)

20174 2016412
A318 -BAREER
— R A LR R
KREF - EFIRESF
2358 ARRELE
AR - BB A&
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HERERRER (M
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 0. FEMBERATES

Place and date of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid share capital/  Attributable equity interest Principal activities
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Company and place of operation
ERAYL/ BRTRARZ
WEARABR RYBERAH BE/ZMBEA  ARAMBEEARAES FEEERCEHY
2017 2016
2017% 20165
SkyOcean International United Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
(formerly known as Skyocean 19 August 2010 Hong Kong
International Holdings Limited)
REEBRBEERAT BE BT 100% 100% #RAER
(MBXEERERERAA) 2010585198 &
Skyocean Real Estate (Tangshan) PRC US$25,100,000 100% 100% Property development
Co., Ltd.** 12 December 2011 PRC
(Wholly foreign-owned limited
liability company)
RAWE (B EBRRR e 25,100,000% 7T 100% 100% MEEER
(IEBERREARA) 20116124128 HE
Tangshan SkyOcean Commercial PRC RMB5,000,000 100% 100% Property management
Management Co., Ltd.** 8 May 2013 PRC
(Limited liability company)
ELRFBEEERERAR e ARH5,000,0007 100% 100% #WEER
(EREERR) 2013F5A8H HE
Skyleaf Holdings Limited* BVI US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
PR ¢ 1 NG| 8 August 2013 Hong Kong
EERAKS 1% 100% 100% #RAER
201358A8H 0]
Beijing SkyOcean** PRC RMB249,000,000 100% 96.02% Property development
(Limited liability company) 6 March 2014 PRC
IRREEEREFRAA HE ;- 100% 9.02% MEEE
(AREARR) 201463768 249,000,0007T HE
Kings Channel Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
29 January 2014 Hong Kong
REREBRAA 0 (E 100% 100% REER
201414298 3
DreamEast (Sanhe)** PRC US$1,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
(Wholly foreign-owned limited 29 January 2015 PRC
liability company)
BRA (ZA)REBRAF HE 1,000,000% 7 100% 100% REZRK
(IEBERREALR) 2015%1A29H HE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31H L F[E

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

— continued

Name of subsidiary

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital

40.

Attributable equity interest
held by the Company

TEMBLAEN-&

Principal activities
and place of operation

gAY/ ERTRARZ
WEAR AR KSR A BA/ZEMBE  ARAFEECRERAES FEERREEHY
2017 2016
20175 2016
DreamEast Jiaxing Cultural PRC US$58,820,000 100% 100% Property development
Investment Co., Ltd** 6 December 2016 PRC
(Wholly foreign-owned limited
liability company)
2RA (RE)ULREFRAF HE 58,820,000 7T 100% 100% MEER
(IEBEEBREERRA) 2016412 A6H HE
Jiangsu DreamEast** PRC RMB100,000,000 100% 100% Property development
(Limited liability company) 16 December 2015 PRC
BRA OLE) XM REERERAR > HE ARE 100% 100% #MEHER
(BREFAR) 2015%12/16A 100,000,0007T e
DreamEast Future World** PRC RMB6,000,000 100% - Theme park operation
(Limited liability company) 5 February 2015 PRC
BRAARER (ZA)REFRAR > HE AR ¥6,000,0007 100% - TRLEEY
(BREFAR) 201542 A5A hE
17422 Derian Irvine LLC us. US$25,000,000 90% 90% Property development
19 April 2016 us.
e 25,000,000% 90% 90% NELER
2016544198 e
* Issued capital held directly by the Company * BREITRAARNAFEERE
*x English name for identification only *x BNHBEHRSE

The above table listed the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the operating results of the Group for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

Note:
end of the year.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

U ERBHINESZTRREIBEFEAR
EAFREELEXESIBRASEEE
FEXERD ZARRIMNEBLRR &
ERR REEMHBARZHES
BRI

M NEEABENBRREHITER

BFES-
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40.

— continued
COMPOSITION OF THE GROUP

TEMBLAREN-&

REBE AR

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

Number of wholly-

Principal activity operation owned subsidiaries
FTEER AL PRI R AT it B 2EMBARHE
2017 2016
20174 20164
Investment holding Hong Kong 12 12
wEZER EB
Investment holding BVI 1 1
®EER REREIHS
Investment holding PRC 2 1
wEZER F
Property development and management PRC 6 6
MERRERER B
Property development and management u.S. 1 1
MEEREKER EE
Promotion service PRC 0 1
HERD B
Investment in financial instruments Hong Kong 5 5
TRTARE BB
Provision of corporate services Hong Kong 1 1
RHEERS BB
Theme park operation PRC 1 1
FRLERESE +
Inactive BVI 3 3
Tmex RERERHS
Inactive u.s. 2 2
TmeEz EE
Inactive Hong Kong 4 4
Tmex BB
Inactive Australia 1 1
TmeEz B
Inactive PRC 7 1
Tmex H B
46 40

Principal activity

Place of Incorporation/
establishment
and operation

Number of non-wholly-
owned subsidiary

FTEXER SR, L A i B 2EMBRARHEAE

2017 2016

20174 20164

Property development and management PRC - 2
MEERNER S

Property development and management U.S. 1 1
WEERRER E B

1 3
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND N, XATHBRREREFE

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2017 2016
201745 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment BB REE 170 304
Investments in subsidiaries RHEBA ﬁz&ﬁ 2,582,906 2,472,565
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W B /B A R SRIR 1,566,263 1,469,134
4,149,339 3,942,003
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables, deposits and ~ H i EWFRIE & K
prepayments B FRIE 6,029 3,284
Bank balances and cash WITHBR RIS 132,311 137,023
138,340 140,307
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals EMWH%AIE&%TE?XIE - 74
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAT B 8~ B3k 1A = 744
Amounts due to JE A< B Bt B /TAIE
related companies - 7,400
- 8,218
Net current assets REBEETFE 138,340 132,089
Total assets less HEERRBAS
current liabilities 4,287,679 4,074,092
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible bonds and bonds R ES REH 2,136,343 1,932,313
2,136,343 1,932,313
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,151,336 2,141,779
Equity R
Share capital fi% A 26,322 26,222
Reserves B 2,125,014 2,115,557
TOTAL EQUITY ERARE 2,151,336 2,141,779
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BH BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=2017F12A31A L F[E

a1.

42.

43.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND N ERRATHBERRRREREE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY - continued — &
MOVEMENT IN THE COMPANY’'S RESERVES RKAv#EER
Convertible
bonds Exchange
Share Share Other equity translation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
TERES ExX
BEx  RGEE Efhi  BEEE #E  REEA @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FATL THT FHL TAT FHL TAT FHL
At 1 January 2016 201651418 24,646 259,584 (682,298) 1,327718 (138,332) 1,498,988 2,290,306
Loss and total comprehensive FRRBRGARILE
expense for the year - - - - - (63,113) (63,113)
Exercise of warrants (note 29) fTE AR ERE (Fi:29) 1576 76,455 - - - - 78,031
Exchange difference on translation ~ BEELZERER - - - - (163,445) - (163,445)
At 31 December 2016 20165128318 26,222 336,039 (682,298) 1,327718 (301,777) 1,435,875 2,141,779
Loss and total comprehensive FREBREARIAE
expense for the year - - - - - (143,784) (143,784)
Issue of shares upon conversion of BRI EREFBEZTRE
convertible bonds (note 27) (MizE27) 100 11,900 - (34) - - 11,966
Exchange difference on translation ~ BEELZELER - - - - 141,375 - 141,375
At 31 December 2017 20174128318 26,322 347939 (682,298) 1,327,684 (160,402) 1,292,091 2,151,336
EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT OF 2. MBEMRRFTBAEREER
FINANCIAL POSITION
In March 2017 the Group entered into series of R20177F3 7 REEEETHF S
contracts with certain counter parties for establishing RIS EEAL LB AR EE
the variable interest entity (the “VIE"), pursuant to the (IEMER])  REL@REY
aforesaid contracts, the Group have control over the AEEHZENENaEBHEEIES
VIE. The Group is enable to involve in the film and TV B AEEMNBREBIENRE
programmes production and distribution business in BLMBEY NEREE RIEREITE
the future through the VIE. Ho
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43. HEBBEIHK

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29

March 2018.

DreamEast Group Limited 2R FEEHR AT

BHMBRERCHEZTEN20185F3
H2oB#L/E R X B AT -
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